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XCEL ENERGY INC.

Xcel Energy Inc. is the fourth-largest combination natural gas and electric utility in the nation, with annual revenues 

of$15 billion. Based in Minneapolis, Minn., Xcel Energy operates in 12 Western and Midwestern states. The company 

provides a comprehensive portfolio of energy-related products and services to 3.2 million electricity customers and 

1.7 million natural gas customers.  

NRG ENERGY, INC. (NRG) 

Xcel Energy's primary nonregulated subsidiary, NRG Energy, Inc., is one of the world's leading competitive energy 

providers. NRG specializes in the development, operation, maintenance and ownership of power production and 

cogeneration facilities, thermal energy production and transmission facilities and resource recovery facilities. The company 

has a portfolio of projects in the United States, Europe, Asia-Pacific and Latin America.  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Year Ended December 31 

2001 2000 % Change 

Earnings per common share - diluted before 

unusual and extraordinary items $ 2.31 $ 2.12 8.96% 

Unusual items $ (0.04) $ (0.52) 

Extraordinary items $ 0.03 $ (0.06) 

Earnings per common share- diluted $ 2.30 $ 1.54 49.35% 

Dividends annualized $ 1.50 $ 1.50 

Stock price (close) $27.74 $29.06 (4.54)% 

Return on average common equity 13.5% 9.6% 

Assets (millions) $28,735 $21.769 31.92% 

Book value per common share $17.91 $16.32 10.17% 

Some of the sections in this annual report, including the Letter to Shareholders on page 2, contain forward-looking statements.  

For a discussion offactors that could affect operating results, please see the Financial Review on page 18.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS 

In one of the most challenging years ever for the energy industry, Xcel Energy 
proved it has staying power. Your company delivered solid financial results, grew 

its businesses and strengthened its position among global energy companies. We 
successfully integrated New Century Energies and Northern States Power Co.  

and put together a leadership team dedicated to delivering long term value for 

you, our shareholders.  

I'm proud of our accomplishments, especially in light of the year's events.  

In 2001, the energy industry experienced: 

enormous price swings on the wholesale electric market; 

- significant new initiatives from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
(FERC); 

uncertainty surrounding the deregulation of the electric market that caused 

many states to delay their efforts; 

- a softening economy that slowed customer growth; 

- the bankruptcy of Enron; and 

- increased concerns about credit quality and accounting issues.  

While each event had ramifications for Xcel Energy, the company has an even 
longer list of achievements. In 2001, the Xcel Energy team: 

met its earnings target, due in part to strong results from its marketing 

and trading effort and the contribution of NRG Energy, its largest non

regulated business; 

delivered dividends of $1.50, which is a payout ratio of 65 percent; 

proposed creating an independent transmission company with five 

other utilities; 

- added more than 91,000 new natural gas and electric customers; 

- successfully participated in the deregulated electric market outside its 

service territory; 

reduced the number and duration of electric outages; 

completed a six-year effort to repower its decommissioned nuclear plant 

Fort St. Vram with natural gas;



expanded its already impressive portfolio of wind generation, with a goal 
of having 500 megawatts on line by the end of 2002, making Xcel Energy 

one of the top wind utilities in the nation; 

- received national recognition for its WindSource program: 

- initiated a major effort m standardize operating procedures through state

of-the-art technology; 

achieved merger synergies of more than $50 million; and 

pledged $3.5 million to the United Way, among other efforts to support 
the communities in its service territory.  

Xcel Energy also received recognition in 2001 for financial results. Your company 
was added to the Dow Jones Sector Titans Indexes, a family of 18 indexes that 
represent the leading global companies in several stock market sectors. We ranked 
55th in Baron's 500 top-perourming companies based on a mix of stock market dat, 
cash flow analysis and revenue growth figures. And Forbes.comr listed Xcel Energy 
as a "top stock" based on the number of times it received "buy/' recommendations 

from the top-performing investment newsletters.  

From a financial perspective, Xcel Energy began the year anticipating 2001 earnings 
of $2,20, Due to high power prices, primarily in the West, the marketing and 
trading group made an exceptionally strong showing during the first quarter, and 
the company revised its earnings forecast to $2.30 per share, which it met. Earnings 
per share from ongoing operations were $2.31 in 2001, an increase of 9 percent over 
2000 results. Even with lower power prices and lower earnings from marketing and 
trading, Xcel Energy expects to achieve earnings of $2.40 to $2.50 in 2002.  

Over the next several years, the company expects to grow its earnings per share 

at an average of 7 to 9 percent per year. This growth reflects the strength of our 
traditional utility operations and numerous recent changes in the energy sector, 
induding the lower valuation of independent power producers (IPm). Xcel Energyes 
IPP subsidiaryý NRG Energy, has been affected by these changes.  

NRG was created in 1989 to build additional shareholder value as a growf company 
in the energy sector. NRGs management team has grown the company rapidly and 
today it is the third-largest IPP worldwide, with almost 20,000 megawatts 
of power generation. Weighing numerous factors, including the current and 
anncipated IPP valuations, the potential for credit rating agency action that would 
lower bond ratings and NRG's financing needs, Xcel Energy's board of directors 
approved an exchange offer to acquire all of the outstanding publicly held shares 
of NRG as a way to increase Xcel Energy shareholder value. In order to provide 
capital to infuse into NRG and reduce its debt leverage, Xcel Energy completed 
a successful $500-million stock issuance in February. Pending successful 
completion of the exchange offer, Xcel Energy will invest $600 million of equity 
into NRG. It will focus NRG primarily on managed growth within the United 
Stares, a stronger balance sheet, cost savings opportunities and reduced dependence 
on external financing. NRG's contribution to Xcel Energy's earnings is expected 
to grow about 15 percent per year.  
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As Xcel Energy strives to maximize the value of NRG, the company also is working 
to manage other assets to their full potential. In response to a FERC order requiring 
utilities to separate the management and operation of their transmission assets 
from the rest of their businesses, we filed a request with federal regulators to create 

an independent transmission company called TRANSLink Transmission Co.  
We are proposing to combine our transmission system with those of five other 
utilities into a single, coordinated system.  

Under the proposal, pending before the FERC, Xcel Energy would continue to 
own its existing transmission system, but would enter into a 10-year agreement 
with TRANSLink to operate the system. A for-profit, independent company will 
provide greater value for you, generate annual operating savings, encourage new 
transmission investment and improve the efficiency and reliability of the system.  

Considerable room exists in the industry for consolidation, which will result in 
lower costs and better service. Right now, Xcel Energy employs a "plug-and-ptay' 

strategy. The company is working diligently to standardize practices and systems so 
it has the flexibility needed to take advantage of anticipated consolidation in the 
industry, If an opportunity presents itself that increases shareholder value, Xcal 
Energy will be ready to act quickly.  

Xcel Energy's game plan for the fuiture reflects the same approach: maximizing 

existing assets, while preparing for future opportunities.  

The first component of the plan is to grow our energy supply business, When 
Xcel Energy completed the repowering of Fort St. Vramin, the company increased 

the plant's capacity by more than 400 megawatts, which is equivalent to adding 
a medium-sized power plant. This year, a similar repowering will be completed at 
the Black Dog coal-fired Facility. Crews will replace two coal-fired units with a 

natural gas combined-cycle system, boosting the plant's output by more than 
100 megawatts.  

Xcel Energy also will evaluate adding generating assets within its geographic 
area or seek strategic partners for development and investment. In the past year, 
legislation was passed in Colorado and Minnesota that improved procedures for 
siting new plants and transmission lines to ensure a reliable source of energy in 

the future.  

As Xcel Energy grows its energy supply capacity, it is aligning other parts of the 

business to support that strategy and exiting non-strategic businesses. A good 
example was the sale in 2001 of its ownership in Yorkshire Power, a distribution 
and supply company in the United Kingdom. Although Yorkshire is an excellent 

company, it was no longer compatible with our strategy We continue to evaluate 
each of our smaller businesses to determine their strategic fit in the Xcel Energy 

business portfolio.  

Xcel Energy also is working to implement a regulatory model across its service 
territory that will better reward operational excellence. Often referred to as 

performance-based regulation (PBR), the system allows utilities to retain more 
earnings if they exceed certain performance standards. The company has been
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successful in North Dakota with the system and plans to pursue it in other 
jurisdictions. In Colorado, we are seeking adjustments to the existing PBR 
model as part of a required rate case that will be filed in 2002.  

Finally, Xcel Energy is going to deliver on its promises to stakeholders - its 

customers, employees and shareholders.  

Among the company's most significant and successful customer care initia
tives is its work to help customers conserve energy and manage energy use.  
Over the past decade, Xcel Energy has built one of the most aggressive energy 
conservation efforts in the country, which remains a vital part of its energy 

plan. We also recognize that customers want options from how they pay 
their bills to how they interact with us. A number of efforts are under way to make 
customer contacts as convenient, friendly and informative as possible. In 2001, 
when natural gas prices were high, Xcel Energy employees worked closely with 
customers to help them cope with high energy bills. The company contributed to 
energy assistance programs, offered low-interest loans for energy conservation 
and worked one-on-one to design payment schedules for individual customers.  

Our promise to employees is to provide an environment that fosters their growth 
and development. Employees are featured in this year's annual report because 
they are essential to our staying power. They have the expertise, work ethic and 
commitment to customers and shareholders that distinguish Xcel Energy as one 
of the finest companies in the industry.  

One of those employees was Chairman Emeritus Jim Howard, who retired in 2001.  
Jim dedicated his career at both NSP and Xcel Energy to positioning the company 
for success in a competitive environment. We are gratefid for his accomplishments, 
and wish him a long and happy retirement.  

Going forward, we too will strive to ensure Xcel Energy's long-term success.  
Because Xcel Energy is built on tried and true fundamentals, we are confident that 
your company can prosper in the ever-changing energy marketplace and deliver 
value for you. Our promise to you, our shareholders, is to work diligently to 
continue to earn your trust and support, the ultimate measure ofXcel Energy's 
staying powern 

Sincerely, 

Wayne H. Brunetti 

Chairman, President and CEO
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BUILT TO LAST 
XCEL ENERGY HAS STAYING POWER 

For the energy industry, 2001 proved to be a year like no other. Wholesale energy 
markets fluctuated wildly, the economy softened, electric deregulation efforts 
stalled and Enron fell. Xcel Energy, however, weathered the storms because your 
company has staying power.  

Staying power starts with a strong foundation. In our case, that includes a thriv 

ing service territory and a valuable asset base of power plants, electric distribution 
and transmission lines and natural gas pipelines, which we operate well. Staying 
power relies on financial strength, flexibility and integrity, sustainable growth 
strategies and the ability to deliver dependable dividends. Staying power is 
secured with excellent employees and a lasting commitment to customers, the 
environment and the community.  

Because your company is built on those fundamentals, we can say with confi
dence that Xcel Energy is here for the long haul. Our knowledge of customers, 
the communities we serve and the industry - coupled with our risk manage

ment skills - enable us to successfutlly navigate the new energy marketplace. Years 
of experience give us the ability to execute our strategies in good times and bad.  

One of the best measures of staying power is our ability to achieve earnings growth.  
To grow and add value for you, Xcel Energy relies on a number of earnings drive, 

beginning with its regulated electric and natural gas utility business.  

The company operates its regulated business with several factors in its favor. Xcel 

Energy's service territory for example, stretches across 12 states. That provides the 
benefit of geographic diversity, which balances business risk, lessens exposure to 

the decisions that could emerge from public policymakers, moderates the effects 
of weather and makes the company far less dependent on a particular customer 
group, regional economy or metropolitan area for its success.  

Another strength is that the company operates across the entire service territory 
instead of functioning as statewide jurisdictions. That enables it to standardize 

practices to maintain a low cost structure and high service standards and to take 
advantage of numerous synergies,
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DON PERRY, LEAD GAS FITTER, (LEFT) AND VINCE MAZZUCCA, GAS APPRENTICE, 
WORKED TOGETHER ON A GAS CONSTRUCTION CREW OUT OF EVERGREEN, COLO., IUNTIL FEBRUARY 2002, WHEN PERRY RETIRED AFTER 28 YEARS OF SERVICE.

f).



Xcd Energy also benefits from a balanced portfolio of energy sources, including 
coal, nuclear, natural gas and renewable fuels such as hydro, wind and biomass.  
A good balance minimizes the impact of changes in flide supply or price. The 
company generates about 73 percent of the electricity it delivers and purchases 

the rest. Almost two-thirds of the purchases are contracts of five years or longer, 

which again enables it to achieve supply and price stability for customers.  

In addition to purchasing conventional sources of electricity, Xcel Energy buys 

renewable energy. Last year, the company signed contracts for power from the 
new Peetz Table wind power plant in Colorado and the Llano Estacado wind 

ranch in Texas. Wind power conserves fossil fuels such as natural gas and coal, 
but also saves water, which is especially important in Texas and Colorado. Wind 
power also enables the company to give customers more options. Its WindSource 

program, for example, offers customers the opportunity to purchase wind power 
for a slightly higher energy bill.  

In other renewable energy efforts, Xcel Energy purchases hydroelectricity from 
Manitoba Hydro in Canada, a resource that is competitively priced and reliable.  

The contracts with Manitoba Hydro include seasonal diversity agreements that 
allow an exchange of power between the companies' respective systems.  

Xcel Energy's regulated business experienced solid customer growth in 2001 
despite the downturn in the economy, adding more than 91,000 new natural 

gas and electric customers.  

The company also participated in a pilot program designed to determine the 
feasibility of customer choice and electric deregulation in parts of Texas. Xcel 
Energy far exceeded its goal in capturing a percentage of the commercial and 

industrial electric market - outside of its regulated service territory and will 
participate even more aggressively as Texas moves ahead with deregulation. One 

of the new customers is the Texas Department of Criminal Justice, with 30 
facilities statewide that will receive electricity from Xcel Energy. The agency 

selected Xcel Energy because it offered the best value, according to officials.
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To contribute to earnings growth, Xcel Energy introduced a number of new 
revenue-generating products in 2001 that help customers conserve energy and 

manage their energy use. For example, InfoWise products and services allow 
customers to use the Internet to obtain real-time information to track and analyze 
their energy use. The overall objective is to build long-term relationships with 

customers in which they turn to Xcel Energy not only for natural gas and electricity, 
but for other energy-related products and services.  

With a solid commitment to customers, a sizeable asset base, a balanced 
portfolio of energy sources and a strong geographic position, Xcel Energy's 

regulated business provides a stable foundation for earnings growth.  

Similar attributes are responsible for the company's success in buying and selling 
electricity and natural gas on the wholesale market, a second earnings driver. In 
2001, Xcel Energy achieved gross margins of $264 million from trading and 
short-term wholesale energy sales, compared with $133 million in 2000.  

High market prices for electricity in early 2001, primarily on the West Coast, 

are partly responsible for those results. Since then, electricity prices have dropped 
significantly due to a slowing economy, increased conservation, new power plants 
and milder weather. Xcel Energy's ongoing goal is to increase marketing and 
trading's annual contribution to earnings by 15 percent, using 1999 results as 
the starting point. The company's e prime group, which trades natural gas, will 

be a strong contributor to that growth. In 2001, e prime increased volumes 
traded from I billion cubic feet of gas a day to 4 billion, achieving $8.5 million 
in net income, which contributed 2 cents to Xcel Energy earnings per share.  

As part of its marketing and trading effort, Xcel Energy also works to maximize 

the value of its generating plants, an asset base that forms the foundation of the 
entire operation. The company's ability to acquire low-cost fuel and to keep the 
plants operating during peak market times is vital to its success.  

Equally important is the ability to negotiate favorable long- and short-term 

power purchase agreements and to leverage the intellectual capital of its traders.  
Trading is a knowledge-based business, and Xcel Energy traders have a thorough 
understanding of the region in which the company operates and the systems 
available to generate and move energy.
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Xcel Energy's marketing and trading effort also is built on rigorous risk man
agemenr capabilities. The company uses astute trading strategies to capitalize on 
the volatility of the market, but doesn't take undue risk. Traders work hard to 
achieve the maximum return at the minimum risk. Those fundamentals will 
guide the company going forward and contribute to its staying power.  

A third earnings driver is Xcel Energy's ability to capture savings generated by 
its merger. The goal is to achieve $1.4 billion in total merger synergies by 2010.  

In the first few years after a merger, most synergies are found in the ability to 
eliminate duplicate Functions and streamline operations by adopting standard
ized systems and practices. Those savings ramp up quickly in the beginning and 
then grow moderately.  

Lower levels of capital expenditures and related cost of capital provide another 
source of synergies. Those savings primarily result from developing common 
standards across all the operating companies, resulting in efficiencies and 
economies of scale.  

Before the Xcel Energy merger was completed, for example, employees from its 
predecessor companies formed a team to examine contracts for transformers. They 
developed a bid package that standardized requirements and then demonstrated 
to suppliers that there were opportunities available in providing larger quantities 
of transformers across a broader geographical area. After much hard work, the 
team achieved $3 million in savings.  

Since the merger, Xcel Energy has chartered similar teams to look for savings in 
purchasing gas meters, vehicle fuels, wire and cable, maintenance, repair and 
operating supplies, office supplies, travel services and technology services and 
equipment. In 2001, the company realized more than $50 million of synergies.  

Finally, Xcel Energy relies on its subsidiaries as the fourth driver of earnings 
growth. The company's major nonregulated subsidiary is NRG Energy, Inc., 
which primarily develops, acquires and operates power generation facilities.
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In February 2002, Xcel Energy's board of directors approved plans to initiate 
an exchange offer by which Xcel Energy would acquire all of the outstanding 
publicly held shares of NRG. At the same time, Xcel Energy announced its 
plans to refocus NRG's current business model. The plans include reducing 
NRG's rate of growth, strengthening its balance sheet, managing costs and 
reducing its dependence on external financing.  

Xcel Energy expects to capture other benefits by: 
Consolidating marketing and trading organizations while honoring all 
regulatory requirements; 

- Integrating power plant management across the Xcal Energy system; and 

- Capturing infrastructure savings to maximize available synergies.  

Xcel Energy believes that its decision to acquire the public shares of NRG is in 
the best interest of both the NRG and Xcel Energy shareholders, and expects 
NRG to continue to contribute to Xcel Energy'rs earnings growth.  

Utility Engineering (UE), another Xcel Energy subsidiary, also is contributing 
to earnings growth. UE is an engineering and design firm with projects in more 
than 35 states as well as Mexico and Canada. In 2001, the company provided 
engineering support services and system analysis software to more than 82 percent 
of U.S. nuclear operating plants. UE also won major contracts for new gas turbine 
plants from a number of prominent companies. Among the top 500 design firms 
in the nation, UE ranks 20 in the fossil fuel subcategory and 25 in the power 

subcategory.  

Viking Gas ransmission Co. is one more subsidiaryvwith strong and steady growth.  
Viking operates a 662-mile interstate natural gas pipeline located in Minnesota, 
North Dakota and Wisconsin. In 2001, Viking and two partners received final 
approval from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission for the Guardian Pipeline, 
a 140 mile pipeline that will connect Wisconsin customers with a natural gas hub 

in Illinois.  

Xcel Energy's regulated business, marketing and trading effort, nonregulated 
subsidiaries and savings achieved through the merger are strong contributors to 
earnings growth. With those sustainable growth strategies in place, the company 
can ensure long-term value for you.
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In addition to financial strength, staying power is measured by long-term 
commitments. Xcel Energy is strongly committed to the communities it serves.  
The company's contributions include corporate grants through the Xcel Energy 
Foundation, economic development efforts and employee and retiree volun
teerism. In 2001, Xcel Energy employees and retimes pledged more than $1.7 
milliont m local United Way organizations. Combined with its corporate grant, XceJ 
Energy's total contribution to the United Way in 2002 will be $3.5 million. The 
company also is a strong supporter of women- and minority-owned businesses 
and received special recognition last year for those efforts.  

Environmental stewardship is another indication of Xcel Energys community 
commitment. In Denver, the company is implementing a $211 million voluntary 
initiative to reduce air emissions at three coal-fired plants. All improvements are 
expected to be completed and operational by 2003. In Minnesota, a similar 
emissions-reduction plan is under consideration for plants in the Minneapolis
St. Paul metropolitan area.  

Xcel Energy a"so is financing a renewable development hand that annually awards 
$8.5 million in grants to develop renewable energygenerators - including wind, 
solar, biomass and hydro facilties and to conduct resarch into renewable energy 
technologies. Some of the research proposals include studying the feasibility of 
producing electricity from distiller grains used in the production of ethanol, 
exploring better ways to store power from wind turbines and developing improved 
fiel-crg prototypes. While every project might not succeed in the long run, it's 

important to explore the possibilities.  

For Xcel Energy, the future is bright with possibilities, and we're well-positioned to 
take advantage of new opportunities. Our business is built on a strong foundation 
that includes solid financials, valuable assets and a thriving service territory We 
have excellent employees. We care about customers and the community And we 
are committed to achieving long-term growth and value for you. Xcel Energy is 
built to last regardless of changing industry or economic conditions. Your company 
has staying power.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On Aug. 18, 2000, New Century Energies, Inc. (NCE) and Northern States Power Co. (NSP) merged and formed Xcel Energy Inc.  
(Xcel Energy). Xcel Energy, a Minnesota corporation, is a registered holding company under the Public Utility Holding Company 
Act (PUHCA). As part of the merger, NSP transferred its existing utility operations that were being conducted directly by NSP at 

the parent company level to a newly formed subsidiary of Xcel Energy named Northern States Power Co. Each share of NCE common 

stock was exchanged for 1.55 shares of Xcel Energy common stock. NSP shares became Xcel Energy shares on a one-for-one basis. As a 

stock-for-stock exchange for shareholders of both companies, the merger was accounted for as a pooling-of-interests and accordingly, 
amounts reported for periods prior to the merger have been restated for comparability with post-merger results.  

Xcel Energy directly owns six utility subsidiaries that serve electric and natural gas customers in 12 states. These six utility subsidiaries are 
Northern States Power Co., a Minnesota corporation (NSP-Minnesota); Northern States Power Co., a Wisconsin corporation (NSP
Wisconsin); Public Service Company of Colorado (PSCo); Southwestern Public Service Co. (SPS); Black Mountain Gas Co. (BMG); and 

Cheyenne Light, Fuel and Power Co. (Cheyenne). Their service territories include portions of Arizona, Colorado, Kansas, Michigan, 
Minnesota, New Mexico, North Dakota, Oklahoma, South Dakota, Texas, Wisconsin and Wyoming. Xcel Energys regulated businesses 

also include Viking Gas Transmission Co. (Viking) and WestGas InterState Inc. (WGI), both interstate natural gas pipeline companies.  

Xcel Energy also owns or has an interest in a number of nonregulated businesses, the largest of which is NRG Energy, Inc., a publicly 

traded independent power producer. At Dec. 31, 2001, Xcel Energy indirectly owned approximately 74 percent of NRG. Xcel Energy's 
ownership of NRG was 100 percent until the second quarter of 2000, when NRG completed its initial public offering, and then 

82 percent until a secondary offering was completed in March 2001. See Note 19 to the Financial Statements for discussion of 
potential changes in NRG ownership.  

In addition to NRG, Xcel Energy's nonregulated subsidiaries include Utility Engineering (engineering, construction and design), 
Seren Innovations, Inc. (broadband telecommunications services), e prime inc. (natural gas marketing and trading), Planergy 
International, Inc. (enterprise energy management solutions), Eloigne Co. (investments in rental housing projects that qualify for 
low-income housing tax credits) and Xcel Energy International (an international independent power producer).  

XCEL ENERGY'S MISSION AND GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

Xcel Energy's mission is to provide energy and service solutions that advance the productivity and lifestyle of our customers, foster 
the growth of our employees and enhance value for our shareholders.  

Xcel Energy's guiding principles include: focusing on the customer, respecting people, managing with facts, continually improving 
our business, focusing on the prevention of problems and promoting a safe and challenging svork environment.  

Xcel Energy's 2002 Game Plan consists of the following elements: 

- Grow the energy supply business; 

- Coordinate all energy marketing capabilities; 

- Focus retail strategy to support energy supply assets; 

- Execute operating and regulatory strategies to unlock and retain the value of regulated businesses; 

- Exit non-strategic investments; and 

- Deliver what we promise to stakeholders.  

FINANCIAL REVIEW 

The following discussion and analysis by management focuses on those factors that had a material effect on Xcel Energy's financial 

condition, results of operations and cash flows during the periods presented, or are expected to have a material impact in the future.  
It should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements and Notes.  

Except for the historical statements contained in this report, the matters discussed in the following discussion and analysis are forward-looking 

statements that are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Such forward-looking statements are intended to be identified in 
this document by the words "anticipate," "estimate," "expect," "objective," "outlook," "project," "possible," "potential" and similar expressions.  
Actual results may vary materially. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially include, but are not limited to: general economic 

conditions, including their impact on capital expenditures and the ability of XceI Energy and its subsidiaries to obtain financing on favorable 

terms; business conditions in the energy industry; competitive factors, including the extent and timing of the entry of additional competition 
in the markets served by Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries; unusual weather; state, federal and foreign legislative and regulatory initiatives that 

affect cost and investment recovery or have an impact on rates; structures that affect the speed and degree to which competition enters the 

electric and gas markets; the higher risk associated with Xcel Energy's nonregulated businesses compared with its regulated businesses; currency 
translation and transaction adjustments; risks associated with the California power market; the items described under Factors Affecting 
Results of Operations; and the other risk factors listed from time to time by Xcel Energy in reports filed with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission (SEC), including Exhibit 99.01 to Xcel Energy's Quarterly Report on Form O-Q for the quarter ended Sept. 30, 2001.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Xcel Energy's earnings per share for the past three years were as follows: 

Contribution to earnings per share 2001 2000 1999 

Total regulated earnings before extraordinary items $1.87 $1.26 $1.51 

Total nonregulated/holding company 0.40 0.34 0.19 

Extraordinary items (see Note 12) 0.03 (0.06) 

Total earnings per share (diluted) $2.30 $1.54 $1.70 

For more information on significant factors that had an impact on earnings, see below.  

SIGNIFICANT FACTORS THAT IMPACTED 2001 RESULTS 

Conservation Incentive Recovery Earnings were increased by 7 cents per share due to the reversal of a Minnesota Public Utilities 

Commission (MPUC) decision.  

In June 1999, the MPUC denied NSP-Minnesota recovery of 1998 incentives associated with state-mandated programs for electric 

energy conservation. Xcel Energy recorded a $35-million charge in 1999, which reduced earnings by 7 cents per share, based on this 

action. NSP-Minnesota appealed the MPUC decision and in December 2000, the Minnesota Court of Appeals reversed the MPUC 

decision. In January 2001, the MPUC appealed the lower court decision to the Minnesota Supreme Court. On Feb. 23, 2001, the 

Minnesota Supreme Court declined to hear the MPUC's appeal. During the second quarter of 2001, NSP-Minnesota filed with the 

MPUC a plan that carried out, among other things, the court's decision.  

On June 28, 2001, the MPUC approved the plan and issued an order to that effect shortly thereafter. As a result, the previously 

recorded liabilities of approximately $41 million (including carrying charges) for potential refunds to customers were no longer 

required. The plan approved by the MPUC increased revenue by approximately $34 million and increased allowance for funds used 

during construction by approximately $7 million, increasing earnings by 7 cents per share for the second quarter of 2001.  

Based on the new MPUC policy and less uncertainty regarding conservation incentives to be approved, conservation incentives for 

2001 are now being recorded on a current basis.  

Special Charges - Postemployment Benefits Earnings were decreased by 4 cents per share due to a Colorado Supreme Court decision 

that resulted in a pretax write-off of $23 million of a regulatory asset related to deferred postemployment benefit costs at PSCo. For 

more information, see Note 2 to the Financial Statements.  

Special Charges - Restaffing Costs During 2001, Xcel Energy expensed pretax special charges of $39 million, or 7 cents per share, for 

planned staff consolidation costs. The charges related to severance costs for utility operations resulting from restaffing plans of several 

operating and corporate support areas of Xcel Energy. We accrued for 500 staff terminations that are expected to occur, mainly in the first 

quarter of 2002, across all regions of Xcel Energy's service territory, but primarily in Minneapolis and Denver. For more information, see 

Note 2 to the Financial Statements.  

Extraordinary Items - Electric Utility Restructuring During early 2001, legislation in both Texas and New Mexico was passed that 

delayed the planned implementation of restructuring within SPS' service territory for at least five years. Accordingly, in the second 

quarter of 2001, SPS reapplied the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71 - "Accounting for the 

Effects of Certain Types of Regulation" for its generation business. Based on subsequent financing and regulatory activities clarifying 

the expected ratemaking impacts of restructuring delays in the fourth quarter of 2001, SPS restored certain regulatory assets totaling 

$17.6 million as of Dec. 31, 2001, and reported related after-tax extraordinary income of $11.8 million, or 3 cents per share. This 

represents a reversal of a portion of the 2000 write-offs discussed later. Regulatory assets previously written off were restored only for 

items currently being recovered in rates and items where future rate recovery is considered probable. For more information, see 

Note 12 to the Financial Statements.  

SIGNIFICANT FACTORS THAT IMPACTED 2000 RESULTS 

Special Charges - Merger Costs During 2000, Xcel Energy expensed pretax special charges of $241 million, or 52 cents per share, 

for costs related to the merger between NSP and NCE. Of these special charges, approximately 44 cents per share were associated 

with the costs of merging regulated operations and 8 cents per share were associated with merger impacts on nonregulated activities.  

See Note 2 to the Financial Statements for more information on these charges.  

Extraordinary Items - Electric Utility Restructuring Xcel Energy's earnings for 2000 were reduced by 6 cents per share for two 

extraordinary items related to the expected discontinuation of regulatory accounting for SPS' generation business. Based on expectations 

at that time for SPS' restructuring, during the second quarter of 2000, SPS wrote off its generation-related regulatory assets and other 

deferred costs for an extraordinary charge of approximately $19.3 million before tax, or $13.7 million after tax. During the third
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quarter of 2000, SPS recorded an additional extraordinary charge of $8.2 million before tax, or $5.3 million after tax, related to the 
tender offer and defeasance of approximately S295 million of first mortgage bonds, again based on expected restructuring. For more 
information, see Note 12 to the Financial Statements.  

SIGNIFICANT FACTORS THAT IMPACTED 1999 RESULTS 

Conservationo Incentive Recovery Earnings for 1999 were reduced by 7 cents per share due to the disallowance of 1998 conservation 
incentives for NSP-Minnesota. In June 1999, the MPUC denied NSP-Minnesota recovery of 1998 lost margins, load management 

discounts and incentives associated with state-mandated programs for electric energy conservation. Xcel Energy recorded a 835-million 
reduction to pretax income in 1999 based on this action, primarily as a reduction of electric utility revenue. As discussed previously 
under Significant Factors that Impacted 2001 Results, this decision and the related charge were ultimately reversed.  

In addition, based on the 1999 change in the MPUC policy on conservation incentives and regulatory uncertainty; in 1999 and 2000 
management did not record conservation incentives until the)' were approved by the MPUC the following year.  

Special (laIages During 1999, Xcel Energy expensed pretax special charges of $31 million, or 7 cents per share, stemming fiom asset 
impairments related to goodwill and marketable securities associated with nonregulated activities. See Note 2 to the Financial 

Statements for more information on these charges.  

NONREGULATED SUBSIDIARIES AND HOLDING COMPANY 

Contibution to Xcel Energy's earnings per share 2001 2000 1999 

NRG* S0.58 $0.46 S0.17 
Yorkshire Power 0.01 0.13 0.13 
Seren Innovations (0.08) (0.07) (0.03) 
Planergy International (0.04) (0.08) (0.06) 
e prime 0.02 (0.02) (0.01) 
Financing costs and preferred dividends (0.11) (0.07) (0.03) 
Other nonregulated 0.02 (0.01) 0.02 

Total nonregulated/holding co. earnings per share S0.40 S 0.34 S0.19 

NRG's earnings for 2001 and 2000 in this report eiclude earnings of 19 cenits 
per share and 8 cents per share, respectivel); related to ininority shariholder interests.  

NRG NRG's earnings for 2001 increased primarily due to new acquisitions in Europe and North America, as well as a full year 
of operation in 2001 of acquisitions made in the fourth quarter of 2000. In addition, NRG's earnings reflected a reduction in the 
overall effective tax rate and mark-to-market gains related to SEAS No. 133 - "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activity." The overall reduction in tax rates was primarily due to higher energy credits, the implementation of state tax planning 
strategies and a higher percentage of NRG's overall earnings derived from foreign projects in lower tax jurisdictions.  

NRG's earnings for 2000 reflected increased electric revenues resulting fiom acquired generation assets. During 2000, NRG increased 
its megawatt ownership interest in generating facilities in operation by more than 4,000 megawatts. NRG s earnings for 2000 also 
were influenced by favorable weather conditions that increased demand for electricity in the northeast and western United States, 
market dynamics, strong performance from existing assets and higher market prices for electricity.  

Yorkshire Power During February 2001, Xcel Energy reached an agreement to sell the majoritN of its investment in Yorkshire Power to 
Innogy Holdings plc. As a result of this sales agreement, Xcel Energy did not record any equity earnings from Yorkshire Power after 

January 2001. For more information, see Note II to the Financial Statements.  

Seren Innoovction.s Construction of its broadband communications network in Minnesota and California resulted in losses for 2001, 
2000 and 1999. Seren is constructing a combination cable television, telephone and high-speed Internet access system in two 
locations: St. Cloud, Minn., and Contra Costa County in the East Bay area of northern California. For more information, see 
Note 15 to the Financial Statements.  

Phiioer, hIteresotioool Competitive markets and delays in government contracts have resulted in continued low margins and losses for 

Planergy's energy management business in 2001.  

Planergy's results for 2000 were reduced by special charges of 4 cents per share for the write-offs of goodwill and project development 
costs. As a part of the Xcel Energy merger in 2000, Planergy and Energy Masters International (EMI), both wholl) owned subsidiaries 
of Xcel Energy, were combined to form Planergy International. As a result of this combination, Planergy reassessed its business model 
and made a strategic realignment, which resulted in the write-off of 822 million (before tax) of goodwvill and project development costs.  

In addition, Planergy's results for 1999 were reduced by a special charge of 4 cents per share to write off approximately) $17 million 

(before tax) of goodwill.
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e prime e prime's results for the year ended Dec. 31, 2001, reflect the favorable structure of its contractual portfolio, including gas 

storage and transportation positions, structured products and proprietary trading in natural gas markets.  

e prime's results for 2000 were reduced by special charges of 2 cents per share for contractual obligations and other costs associated 

with post-merger changes in the strategic operations and related revaluations of e prime's energy marketing business.  

Financing Costs and Preferred Dividends Nonregulated results include interest expense and preferred dividends, which are incurred 

at the Xcel Energy and intermediate holding company levels and are not directly assigned to individual subsidiaries.  

Other Other nonregulated results for 2000, which include the activity of several nonregulated subsidiaries, were reduced by special 

charges of 2 cents per share recorded during the third quarter. These special charges include $10 million in asset write-downs and losses 
resulting from various other nonregulated business ventures that are no longer being pursued after the merger.  

In addition, other nonregulated results for 1999 were reduced by special charges of 3 cents per share for a valuation write-down of 

Xcel Energy's investment in the publicly traded common stock of CellNet Data Systems, Inc.  

INCOME STATEMENT ANALYSIS 

Electric Utilio, and Commodity Trading Margins Electric fuel and purchased power expense tend to vary with changing retail and 

wholesale sales requirements and unit cost changes in fuel and purchased power. Due to fuel cost recovery mechanisms for retail 

customers in several states, most fluctuations in energy costs do not materially affect electric utility margin. However, certain fuel 
cost recovery mechanisms in various jurisdictions do not allow for complete recovery of all variable production expenses. Therefore, 
higher costs can result in adverse margin and earnings impacts. Electric utility margins reflect the impact of sharing energy costs and 
savings relative to a target cost per delivered kilowatt-hour and certain trading margins under the incentive cost adjustment (ICA) 

ratemaking mechanism in Colorado.  

Xcel Energy's commodity trading operations are conducted mainly by PSCo (electric) and e prime (gas). Electric trading activity, 
initially recorded at PSCo, is partially redistributed to NSP-Minnesota and SPS pursuant to a Joint Operating Agreement approved by the 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). Trading revenue and costs do not include the revenue and production costs associated 
with energy produced from Xcel Energy's generation assets or energy and capacity purchased to serve native load. Trading revenue and 
costs associated with NRG's operations are included in nonregulated margins. Margins from these generating assets for utility operations are 
included in short-term wholesale amounts, discussed later. Trading margins reflect the impact of sharing certain trading margins under the 

ICA. The following table details electric utility, short-term wholesale and electric and gas trading revenue and margin.

(Millions of dollars) 

2001 

Electric utility revenue" 
Electric and gas trading revenue 
Electric fuel and purchased power-utility 
Electric and gas trading costs 
Gross margin before operating expenses 
Margin as a percentage of revenue 

2000 

Electric utility revenue 
Electric and gas trading revenue 
Electric fuel and purchased power-utility 
Electric and gas trading costs 
Gross margin before operating expenses 
Margin as a percentage of revenue 

1999 

Electric utility revenue 

Electric and gas trading revenue 
Electric fuel and purchased power-utility 
Electric and gas trading costs 

Gross margin before operating expenses 
Margin as a percentage of revenue

Electric Gas 
Electric Short-Term Commodity Commodity Intercompany Consolidated 
Utility Wholesale Trading Trading Eliminations Totals

$5,607 $788 $ 
- 1,337

$
1,938 (88)

$6,395 
3,187

(2,559) (613) - - (3,172) 
- - (1,268) (1,918) 88 (3,098) 

$3,048 $175 $ 69 $ 20 $ - $3,312 
54.4% 22.2% 5.2% 1.0% - 34.6% 

$5,107 $567 $ - $ - $ - $5,674 
- - 819 1,297 (54) 2,062 

(2,106) (475) - - - (2,581) 
- - (788) (1,287) 54 (2,021) 

$3,001 $ 92 $ 31 $ 10 $ - $3,134 
58.8% 16.2% 3.8% 0.8% - 40.5% 

$4,242 $680 $ - $ - $ - $4,922 
- - 534 419 (2) 951 

(1,329) (638) - - - (1,967) 
- - (532) (417) 2 (947) 

$2,913 $ 42 $ 2 $ 2 $ - $2,959 
68.7% 6.2% 0.4% 0.5% - 50.4%
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2001 ft w;l,palJi,' 1 2000 Electric utility revenue increased by approximately $500 million, or 9.8 percent, in 2001. Electric utility 

margin increased by approximately $47 million, or 1.6 percent, in 2001. These revenue and margin increases were due to sales growth, 

weather conditions in 2001 and the recover), of conservation incentives in Minnesota. Increased conservation incentives, including the 

resolution of the 1998 dispute (as discussed previously) and accrued 2001 incentives increased revenue and margin by $49 million.  

Temperatures during 2001 increased revenue by approximately $23 million and margin by approximately $13 million. These increases 

were partially offset by increases in fuel and purchased power costs, which are not completely recoverable from customers in Colorado 

due to various cost-sharing mechanisms. Revenue and margin also were reduced in 2001 by approximately $30 million due to rate 

reductions in various jurisdictions agreed to as part of the merger approval process, in comparison to approximately $10 million in 2000.  

Short-term wholesale revenue increased by approximately S221 million, or 39.0 percent, in 2001. Short-term wholesale margin increased 

$83 million, or 90.2 percent, in 2001. These increases are due to the expansion of Xcel Energy's wholesale marketing operations and 

favorable market conditions for the first six months of 2001, including strong prices in the Western markets, particularly before the 

establishment of price caps and other market changes.  

Electric and gas commodity trading margins, including proprietary (i.e., non-asset based) electric trading and natural gas trading, 

increased approximately $48 million for the year ended Dec. 31, 2001, compared with the same period in 2000. The increase 

reflects an expansion of Xcel Energy's trading operations and favorable market conditions, including strong prices in the Western 

markets, particularly before the establishment of pricing caps and other market changes.  

Short-term wholesale margins and electric commodity trading margins for 2002 are not expected to be as strong as margins in 2001 

due to declines in energy prices. Margins for the second half of 2001 are more indicative of expected trends in 2002. During 2001, 

in some Western markets, publicly available power prices ranged from $80 to more than $350 per megawatt-hour on a monthly average.  

Currently, publicly available forward price information for 2002 for these same areas ranges from S60 to $110 per megawatt-hour on a 

monthly average.  

2000 (Co;,pari ,'o 1999 Electric utility revenue increased by approximately $865 million, or 20.4 percent, in 2000. Electric utility 

margin increased by approximately $88 million, or 3.0 percent, in 2000. Electric margins reflect the impact of customer sharing due 

to the ICA mechanism. Weather-normalized retail sales increased by 3.6 percent in 2000, increasing retail revenue by approximately 

$153 million and retail margin by approximately $88 million. More favorable temperatures during 2000 increased retail revenue by 

approximately $36 million and retail margin by approximately $22 million. These retail margin increases were partially offset by 

regulatory adjustments relating to the earnings test in Texas and system reliability and availability in Colorado, and to rate reductions 

agreed to as part of the merger approval process.  

Short-term wholesale margin increased due to the expansion of Xcel Energys wholesale marketing operations and favorable market 

conditions.  

Electric and gas commodity trading revenue increased by a total of approximately $1.2 billion, and the combined trading margin 

increased by approximately S37 million in 2000. The increase in trading revenue and margin is a result of the expansion of electric 

and natural gas trading.  

,Gzi. .11','i iq; The following table details the changes in gas utility revenue and margin. The cost of gas tends to vary with 

changing sales requirements and the unit cost of gas purchases. However, due to purchased gas cost recovery mechanisms for retail 

customers, fluctuations in the cost of gas have little effect on natural gas margin.  

(Millions oJ dollars) 2001 2000 1999 

Gas revenue S2,053 S1,469 $1,141 
Cost of gas purchased and transported (1,518) (948) (683) 

Gas margin $ 535 $ 521 $ 458 

200l l ;, .: o 2000 Gas revenue increased by approximately $584 million, or 39.8 percent, for 2001, primarily due to increases 

in the cost of natural gas, which are largely passed on to customers and recovered through various rate adjustment clauses in most of 

the jurisdictions in which Xcel Energy operates. Gas margin increased by approximately $14 million, or 2.7 percent, for 2001 due to 

sales growth and a rate increase in Colorado. These gas revenue and margin increases were partially offset by the impact of warmer 

temperatures in 2001, which decreased gas revenue by approximately $38 million and gas margin by approximately $16 million.  

2000 tou.,it 0 /1999 Gas revenue increased by approximately S328 million, or 28.7 percent, in 2000, primarily due to increases 

in the cost of natural gas, which are largely recovered through various adjustment clauses in most of the jurisdictions in which Xcel Energy 

operates. Gas margin increased by approximately S63 million, or 13.8 percent, in 2000. Temperatures during 2000 compared with 1999 

increased gas revenue by $82 million and gas margins by $33 million. Customer growth also contributed to margin increases in 2000.
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Nonregudated Operating Margins The following table details the changes in nonregulared revenue and margin.  

(Millions of dollars) 2001 2000 1999 

Nonregulated and other revenue $3,177 $2,204 $ 711 
Earnings from equity investments 217 183 112 
Nonregulated cost of goods sold (1,657) (1,007) (310) 

Nonregulated margin $1,737 $1,380 $ 513 

2001 Comparison to 2000 Nonregulated revenue and margin increased for 2001, largely due to NRG's acquisition of generating 

facilities, increased demand for electricity, market dynamics, strong performance from existing assets and higher market prices for 

electricity. Earnings from equity investments for 2001 increased compared with 2000, primarily due to increased equity earnings 
from NRG projects, which offset lower equity earnings from Yorkshire Power. As a result of a sales agreement to sell the majority of 

its investment in Yorkshire Power, Xcel Energy did not record any equity earnings from Yorkshire Power after January 2001.  

2000 Comparison to 1999 Nonregulated and other revenue increased by approximately $1.5 billion in 2000, largely due to NRG'S acquisi

tion of generation facilities during 2000 and the fuill-year impact of generating assets acquired during 1999. Earnings from equity investments 

increased by approximately $71 million in 2000, primarily due to increased equity earnings from NRG projects. Nonregulated margin 

increased by approximately $867 million in 2000, largely due to NRG's acquisition of generation facilities during 2000.  

Xon-Fuel Operating Expense and Other Items Other utility operating and maintenance expense for 2001 increased by approximately 
$60 million, or 4.1 percent, compared with 2000. The change is largely due to increased plant outages, higher nuclear operating costs, 

bad debt reserves reflecting higher energy prices, increased costs due to customer growth and higher performance-based incentive costs.  

Other utility operating and maintenance expense for 2000 increased by approximately $69 million, or 5.0 percent, compared with 1999. The 
increase is largely due to the timing of outages at the Monticello and Prairie Island nuclear plants and at the Sherco coal-fired power plant, 

increased bad debt reserves related to wholesale and retail customers, higher nuclear operating costs and higher employee-related costs.  

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $157 million, or 19.8 percent, in 2001 and $113 million, or 16.6 percent, in 2000, 
primarily due to acquisitions of generating facilities by NRG and increased additions to utility plant.  

Interest expense increased $125 million, or 19 percent, in 2001 and $243 million, or 58.7 percent, in 2000, primarily due to increased 

debt levels to finance several asset acquisitions by NRG.  

Interest income and other - net increased by approximately $54 million for the year ended Dec. 31, 2001, compared with the same 

period in 2000. This increase was primarily the result of a credit swap at NRG, NRG mark-to-market gains on foreign debt, NRG 
interest income due to increased affiliate receivables related to loans to West Coast Power and gains from the sale of PSCo assets.  

As discussed in Note 8 to the Financial Statements, Xcel Energy's effective tax rate before extraordinary items was 28.0 percent for 

the year ended Dec. 31, 2001, and 35.8 percent for the same period in 2000. The change in the effective tax rate reflects changes in 

the 2001 effective tax rate at NRG and the non-deductibility of certain merger costs in 2000. As discussed previously, NRG's annual 
effective tax rate for 2001 declined due to higher energy tax credits, the implementation of state tax planning strategies and a higher 

percentage of NRG's overall earnings derived from foreign projects in lower tax jurisdictions.  

Weather Xcel Energy's earnings can be significantly affected by weather. Unseasonably hot summers or cold winters increase electric and 

natural gas sales, but also can increase expenses, which may not be fully recoverable. Unseasonably mild weather reduces electric and natural 

gas sales, but may not reduce expenses, which affects overall results. The following summarizes the estimated impact on the earnings of the 

utility subsidiaries of Xcel Energy due to temperature variations from historical averages.  

- Weather in 2001 had minimal impact on earnings per share.  
- Weather in 2000 increased earnings by an estimated 1 cent per share.  

- Weather in 1999 decreased earnings by an estimated 9 cents per share.  

FACTORS AFFECTING RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Xcel Energy's utility revenues depend on customer usage, which varies with weather conditions, general business conditions and the 

cost of energy services. Various regulatory agencies approve the prices for electric and gas service within their respective jurisdictions.  
In addition, Xcel Energy's nonregulated businesses are becoming a more significant factor in Xcel Energy's earnings. The historical 

and future trends of Xcel Energy's operating results have been and are expected to be affected by the following factors: 

General Economic Conditions The slower United States economy, and the global economy to a lesser extent, may have a significant impact 
on Xcel Energy's operating results. Current economic conditions have resulted in a decline in the forward price curve for energy and may 

decrease the need for additional power supply. Xcel Energy expects the economic conditions to have a significant impact on commodity 

trading margins, which are not expected to be as strong as those experienced in 2001. In addition, certain operating costs, such as insurance
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and securirs, have increased due to the economi and the terrorist attacks of Sept. 11, 2001. We do not believe these events will affect our 
access to insurance markets. However, Xcel Energy could experience other significant impacts from a weakened economs' 

Si '' , ,". .',",,., ' , .:'-.; The structure of the electric and natural gas utility industry continues to change. Merger 
and acquisition activity over the past few years has been significant as utilities combine to capture economies of scale or establish a 
strategic niche in preparing for the future. Some regulated utilities are divesting generation assets. All utilities are required to provide 
nondiscriminatorv access to the use of their transmission systems.  

In December 2001, the FERC approved Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc. (MISO) as the Midwest independent 
system operator responsible for operating the wholesale electric transmission system. Accordingly, in compliance with the FERCs Order 
No. 2000, Xcel Energy turned over operational control of its transmission system to MISO in January 2002.  

Some states have begun to allow retail customers to choose their electricity' supplier, and many other states are considering retail access 
proposals. However, the experience of the state of California in instituting competition, as well as the bankruptcy filing of Enron, 
have caused delays in industry restructuring.  

Major issues that must be addressed include mitigating market poweie divestiture of generation capacits, transmission constraints, legal 
separation, refinancing of securities, modification of mortgage indentures, implementation of procedures to govern affiliate transactions, 
investments in information technology and the pricing of unbundled services, all of which have significant financial implications. Xcel 
Energy cannot predict the outcome of restructuring proceedings in the electric utility jurisdictions it serves at this time. The resolution 
of these matters may have a significant impact on the financial position, results of'operations and cash flows of Xcel Energy'. For more 
information on the delay of restructuring for SPS in Texas and New Mexico, see Note 12 to the Financial Statements.  

In addition, industry restructuring may impact the wholesale power markets, in which NRG operates. The independent system 
operators who oversee most of the wholesale power markets have in the past imposed, and may in the feuture continue to impose, 
price limitations and other mechanisms to address some of the volatility in these markets. For example, the independent system 
operator for the New York Power Pool and the California independent system operator have recently imposed price limitations.  
These types of price limitations and other mechanisms in New York, California, the New England Power Pool and elsewhere may 
adversely impact the profitability of NRG's generation facilities that sell energy into the wholesale power markets. Finally, the 
regulatory and legislative changes that have recently been enacted in a number of states in an effort to promote competition are 
novel and untested in many respects. These new approaches to the sale of electric power have very short operating histories, and 
it is nor vet clear how they will operate in times of market stress or pressure, given the extreme volatility and lack of meaningful 
lon-term price history in many of these markets and the imposition of price limitations by independent ssstem operators.  

,,,, !,,,- Industry changes also may be implemented as a result of the bankruptcy filing of Enron, a large energy company.  
Such changes may be invoked by various regulatory agencies, inclulding but not limited to the SEC, the FERC oi state regulatory 
agencies. Management is unable to predict the impact of such changes, if any, on any' component of the energy industry. See 
additional discussion in Note 15 to the Financial Statcments.  

(.,/ o, , /'•Pow , . NRG operates in and sells to the wholesale power market in California. During 2000, the inability of cer
tain California utilities to recover rising energy costs through regulated prices charged to retail customers created financial difficulties.  
The California utilities have appealed to state agencies and regulators for the opportunity to be reimbursed for costs incurred that are 
not currently recoverable through the existing rate structure. Absent such relief, some of the utilities have indicated they may be 
unable to continue to service their debt or otherwise pay' obligations, or would consider discontinuing energy service to customers to 
avoid incurring costs that are not recoverable. However, the extent and timing of such financial support that will be made available 
to California utilities is unknown at this time.  

See Note 15 to the Financial Statements for a description of lawsuits against NRG and other power producers and marketers involsing 
the California electricity markets and a discussion of Xcel Energy and NRG's receivables related to the California power market.  

( / .., ' ', o/e,'. Preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in compliance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) requires the application of appropriate technical accounting rules and guidance, as well as the use of estimates. The 
application of these policies necessarily involves judgments regarding future events, including the likelihood of success of parricular projects, 
legal and regulatory challenges and anticipated recovery of costs. These judgments, in and of themselves, could materially impact the 
financial statements and disclosures based on varying assumptions, which may be appropriate to use. In addition, the financial and oper
ating environment also may have a significant effect, not only on the operation of the business, but on the results reported through the 
application of accounting measures used in preparing the financial statements and related disclosures, even if the nature of the accounting 
policies applied have not changed. The following is a list of accounting policies that are most significant to the portrayal of Xcel Energy's 
financial condition and results, and that require management's most difficult, subjective or complex judgments. Each of these has a higher 
likelihood of resulring in materially different reported anountis cinder different conditions or using diffcrent assumptions.
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Accounting Policy Judgments/Uncertainties AffectingApplication See Additional Discussion At 

Regulatory Mechanisms & Cost Recovery - External regulator decisions, requirements Management's Discussion and Analysis: 
and regulatory environment Factors Affecting Results of Operations 

- Anticipated future regulatory decisions Utility Industry Changes and 
and their impact Restructuring 

- Impact of deregulation and competition Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
on ratemaking process and ability to Note 1, Note 12, Note 15 
recover costs 

Nuclear Plant Decommissioning - Costs of future decommissioning Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
- Availability of facilities for waste disposal Note 1, Note 15, Note 16 
- Approved methods for waste disposal 
- Useful lives of nuclear power plants 

Environmental Issues - Approved methods for cleanup Management's Discussion and Analysis: 
- Responsible party determination Factors Affecting Results of Operations 
- Governmental regulations and standards Environmental Matters 
- Results of ongoing research and develop- Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

ment regarding environmental impacts Note 1, Note 15 

Unbilled Revenue - Projecting customer energy usage Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
- Estimating impacts of weather and other Note I 

usage-affecting factors for unbilled period 

Benefit Plan Accounting - Future rate of return on pension and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
other plan assets Note 1, Note 10 

- Interest rates used in valuing benefit 
obligation 

Derivative Financial Instruments - Market conditions in the energy industry, Management's Discussion and Analysis: 
especially the effects of price volatility on Derivatives, Risk Management and Market Risk 
contractual commitments Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

- Market conditions in foreign countries Note 1, Note 13, Note 14 
- Regulatory and political environments 

and requirements 

Income Tax Reserves - Application of tax statutes and Management's Discussion and Analysis: 
regulations to transactions Factors Affecting Results of Operations 

-Anticipated future decisions of tax Tax Matters 
authorities Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

-Ability of tax authority decisions/positions Note 1, Note 8, Note 15 
to withstand legal challenges and appeals 

Uncollectible Receivables - Economic conditions affecting customers, Management's Discussion and Analysis: 
suppliers and market prices Factors Affecting Results of Operations 

- Regulatory environment and impact of California Power Market 
cost recovery constraints on customer Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
financial condition Note 1, Note 15 

- Outcome of litigation and bankruptcy 
proceedings

- Regional economic conditions surrounding 
asset operation and affecting market prices 

- Foreign currency valuation changes 
- Regulatory and political environments 

and requirements 
- Levels of future penetration and customer 

growth

Management's Discussion and Analysis: 
Factors Affecting Results of Operations 

Impact of Nonregulated Investments 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1, Note 15
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Tn/,znon,, Xcel Energy is a registered holding company under the PUHCA. As a result, Xcel Energy, its utility subsidiaries and 

certain of its nonutility subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation by the SEC under the PUHCA with respect to issuances 

and sales of securities, acquisitions and sales of certain utility properties and intra-system sales of certain goods and services. In 

addition, the PUHCA generally limits the ability of registered holding companies to acquire additional public utility systems and 

to acquire and retain businesses unrelated to the utility operations of the holding company. Xcel Energy believes that it has adequate 

authority (including financing authority) under existing SEC orders and iegulations for it and its subsidiaries to conduct their businesses 

as proposed during 2002 and xxill seek additional authorization when necessary.  

The electric and natural gas rates charged to customers ofXcel Energy's utility subsidiaries are approved by the FERC and the 

regulatory commissions in the states in which they operate. The rates are generally designed to recover plant investment, operating 

costs and an allowed return on investment. Xcel Energy requests changes in rates for utilit' services through filings with the governing 

commissions. Because comprehensive rate changes are requested infrequently in some states, changes in operating costs can affect 

Xcel Energys financial results. In addition to changes in operating costs, other factors affecting rate filings are sales growvth, conservation 

and demand-side management efforts and the cost of capital.  

Most of the retail rate schedules for Xcel Encrgy's utility subsidiaries provide for periodic adjustments to billings and revenues to 

allow for recovery of changes in the cost of fuel for electric generation, purchased energy', purchased natural gas and, in Minnesota 

and Colorado, conservation and energy management program costs. In Minnesota and Colorado, changes in electric capacity costs 

are not recovered through these rate adjustment mechanisms. For Wisconsin electric operations, where automatic cost-of-energy 

adjustment clauses are not allowed, the biennial retail rate review process and an interim fuel-cost hearing process provide the 

opportunity for rate recovery of changes in electric fuel and purchased energy costs in lieu of a cost-of-energy adjustment clause.  

In Colorado, PSCo has an ICA mechanism that allows for an equal sharing among customers and shareholders of certain fuel and 

energy costs and certain gains and losses on trading margins.  

Regulated public utilities are allowed to record as regulatory assets certain costs that are expected to be recovered from customers 

in future periods and to record as regulatory liabilities certain income items that are expected to be refunded to customers in future 

periods. In contrast, nonregulated enterprises voeuld expense these costs and recognize the income in the current period. If resrrticturing 

or other changes in the regulatory environment occur, Xcel Energy mray no longer be eligible to apply this accounting treatment 

and may be required to eliminate such regulatory assets and liabilities from its balance sheet. Such changes could have a material 

adverse effect on Xcel Energy's results of operations in the period the write-off is recorded.  

At Dec. 31, 2001, Xcel Energy' reported on its balance sheet regulatory assets of approximately S502 million and regulatory liabilities 

of approximately $484 million that svould be recognized in the income statement in the absence of regulation. In addition to a potential 

write-off of regulatory assets and liabilities, restrrictrii ing and competition may require recognition of certain stranded costs nor recover

able under market pricing. Xcel Energy' currently does not expect to write off any stranded costs unless market price levels change or cost 

levels increase above market price levels. See Notes I and 17 to the Financial Statements for further discussion of regulatory deferrals.  
ti' I?, 2•,•/•,<,/ cin', s As part of the merger approval process, Xcel Energy agreed to reduce its rates in several jurisdictions.  

The discussion below summarizes the rate reductions in Colorado, Minnesota, Texas and New Mexico.  

As part of the merger approval process in Colorado, PSCo agreed to: 

- reduce its retail electric rates by an annual rate of $11 million for the period of August 2000 through July 2002: 

- file a combined electric and natural gas rate case in 2002, with new rates effective January 2003; 

- cap merger costs associated with the electric operations at $30 million and amortize the merger costs for ratemaking purposes 

through 2002; 

- continue the electric Performance-Based Regulatory Plan (PBRP) and the Qualirs Service Plan (QSP) currently in effect through 

2006, with modifications to cap electric earnings at a 10.5 percent return on equity for 2002, to reflect no earnings sharing in 2003 

since new base rates would have recently been established, and to increase potential bill credits if quality standards are not met; and 

- develop a QSP for the natural gas operations to be effective for calendar y'ears 2002 through 2007.  

As part of the merger approval process in Minnesota, NSP-Mfinncsota agreed to: 

- reduce its Minnesota electric rates bx' $10 million annually through 2005; 

- not increase its electric rates through 2005, except under limited circuimstances; 

- not seek recovery of certain merger costs from customers; and 

- meet various quality standards.
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As part of the merger approval process in Texas, SPS agreed to: 
- guarantee annual merger savings credits of approximately $4.8 million and amortize merger costs through 2005; 
- retain the current fuel-recovery mechanism to pass along fuel cost savings to retail customers; and 
- comply with various service quality and reliability standards, covering service installations and upgrades, light replacements, 

customer service call centers and electric service reliability.  

As part of the merger approval process in New Mexico, SPS agreed to: 
- guarantee annual merger savings credits of approximately $780,000 and amortize merger costs through December 2004; 

- share net nonfuel operating and maintenance savings equally among retail customers and shareholders; 
- retain the current fuel recovery mechanism to pass along fuel cost savings to retail customers; and 
- not pass along any negative rate impacts of the merger.  

PSCo Peiforn2ance-Based Regulatory Plan The Colorado Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) established an electric PBRP under 
which PSCo operates. The major components of this regulatory plan include: 

- an annual electric earnings test with the sharing between customers and shareholders of earnings in excess of the following limits: 
- a 10.50-percent return on equity for 2002 
- no earnings sharing for 2003 

- an annual electric earnings test with the sharing of earnings in excess of the return on equity set in the 2002 rate 
case for 2004 through 2006 

- an electric QSP that provides for bill credits to customers if PSCo does not achieve certain performance targets relating to 
electric reliability and customer service through 2006; 

- a gas QSP that provides for bill credits to customers if PSCo does not achieve certain performance targets relating to gas leak 
repair time and customer service through 2007; and 

- an ICA that provides for the sharing of energy costs and savings relative to an annual baseline cost per delivered kilowatt-hour.  
According to the terms of the merger rate agreement in Colorado, the annual baseline cost will be reset in 2002, based on a 
2001 test year.  

PSCo regularly monitors and records as necessary an estimated customer refund obligation under the earnings test. In April of each 
year following the measurement period, PSCo files its proposed rate adjustment under the PBRP. The CPUC conducts proceedings to 

review and approve these rate adjustments annually. PSCo has estimated no customer refund obligation for 2001 under the earnings 
test. In November 2000, the CPUC ruled on the unresolved issues related to the 1998 earnings test that will result in the reduction 
of customer rates by $5.1 million effective January 2001.  

During 2001, PSCo settled all unresolved issues related to the 1999 and 2000 QSP electric reliability performance measure. An 
accrual for related customer refunds of $8.2 million was recorded and paid in 2001. PSCo has recorded an estimated customer 
refund obligation for the 2001 QSP electric reliability performance measure of approximately $4.2 million.  

SPS Earnings Test In Texas, until June 2001, SPS operated under an earnings test in which excess earnings were returned to the 

customer. In May 2000, SPS filed its 1999 Earnings Report with the Public Utilities Commission of Texas (PUCT), indicating 
no excess earnings. In September 2000, the PUCT staff and the Office of Public Utility Counsel filed with the PUCT a Notice 

of Disagreement, indicating adjustments to SPS calculations, which would result in excess earnings. During 2000, SPS recorded 
an estimated obligation of approximately $11.4 million for 1999 and 2000. In February 2001, the PUCT ruled on the disputed 
issues in the 1999 report and found that SPS had excess earnings of$11.7 million. This decision was appealed by SPS to the District 
Court. On Dec. 11, 2001, SPS entered into an overall settlement of-all earnings issues for 1999 through 2001, which reduced the 
excess earnings for 1999 to $7.3 million and found that there were no excess earnings for 2000 or through June 2001. The settlement 

also provided that the remaining excess earnings for 1999 could be used to offset approved transition costs that SPS is seeking to 
recover in a pending case at the PUCT. The PUCT approved the overall settlement on Jan. 10, 2002.  

•lax Mlaters As further discussed in Note 15 to the Financial Statements, a subsidiary of PSCo is working with the Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) to resolve an income-tax dispute regarding deductions for loan interest expense related to company owned life insurance 
(COLI). Late in 2001, Xcel Energy received a technical advice memorandum from the IRS, which communicated a position adverse 
to PSCo. After consultation with tax counsel, it is Xcel Energy's position that the IRS determination is not supported by tax law.  
Although the ultimate outcome is uncertain at this time, management believes the resolution of this matter will not have a material 
adverse impact on Xcel Energy's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. In addition, pending resolution of this matter, 

annual earnings will continue to include tax benefits associated with the COLI policy loan interest deductions. Should the IRS 
ultimately prevail on this issue, tax and interest payable through Dec. 31, 2001, would reduce earnings by an estimated $197 million 
(after tax), or 57 cents per share. In 2002, these tax benefits are expected to contribute approximately $31 million, or 9 cents per share, 

to Xcel Energy earnings.
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1/ a. I:,',;, Our environmental costs include payments for nuclear plant decommissioning, storage and ultimate disposal 

of spent nuclear fuel, disposal of hazardous materials and wastes, rensediation of contaminated sites and monitoring of discharges 
to the environment. A trend of greater environmental awareness and increasingly stringent regulation has caused, and may continue 
to cause, slightly higher operating expenses and capital expenditures for environmental compliance. NRG's acquisition of existing 
generation facilities will tend to increase nonutility costs for environmental compliance.  

In addition to nuclear decommissioning and spent nuclear fuel disposal expenses, costs charged to our operating expenses for 
environmental monitoring and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes were approximately: 

- $146 million in 2001 

- $ 144 million in 2000 

- S128 million in 1999 

We expect to expense approximately $161 million per year for 2002-2006 for similar costs. However, the precise timing and 

amount of environmental costs, including those for site reisediation and disposal of hazardous materials, are currently unknown.  

Capital expenditures ois environmental improvements at otr facilities, which include the costs of constructing spent nuclear fuel 
storage casks, were approximately: 

- $136 million in 2001 

- S57 million in 2000 

- 5126 million in 1999 

We expect to incur approximately $41 million in capital expenditures for compliance with environmental regulations in 2002 
and approximately $156 million for 2002-2006. See Notes 15 and 16 to the Financial Statements for furthler discussion of our 
environmental contingencies.  

"o 0!/ V o 'a "\,••',)! iJ 1 ,''. Xcel Energys earnings from nonregtlated operations have increased significantly due to acqiisi
tions, primarily at NRG. Xcel Energy expects to continue investing in nonregulated projects, including domestic and international 
power production projects through NRG, natural gas marketing and trading through e prime and construction projects through 
Utility Engineering. Xcel Energys nonregulated businesses may carry a higher level ofi risk than its traditional utility businesses due 
to a number of factors, including: 

- competition, operating risks, dependence oni certain suppliers and customers, and domestic and foreign environmental and 

energy regulations; 

- partnership and government actions and foreign government, political, economic and currenci risks; and 

- development risks, including uncertainties prior to final legal closing.  

Xcel Energyss earnings from nonregulated subsidiaries. other than NRG, also include investments in international projects (primarils 
in Argentina) through Xcel Energy, International, and broadband communications systems through Seren. Management currently 
intends to hold and operate these investments, but is evaluating their strategic Fit in Xcel Energy's business portfolio. As of Dec. 31, 2001, 
Xcel Energy's investment in Seren was approximately $232 million. Seren had capitalized $190 million for plant in service and had 
incurred another S60 million for construction work in progress for these systemns at Dec. 31, 2001. Xcel Energy International's 
investment in Argentina is $102 million. Given the political and economic climate in Argentina, Xcel Energy continues to closely 
monitor the investment for asset impairment. Currentl, management believes that no impairment exists.  

Some ofXcel Energss nonregulared subsidiaries have project investments (as listed in Note 11 to the Financial Statements) consisting 
of minority interests, which may limit the financial risk, but also limit the ability to control the development or operation of the 
projects. In addition, significant expenses may be incurred for projects pursued by Xcel Enterg '.s subsidiaries that do not materialize.  
The aggregate effect of these factors creates the potential for volatility in the nonregulated component of Xcel Energys earnings.  
Accordinsgly, the historical operating results of Xcel Energyss nonregulated businesses may not necessarily be indicative of fuure 

operating results.  

Io/ ',', Inflation at its current level is not expected to materially affect Xcel Energys prices or returns to shareholders. Since late 
2001, the Argentine peso has been significantly devaltUed due to the inflationary Argentine economy. Xcel Energy will continue to 
experience related currency translation adjustments through Xcel Energsy International. See further discussion at Note 15 to the 
Financial Statements.  

PE\D KG ACCOUNT!NG CHANGES 

,S/;q.'ý V. /I In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) approved the issuance of SFAS No. 142 -"Goodwill 

and Other Intangible Assets." This statement requires new accounting for intangible assets, including goodwill. Intangible assets with 
finite lives will be amortized over their economic useful lives and periodically reviewed for impairment. Goodwill will no longer be 
amortized to comply wvith the provisions of SFAS No. 142. Instead, goodwill and intangible assets that will not be amortized are to be
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tested for impairment annually and on an interim basis if an event occurs or a circumstance changes between annual tests that may 
reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value. An impairment test is required to be performed within six months of 
the date of adoption, and the first annual impairment test must be performed in the year the statement is initially adopted.  

As required, Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries adopted SFAS No. 142 on Jan. 1, 2002. At Dec. 31, 2001, Xcel Energy had unamortized 

intangible assets of $166 million, including $69 million of goodwill, mainly at its nonregulated subsidiaries. These amounts and all 
intangible assets and goodwill acquired in the future will be accounted for under the new accounting standard. The new accounting 
standard is expected to initially increase earnings by an immaterial amount due to the elimination of regular amortization expense, 
but in the future could cause periodic reductions in earnings when impairment write-downs of goodwill and/or intangible assets 
are required. Expense recognized for amortization of goodwill in 2001 was $4 million. Xcel Energy does not expect to recognize 
any asset impairments as a result of adopting SIAS No. 142 in the first quarter of 2002.  

SFAS No. 143 In June 2001, the FASB approved the issuance of SPAS No. 143 - "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations." 
This statement will require Xcel Energy to record its future nuclear plant decommissioning obligations as a liability at fair value 
with a corresponding increase to the carrying value of the related long-lived asset. The liability will be increased to its present value 

each period, and the capitalized cost will be depreciated over the useful life of the related long-lived asset. If at the end of the asset's 
life the recorded liability differs from the actual obligations paid, SIAS No. 143 requires that a gain or loss be recognized at that time.  

Xcel Energy currently follows industry practice by ratably accruing the costs for decommissioning over the approved cost recovery 

period and including the accruals in accumulated depreciation. At Dec. 31, 2001, Xcel Energy recorded and recovered in rates 
$623 million of decommissioning obligations and had estimated discounted decommissioning cost obligations of $878 million.  

If Xcel Energy adopted the standard on Jan. 1, 2002, the initial value of the liability, including cumulative interest expense through 

that date, would have been approximately $757 million, with a corresponding increase to net plant assets of approximately $625 million.  
The resulting cumulative effect adjustment for unrecognized depreciation and other expenses under the new standard is approximately 
$132 million. Management expects that the entire transition amount would be recoverable in rates and, therefore, would recognize an 
additional regulatory asset upon adoption of SPAS No. 143 rather than incur a cumulative effect charge against earnings.  

SPAS No. 143 also will affect Xcel Energy's accrued plant removal costs for other generation, transmission and distribution facilities 

for its utility subsidiaries. Xcel Energy expects that these costs, which have yet to be estimated, will be reclassified from accumulated 
depreciation to regulatory liabilities based on the treatment of these costs in rates. Xcel Energy plans to adopt SPAS No. 143 as 

required on Jan. 1, 2003.  

SFAS No. 144 In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144 - "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived 
Assets," which supercedes previous guidance for measurement of asset impairments. SFAS No. 144 was adopted by Xcel Energy as 
required on Jan. 1, 2002, and will be applied on a prospective basis. Xcel Energy does not expect to recognize any asset impairments 
as a result of adopting SPAS No. 144 in the first quarter of 2002.  

DERIVATIVES, RISK MANAGEMENT AND MARKET RISK 

Business and Operational Risk Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries are exposed to commodity price risks in their generation, retail 

distribution and energy trading operations. In certain jurisdictions, purchased power expenses and natural gas costs are recovered 
on a dollar-for-dollar basis. However, in other jurisdictions, we are exposed to market price risk for the purchase and sale of electric 
energy and natural gas. In such jurisdictions, we recover our purchased power expenses and natural gas costs based on fixed price 
limits or under negotiated sharing mechanisms.  

Commodity price risk is managed by entering into purchase and sales commitments for electric power and natural gas, long-term 
contracts for coal supplies and fuel oil and derivative financial instruments. Xcel Energy's risk management policy allows us to manage the 
market price risk within our rate-regulated operations to the extent such exposure exists. Management is limited under the policy to enter 
into only transactions that reduce market price risk where the rate regulation jurisdiction does not already provide for dollar-for-dollar 
recovery. One exception to this policy exists in which we use various physical contracts and derivative instruments to reduce the cost of 
natural gas we provide to our retail customers even though the regulatory jurisdiction provides dollar-for-dollar recovery of actual costs.  
This jurisdiction allows us to recover the gains and losses on derivative instruments used to reduce our exposure to market price risk.  

Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries are exposed to market price risk for the sale of electric energy and the purchase of fuel resources, including 
coal, natural gas and fuel oil used to generate the electric energy within its nonregulated operations. Xcel Energy manages this market price 
risk by entering into firm power sales agreements for approximately 60 to 75 percent of its electric capacity and energy from each genera

tion facility, using contracts with terms ranging from one to 25 years. In addition, we manage the market price risk covering the fuel 
resource requirements to provide the electric energy by entering into purchase commitments and derivative instruments for coal, natural gas 

and fuel oil as needed to meet fixed priced electric energy requirements. Xcel Energy's risk management policy allows us to manage the 
market price risks and provides guidelines for the level of price risk exposure that is acceptable within our operations.
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Xcel Energy is exposed to market price risk for the sale of electric energy and the purchase of fuel resources used to generate the electric 

energy from our equity method investments that own electric operations. Xcel Energy manages this market price risk through our 

involvement with the management committee or board of directors of each of these ventures. Our risk management policy does not 

cover the activities conducted by the ventures. However, other policies are adopted by the ventures as necessary and mandated by the 

equity owners.  

lnrce~st Rate Risk Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates where we are required to enter into variable 

rate debt obligations to fund certain power projects being developed or purchased. Exposure to interest rate fluctuations is mitigated by 

entering into derivative instruments known as interest rate swaps, caps, collars and put or call options. These contracts reduce exposure to 

interest rate volatility and result in the Company having primarily fixed rate debt obligations when taking into account the combination of 

the variable rate debt and the interest rate derivative instrument. Xcel Energy's risk management policy allows management to reduce its 

interest rate exposure from variable rate debt obligations.  

At Dec. 31, 2001 and 2000, a 100 basis point change in the benchmark rate on Xcel Energy's variable debt would impact net income 

by approximately $29.9 million and $15.8 million, respectively. See Note 13 to the Financial Statements for a discussion of Xcel Energy 

and subsidiaries' interest rate swaps.  

(Cirý'enic), Ixcisange Risk Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries have certain investments in foreign countries exposing us to foreign currency 

exchange risk. The foreign currency exchange risk includes the risk relative to the recover), of our net investment in a project as well as 

the risk relative to the earnings and cash flows generated from such operations. Xcel Energy manages its exposure to changes in foreign 

currency by entering into derivative instruments as determined by management. Our risk management policy provides for this risk 

management activity.  

As discussed in Note 18 to the Financial Statements, Xcel Energy has substantial investments in foreign projects (through NRG and other 

subsidiaries), which expose us to currency translation risk. Cumulative translation adjustments (included in the Consolidated Statement 

of Stockholders' Equity as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income) experienced to date have been material and may continue to 

occur at levels significant to our financial position. As of Dec. 31, 200 1, NRG had two foreign currency exchange contracts with notional 

amounts of $46.3 million. If the contracts had been discontinued on Dec. 31, 2001, NRG would have owed the counterparties approx

imately $2.4 million.  

1•eldign Risak Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries conduct various trading operations and power marketing activities including the purchase 

and sale of electric capacity and energy and natural gas. The trading operations are conducted both in the United States and Europe with 

primary focus on specific market regions where trading knowledge and experience have been obtained. Xcel Energy's risk management 

policy allows management to conduct the trading activity within approved guidelines and limitations as approved by our risk manage

ment committee made up of management personnel not involved in the trading operations.  

Our trading operations and power marketing activities measure the outstanding risk exposure to price changes on transactions, contracts 

and obligations that have been entered into but not closed using an industry standard methodology known as Value-at-Risk (VaR). VaR 

expresses the potential loss in fair value on the outstanding transactions, contracts and obligations over a particular period of time, 

with a given confidence interval under normal market conditions. Xcel Energy utilizes the variance/covariance approach in calculating 

VaR. The VaR model employs a 95-percent confidence interval level based on historical price movement, lognormal price distribution 

assumption and various holding periods of five days and three days for electricity and two days for natural gas.  

As of Dec. 31, 2001, the calculated VaRs were: 
Year Ended During 2001 

(Millions of dollars) Dec. 31, 2001 Average High Low 

Operations 
Short-term wholesale - North (a) 1.00 0.81 1.68 0.09 

Short-term wholesale - South (b) 8.11 9.34 13.48 3.10 
Electric commodity trading 0.52 1.71 7.37 0.16 

Gas commodity trading 0.16 0.15 0.52 0.01 

Gas retail marketing 0.69 0.39 0.94 0.13 
NRG power marketing 71.70 78.80 126.60 58.60 

(a) Short-term wholesale - North primarily represents NSP -Ainnesota.  

(b) Short-term wholesale - South primarily represents PSCo. Measurement of short-teem wholesale - South VaR began in October 2001.
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As of Dec. 31, 2000, the VaRs were: 
Year Ended During 2000 

(Millions of dollars) Dec. 31, 2000 Average High Low 

Operations 

Short-term wholesale - North (c) 0.68 0.36 2.29 0.01 

Electric commodity trading (c) 2.25 0.69 3.53 0.04 

Gas commodity trading (c) 0.01 0.11 0.42 0.01 

Gas retail marketing (c) 0.21 0.22 0.60 0.04 

NRG power marketing 116.00 80.00 125.00 50.00 

(c) Amounts have been restated for consistency with Dec. 31, 2001, assuming similar holding periods in the VaR calculations.  

Previously, Xcel Energy calculated VaR using a 21-day holding period, as shown below. As markets mature and gain liquidity, shorter 

holding periods more accurately reflect the risk. In 2001, Xcel Energy changed its holding period for natural gas from 21 days to two 

days because the gas trading market is mature and traders can liquidate positions in one or two days. The electricity market is still rela

tively immature and less liquid than the gas market, so Xcel Energy uses a five-day holding period in its electricity VaR calculation.  

Xcel Energy's revised holding periods are generally consistent with current industry standard practice.  

As of Dec. 31, 2000, the calculated VaRs were: 
Year Ended During 2000 

(Millions of dollars) Dec. 31, 2000 Average High Low 

Operations 
Short-term wholesale - North 1.40 0.73 4.70 0.01 

Electric commodity trading 4.62 1.42 7.23 0.08 

Gas commodity trading 0.03 0.35 1.37 0.02 

Gas retail marketing 0.69 0.70 1.94 0.12 

Credit Risk In addition to the risks discussed previously, Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk in our risk management 

activities. Credit risk relates to the risk of loss resulting from the nonperformance by a counterparty of its contractual obligations. As 

Xcel Energy continues to expand its natural gas and power marketing and trading activities, its exposure to credit risk and counterparty 

default may increase. Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries maintain credit policies intended to minimize overall credit risk and actively 

monitor these policies to reflect changes and scope of operations.  

Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries conduct standard credit reviews for all of our counterparties. Xcel Energy employs additional credit 

risk control mechanisms when appropriate, such as letters of credit, parental guarantees and standardized master netting agreements 

that allow for offsetting of positive and negative exposures. The credit exposure is monitored and, when necessary, the activity with a 

specific counterparty is limited until credit enhancement is provided. See Note 15 to the Financial Statements for a discussion of 

NRG's receivables related to the California power market and a discussion of our exposure to Enron's bankruptcy.  

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

CASH FLOWS 

(Millions of dollars) 2001 2000 1999 

Net cash provided by operating activities $1,584 $1,408 $1,325 

Cash provided by operating activities increased during 2001, compared with 2000, primarily due to higher net income, depreciation 

and improved working capital. Cash provided by operating activities increased during 2000, compared with 1999, primarily due to 

improved working capital.  

(Millions of dollars) 2001 2000 1999 

Net cash used in investing activities $(5,168) $(3,347) $(2,953) 

Cash used in investing activities increased during 2001, compared with 2000, primarily due to increased levels of nonregulated capital 

expenditures and asset acquisitions, primarily at NRG. The increase was partially offset by Xcel Energy's sale of the majority of its 

investment in Yorkshire Power. Cash used in investing activities increased during 2000, compared with 1999, primarily due to 

acquisitions of existing generating facilities by NRG.
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(Millions of dollars) 

Net cash provided by financing activities

2001 2000 

$3,713 $2,016

Cash provided by financing activities increased during 2001, compared with 2000, primarily due to increased short-term borrowings and 
net long-term debt issuances, mainly to fund NRG acquisitions. Cash provided by financing activities increased during 2000, compared 
with 1999, primarily due to the issuance of debt to finance NRG asset acquisitions in 2000.  

See discussion of trends, commitments and uncertainties with the potential for future impact on cash flow and liquidity under Capital Sources.  

CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 

C szpita' I pr'n itnrsa toir/Aooirgii/ari'lhdviiius The estimated cost as of Dec. 31,2001, of the capital expenditure programs of 
Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries and other capital requirements for the years 2002, 2003 and 2004 are shown in the table belos.

(Million of dollars) 

Electric utility 

Gas utility 
Common utility 

Total utilit
NRG 
Other nonregtilated 

Total capital expenditures 
Sinking funds and debt maturities 
Total capital requirements

2002 

S 851 
141 
128 

1,120 

1,600 

73 
2,793 

682 
$3,475 S

2003 2004 

878 $ 908 
107 111 
114 118 

1,099 1,137 

1,500 1,500 
36 37 

2,635 2,674 

719 335 
.3,354 $3,009

The capital expenditure programs of Xcel Energy are subject to continuing review and modification. Actual utility construction 
expenditures may vary from the estimates due to changes in electric and natural gas projected load growth, the desired reserve margin 
and the availability of purchased power, as well as alternative plans for meeting Xcel Energy's long-term energy needs. In addition, 
Xcel Energy's ongoing evaluation of merger, acquisition and divestiture opportunities to support corporate strategies, address 
restructuring requirements and comply with future requirements to install emission-control equipment may impact actual capital 
requirements. For more information, see Notes 12 and 15 to the Financial Statements.  

Xcel Energy's subsidiaries expect to invest significant amounts in nonregulated projects in the future. Financing requirements for non
regulated project investments, including NRG, will vary depending on the success, timing and level of involvement in projects currently 
under consideration. These investments could cause significant changes to the capital requirement estimates for nonregulated projects 
and property. Long-term financing may be required for such investments. Xcel Energy's investment in exempt wholesale generators and 
foreign utility companies, which includes NRG and other Xcel Energy subsidiaries, is currently limited to 50 percent of consolidated 
retained earnings, as a result of the PUHCA restrictions. At Dec. 31, 2001, such investments were 37.7 percent of consolidated retained 
earnings. Xcel Energy has requested an increase in the limit to 100 percent in the first quarter of 2002.  

NRG expects to invest approximately $1.6 billion in 2002 for nonregulated projects and property, which include acquisitions and project 
investments. NRG's future capital requirements may vary significantly. For 2002, NRGs capital requirements reflect expected acquisitions 
of existing generation facilities, including FirstEnergy Corp. generating assets and the Conectiv fossil assets. This level of NRG spending 
for 2002 (and the levels shown in the table above for 2002 through 2004) reflect a lower forecast after announcement of Xcel Energy's 
tender offer for NRG shares on Feb. 15, 2002. See further discussion in Note 19 to the Financial Statements.  

Contractual Ob! )bbrrons rd Ot/er Commirme's Xcel Energy has a variety of contractual obligations and other commercial commitments 
that represent prospective requirements in addition to its capital expenditure programs. The following is a summarized table of contractual 
obligations. See additional discussion in the Consolidated Statements of Capitalization and Notes 3, 4, 13 and 15 to the Financial Statements.

MThousands of'dollars) 
Contractual obligations 7ital Less than I -year

Payments Due by Period 
1-3 years 4-5 years After 5 years

Long-term debt 
Capital lease obligations 
Operating leases 
Unconditional purchase obligations 
Other long-term obligations 
Short-term debt 
Other short-term liabilities 
Total contractual cash obligations

$ 12,195,472 
1,438,000 

330,331 
12,430,361 

918,900 
2,224,812 

11,500 
$29,549,376

S 657,518 

77,000 

53,887 
3,124,290 

50,676 
2,224,812 

11,500 
$6,199,683

S1,009,005 
148,000 

99,797 
2,244,543 

93,743

$2,927,454 
140,000 

92,557 

5,495,528 
88,235

S 7,601,495 

1,073,000 
84,090 

1,566,000 
686,246

$3,595,088 $8,743,774 $11,010,831
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Thousands of dollars) Total Amounts Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period 

Other commercial commitments Committed Less than 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years Over 5 years 

Lines of credit $ - $ - $ - $ $ 

Standby letters of credit 222,287 215,318 6,969 

Guarantees 1,871,930 275,663 737,195 63,686 795,386 
Srt nAhv re rrchase nbligarions .....
Other commercial commitments 
Total commercial commitments

$2,094,217 $490,981 $744,164 $63,686 $795,386

Common Stock Dividends Xcel Energy adopted a dividend of $1.50 per share on an annual basis for 2001. Future dividend levels 

will be dependent upon Xcel Energy's results of operations, financial position, cash flows and other factors, and will be evaluated by 

the Xcel Energy board of directors.  

CAPITAL SOURCES 

Xcel Energy expects to meet future financing requirements by periodically issuing long-term debt, short-term debt, common stock and 

preferred securities to maintain desired capitalization ratios. As a result of its registration as a holding company under the PUHCA, Xcel 

Energy is required to maintain a common equity ratio of 30 percent or higher in its consolidated capital structure. For this purpose, 

common equity (including minority interest) at Dec. 31, 2001 was 30.4 percent of total capitalization. Consolidated project-related, 

nonrecourse debt at the subsidiary level is included in calculating the overall capital structure of Xcel Energy. As a result, Xcel Energy 

may experience constraints on available capital sources that may be affected by factors including earnings levels, project acquisitions and 

the financing actions of our subsidiaries.  

Over the long term, Xcel Energy's equity investments in and acquisitions of nonregulated projects may be financed at the nonregulated 

subsidiary level from internally generated funds or the issuance of subsidiary debt. The financing needs are subject to continuing 

review and can change depending on market and business conditions and changes, if any, in the construction programs and other 

capital requirements of Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries.  

Short-Term Funding Sources Xcel Energy uses a number of sources to fulfill short-term funding needs. Primary among these is operating 

cash flow, but also included are short-term borrowing arrangements such as notes payable, commercial paper and bank lines of credit. The 

amount and timing of short-term funding needs depend in large part on financing needs for utility construction expenditures and non

regulated project investments, as discussed previously in Capital Requirements. Another significant short-term funding need is the dividend 

payment requirement, as discussed previously in Common Stock Dividends.  

Operating cash flow as a source of short-term funding is reasonably likely to be affected by such operating factors as weather; regulatory 

requirements, including rate recovery of costs, environmental regulation compliance and industry deregulation; changes in the trends 

for energy prices and supply; as well as operational uncertainties that are difficult to predict. See further discussion of such factors 

under Income Statement Analysis and Factors Affecting Results of Operations.  

Short-term borrowing as a source of short-term funding is affected by access to reasonably priced capital markets. This varies based 

on financial performance and existing debt levels. If current debt levels are perceived to be at or higher than standard industry levels 

or those levels that can be sustained by current operating levels, access to reasonable short-term borrowings could be limited. These 

factors are evaluated by credit rating agencies that review Xcel Energy and its subsidiary operations on an ongoing basis. The levels 

of risk from limited access to cost-effective capital is significantly higher at NRG, which could result in higher short-term funding 

needs at Xcel Energy if NRG funding requires an investment by Xcel Energy. For additional information on Xcel Energy's short

term borrowing arrangements, see Note 3 to the Financial Statements.  

Xcel Energy's access to capital markets is dependent in part on credit agency reviews. In February 2002, Moody's Investor Services 

placed Xcel Energy's long-term debt and preferred securities ratings under review for possible downgrade, reflecting possible pressure 

on Xcel Energy's credit profile resulting from NRG restructuring. In December 2001, Moody's placed NRG's corporate securities 

under review for possible downgrade following NRG's announcement of its planned acquisition of generation assets from FirstEnergy 

Corp. According to Moody's, the review will address NRG's ability to finance the acquisition and the effect of the acquisition on 

NRG's liquidity and coverage ratios. In December 2001, Fitch Ratings placed Xcel Energy on ratings "watch negative." According to 

Fitch, the ratings watch for Xcel Energy reflects the potential heavy capital needs of NRG and the possibility that Xcel Energy may have 

to provide funding or credit support on behalf of NRG. The securities of NSP-Minnesota, NSP-Wisconsin and SPS also were placed on 

ratings "watch negative" in consideration of Fitch's policy regarding the linkage between ratings of subsidiaries and the parent. In February 

2002, Fitch reaffirmed the status ofXcel Energy's rating. These ratings reflect the views of Moody's and Fitch. A security rating is not a 

recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and is subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating company.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A!RG Pub/ic u)ff;irnog During the second quarter of 2000, NRG completed an initial public offering (IPO) of approximately 32.4 million 
shares priced at $15 per share. Upon completion of the IPO, Xcel Energy owned approximately 147.6 million shares of NRG class A 
common stock, or 82 percent of NRG's outstanding shares. The offering's net proceeds of approximately $454 million were used exclu
sively by NRG for general corporate purposes, including funding a portion of NRG's project investments and other capital requirements 
for 2000. No proceeds of this offering were received by Xcel Energy. A portion of the proceeds to NRG was accounted for as a gain 
related to the reduction of Xcel Energy's ownership in NRG. This gain of $216 million was not recorded in earnings, but consistent 
with Xcel Energy's accounting policy, was recorded as an increase in the common stock premium component of stockholders' equity.  

In March 2001, NRG completed a secondary public offering of 18.4 million shares of common stock at a price of $27 per share and 
issued 11.5 million corporate units at a price of $25 per unit. The net proceeds from the offering were approximately $753 million, 
including $478 million recorded in NRG's common equity and $275 million recorded in long-term debt instruments of NRG. The 
offering's net proceeds were used exclusively by NRG for general corporate purposes, including funding a portion of NRG's project 
investments and other capital requirements. No proceeds of these offerings were received by Xcel Energy. This secondary offering caused 
Xcel Energy's ownership interest in NRG to decline from approximately 82 percent to approximately 74 percent. A portion of the 
proceeds to NRG ($242 million) was accounted for as a gain related to the reduction of Xcel Energy's ownership in NRG, and was recorded 
as an increase in the common stock premium component of stockholders' equity. Management has concluded that these offerings of 
NRG stock do not affect XceI Energy's ability to use the pooling-of-interests method of accounting for the merger of NSP and NCE.  

As a result of the merger to form Xcel Energy, constraints related to the accounting treatment as a pooling-of-interests transaction limit 
various actions, including significant divestitures that can be taken or even contemplated until August 2002. As a part of an evaluation of 
potential strategies and to more fully respond to investor questions, during 2001 management began investigating restructuring options 
and constraints. In mid-2001, it was determined that an additional restriction to future divestitures exists. Under current tax rules, a 
June 1998 call of PSCo nonvoting preferred stock that occurred shortly after the merger of PSCo and SPS to form NCE triggered a 
five-year waiting period beginning in June 1998 for any tax-free spin-offs. After consoltation with legal counsel and tax advisors, Xcei 
Energy concluded that this restriction would prevent a tax-free spin of subsidiary stock, including NRG, until June 2003.  

In December 2001, the Xcel Energy board recommended that Xcel Energy management continue to monitor all aspects of the future 
funding and structure of NRG, including among other things, the amount and timing of expected capital expenditures by NRG; the 
issuance by NRG of additional debt or public equity and the infusion by Xcel Energy of additional equity into NRG; and examine 
the possible reacquisition by Xcel Energy of the outstanding public NRG stock. In February 2002, Xcel Energy announced that its board 
of directors approved plans to commence an exchange offer by which Xcel Energy would acquire all of the outstanding publicly held 
shares of NRG in exchange for shares of Xcel Energy common stock. See further discussion in Note 19 to the Financial Statements.  

.\'RG !n~mzciin (.dpahbi/ires As part of the independent power producer sector, NRG has recently been experiencing tightening credit 
standards. As discussed in Note 19 to the Financial Statements, in response to this situation, Xcel Energy is planning to provide NRG 
with financial support. In addition, NRG is expected to slow its project growth to lessen the need for external financing in the next 
few years. If the plan is carried out as proposed, we anticipate that NRG's internally generated cash, available credit and borrowing 
capabilities will be sufficient to meet its financing needs in addition to Xcel Energy equity support.  

NRG and its subsidiaries have entered into a number of credit facilities. These credit facilities provided access to a total of $4.8 billion 
and DEM 204 million of funding at Dec. 31, 2001; at that date, borrowings of S2.9 billion were outstanding pursuant to these 
facilities. See further discussion in Notes 3 and 4 to the Financial Statements. In addition, NRG has filed a shelf registration to 
provide access to long-term debt financing, as discussed later.  

hoa•ptac of,\R(G Crdit v Rtaini' DZeingrade NRG's unsecured credit rating is BBB- by Standard & Poor's and Baa3 by Moody's Investors 
Service. As noted previously, in December 2001 Moody's placed NRG's credit rating on review for potential downgrade. If Moody's subse
quently downgraded NRG, many of the corporate guarantees and commitments that it currently has in place would need to be supported 
with letters of credit or cash collateral within five to 30 days. As of Dec. 31, 2001, the amount of collateral required if NRRG were downgraded 
was approximately $960 million. Of the $960 million in collateral that could be required, approximately $200 million relates to NRG's 
guarantees of debt service reserve accounts required by some of its project-level financings, approximately 5400 million relates to NRG's 
power marketing activities, and $360 million would be required to support the $2-billion NRG Finance Co. credit line. Because NRG places 
a maximum amount on all of its guarantees in place to support power marketing activities, and because of the relatively small number of 
margin accounts in place, even very large changes in market conditions would not have a material impact on the amount of collateral that 
would be required for NRG's power marketing in the event of a downgrade.  

In the event of a downgrade, NRG would expect to meet the collateral obligations with cash on hand, available credit lines provided under 
the revolving line of credit, liquidity support from Xcel Energy and potentially from the issuance of debt into the capital markets. NRG's 
revolving line of credit is expected to be increased from $500 million to $1 billion in March 2002. In addition, NRG will maintain its 
$125-million letter of credit facility and plans to secure a funded $125-million credit facility for a total credit facility of $1.25 billion to be 
available in 2002.
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The Contingent Equity Guarantee could increase to a maximum of $850 million by the end of 2002 as NRG further utilizes the 

capacity of the NRG Finance Co. credit line. Therefore, the amount of collateral required by the end of 2002 could increase to 

approximately $1.45 billion.  

Registration Statements Xcel Energy's Articles of Incorporation authorize the issuance of 1 billion shares of common stock. As of 

Dec. 31, 2001, Xcel Energy had approximately 346 million shares of common stock outstanding. In addition, Xcel Energy's 

Articles of Incorporation authorize the issuance of 7 million shares of $100 par value preferred stock. On Dec. 31, 200 1, Xcel 

Energy had approximately 1 million shares of preferred stock outstanding. Registered securities available for issuance are as follows: 

In February 2002, Xcel Energy filed a registration statement for the sale of $1 billion of common stock and debt securities, of which 

a currently estimated minimum of $400 million (representing 17.5 million shares) is planned to be issued as common stock in the 

first quarter of 2002 to provide financial support to NRG and pay down short-term debt. An expansion of the issuance could occur 

based on various market factors. See Note 19 to the Financial Statements. In addition, Xcel Energy has an effective shelf registration 

statement with the SEC under which $400 million of senior debt securities are available for issuance.  

In April 2001, NSP-Minnesota filed a $600-million long-term debt shelf registration with the SEC.  

PSCo has an effective shelf registration statement with the SEC under which $300 million of senior debt securities are available 

for issuance.  

In June 2001, NRG filed a shelf registration with the SEC to sell up to $2 billion in debt securities, common and preferred stock, 

warrants and other securities. NRG expects to use the net proceeds for general corporate purposes, which may include the financing 

and development of new facilities, working capital and debt reduction. NRG has approximately $1.5 billion remaining available 

under this shelf registration.  

REPORTS OF MANAGEMENT AND INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 

Management is responsible for the preparation and integrity of Xcel Energy's financial statements. The financial statements have 

been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and necessarily include some amounts that are based on 

management's estimates and judgment.  

To fulfill its responsibility, management maintains a strong internal control structure, supported by formal policies and procedures 

that are communicated throughout Xcel Energy. Management also maintains a staff of internal auditors who evaluate the adequacy 

of and investigate the adherence to these controls, policies and procedures.  

Our independent public accountants have audited the financial statements and have rendered an opinion as to the statements' fairness 

of presentation, in all material respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States. During 

the audit, they obtained an understanding of Xcel Energy's internal control structure and performed tests and other procedures to 

the extent required by generally accepted auditing standards in the United States.  

The board of directors pursues its oversight role with respect to Xcel Energy's financial statements through the Audit Committee, 

which is comprised solely of nonmanagement directors. The committee meets periodically with the independent public accountants, 

internal auditors and management to ensure that all are properly discharging their responsibilities. The committee approves the scope 

of the annual audit and reviews the recommendations the independent public accountants have for improving the internal control 

structure. The board of directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, engages the independent public accountants.  

Both the independent public accountants and the internal auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee.  

WAYNE H. BRUNETTI EDWARD J. MCINTYRE XCEL ENERGY INC.  

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Minneapolis, Minnesota 

February 21, 2002

XCEL ENERGY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 35
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To Xcel Energy Inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of capitalization of Xcel Energy Inc. (a Minnesota 
corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' 
equity' and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of NRG Energy, Inc. for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 
2000, included in the consolidated financial statements of Xcel Energy Inc., which statements reflect total assets and revenues of 
45 percent and 18 percent for 2001, respectively, and total assets and revenues of 28 percent and 18 percent for 2000, respectively, 
of the related consolidated totals. We also did not audit the consolidated financial statements of Northern States Power Co., for the 
year ended December 31, 1999, included in the consolidated financial statements of Xcel Energy Inc., which statements reflect 
total revenues of 44 percent of the related consolidated totals. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have 
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for NRG Energy, Inc. and Northern States 
Power Co. for the periods described above, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion.  

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Xcel Energy Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of 
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.  

As discussed in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2001 Xcel Energy Inc. and subsidiaries 
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity," 
which changed its method of accounting for certain commodity contracts and other derivatives.  

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 

February 21, 2002
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of NRG Energy, Inc.: 

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of income, of stockholders' equity and cash 

flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of NRG Energy, Inc. and its subsidiaries (not presented separately 
herein) at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the 

period ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards 

generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 

made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 

basis for our opinion.  

As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, 

"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" on January 1, 2001.  

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 

February 21, 2002 

To the Shareholders of Xcel Energy Inc.: 

In our opinion, the consolidated statements of income, of common stockholders' equity and of cash flows for the year ended 

December 31, 1999 of Northern States Power Co. and its subsidiaries (not presented separately herein) present fairly, in all material 

respects, the results of operations and cash flows of Northern States Power Co. and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 

31, 1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements 

are the responsibility of the company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 

and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 

January 31, 2000, except as to Note 2, 

which is as of February 22, 2000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year ended Dec. 31 
(Thou sands of dol/ars, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Electric utility S 6,394,737 $ 5,674,485 $4,921,612 
Gas utility 2,052,651 1,468,880 1,141,429 
Electric and gas trading 3,186,850 2,061,839 951,490 
Nonregulated and other 3,176,896 2,203,878 710,871 
Equiny earnings from investments in affiliates 217,070 182,714 112,124 

Total operating revenues 15,028,204 11,591,796 7,837,526 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Electric fuel and purchased power- utility 3,171,660 2,580,723 1,967,335 
Cost of gas sold and transported - utilin, 1,517,557 948,145 683,455 
Electric and gas trading costs 3,097,601 2,020,482 947,144 
Cost of sales - nonregulated and other 1,656,522 1,006,587 309,553 
Other operating and maintenance expenses - utility 1,506,039 1,446,122 1,376,690 
Other operating and maintenance expenses - nonregulated 807,955 636,280 276,146 
Depreciation and amortization 949,200 792,395 679,851 
Taxes (other than income taxes) 316,492 351,412 360,916 
Special charges (see Note 2) 62,230 241,042 31,114 

Total operating expenses 13,085,256 10,023,188 6,632,204 
Operating income 1,942,948 1,568,608 1,205,322 

Interest income and other nonoperating income - net of other expenses 72,161 18,639 1,134 

INTEREST CHARGES AND FINANCING COSTS: 

Interest charges - net of amounts capitalized 782,399 657,305 414,277 
Distributions on redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trusts 38,800 38,800 38,800 

Total interest charges and financing costs 821,199 696,105 453,077 
Income before income taxes, minority interest and extraordinary items 1,193,910 891,142 753,379 
Income taxes 336,723 304,865 179,673 
Minority interest 72,508 40,489 2,773 
Income before extraordinary items 784,679 545,788 570,933 
Extraordinary items, net of income taxes of $4,807 and ($8,549), 

respectively (see Note 12) 10,287 (18,960) 
Net income 794,966 526,828 570,933 
Dividend requirements on preferred stock 4,241 4,241 5,292 
Earnings available for common shareholders $ 790,725 $ 522,587 $ 565,641 

WEICHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING T-iOUSANOSi: 

Basic 342,952 337,832 331,943 
Diluted 343,742 338,111 332,054 

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC: 

Income before extraordinary items $ 2.28 S 1.60 $ 1.70 

Extraordinary items (see Note 12) 0.03 (0.06) 
Earnings per share $ 2.31 $ 1.54 $ 1.70 

EARNINGS PER SHARE - DILUTED 

Income before extraordinary items $ 2.27 $ 1.60 $ 1.70 
Extraordinary items (see Note 12) 0.03 (0.06) 
Earnings per share $ 2.30 $ 1.54 $ 1.70 

See N'otes to Coneolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Thousands of dollars) 2001
Year ended Dec. 31 

2000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Nuclear fuel amortization 
Deferred income taxes 
Amortization of investment tax credits 
Allowance for equity funds used during construction 
Undistributed equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 
Gain on sale of nonregulated projects 
Special charges - not requiring (using) cash 
Conservation incentive accrual adjustments 
Unrealized gain on derivative financial instruments 
Extraordinary items - net of tax (see Note 12) 
Change in accounts receivable 
Change in inventories 
Change in other current assets 
Change in accounts payable 
Change in other current liabilities 
Change in other assets and liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Nonregulated capital expenditures and asset acquisitions 
Utility capital/construction expenditures 
Allowance for equity funds used during construction 
Investments in external decommissioning fund 
Equity investments, loans, deposits and sales of nonregulated projects 
Collection of loans made to nonregulated projects 
Other investments - net 

Net cash used in investing activities 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Short-term borrowings - net 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 
Repayment of long-term debt, including reacquisition premiums 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 
Proceeds from NRG stock offering 
Dividends paid 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 
Cash paid for interest (net of amounts capitalized) 
Cash paid for income taxes (net of refunds received)

$ 794,966 $ 526,828 $ 570,933

945,555 
41,928 
11,190 

(12,867) 
(6,829) 

(124,277) 

57,391 
(49,271) 
(9,804) 

(10,287) 
218,353 

(178,530) 
340,478 

(325,946) 
85,226 

(193,264)

828,780 
44,591 
62,716 

(15,295) 
3,848 

(87,019) 

96,113 
19,248 

18,960 
(443,347) 

21,933 
(484,288) 
713,069 
129,557 
(27,969)

718,323 
50,056 
18,161 

(14,800) 
(1,130) 

(67,926) 
(37,194) 
31,114 
71,348 

(113,521) 
(44,183) 

(164,995) 
214,791 

81,056 
13,396

1,584,012 1,407,725 1,325,429 

(4,259,791) (2,196,168) (1,620,462) 
(1,105,989) (984,935) (1,178,663) 

6,829 (3,848) 1,130 
(54,996) (48,967) (39,183) 
154,845 (93,366) (240,282) 

6,374 17,039 81,440 
84,769 (36,749) 43,136 

(5,167,959) (3,346,994) (2,952,884) 

708,335 42,386 1,315,027 
3,777,075 3,565,227 1,215,312 
(860,623) (1,667,335) (465,045) 

133,091 116,678 95,317 
474,348 453,705 

(518,894) (494,992) (492,456) 
3,713,332 2,015,669 1,668,155 

(4,566) 360 

124,819 76,760 40,700 
216,491 139,731 99,031 

$ 341,310 $ 216,491 $ 139,731

$ 708,560 $ 610,584 $ 
$ 327,018 $ 216,087 $

458,897 
193,448

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Dec. 31 
(Thousands of dollars) 2001 2000 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents S 341,310 $ 216,491 
Restricted cash 161,842 12,135 
Accounts receivable - net of allowance for bad debts: $57,815 and $41,350, respectively 1,174,828 1,289,724 
Accrued unbilled revenues 495,994 683,266 
Materials and supplies inventories - at average cost 330,363 286,453 
Fuel inventory - at average cost 250,043 116,990 
Gas inventories - replacement cost in excess of LIFO: $11,331 and $106,790, respectively 126,563 77,390 
Recoverable purchased gas and electric energy costs 52,583 283,167 
Derivative instruments valuation - at market 59,790 
Prepayments and other 318,046 162,458 

Total current assets 3,311,362 3,128,074 

Property, plant and equipment, at cost: 
Electric utility plant 16,099,655 15,304,407 
Nonregulated property and other 8,388,261 5,348,976 
Gas utility plant 2,493,028 2,376,868 
Construction work in progress (utility amounts of $669,895 and $622,494, respectively) 3,682,633 915,486 

Total property, plant and equipment 30,663,577 23,945,737 
Less accumulated depreciation (9,594,775) (8,759,322) 
Nuclear fuel - net of accumulated amortization: $1,009,855 and $967,927, respectively 96,315 86,499 
Net property, plant and equipment 21,165,117 15,272,914 

Other assets: 
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates 1,209,017 1,459,410 
Notes receivable, including amounts from affiliates of $202,411 and $76,918, respectively 779,186 92,074 
Nuclear decommissioning fund and other investments 695,070 732,908 
Regulatory assets 502,442 524,261 
Derivative instruments valuation - at market 179,683 
Prepaid pension asset 378,825 225,134 
Other 514,360 334,068 

Total other assets 4,258,583 3,367,855 
Total assets $28,735,062 $21,768,843 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Current portion of long-term debt $ 682,207 S 603,611 
Short-term debt 2,224,812 1,475,072 
Accounts payable 1,378,211 1,608,989 
Taxes accrued 246,152 236,837 
Dividends payable 130,845 128,983 
Derivative instruments valuation - at market 83,122 
Other 704,679 618,316 

Total current liabilities 5,450,028 4,671,808 

Deferred credits and other liabilities: 
Deferred income taxes 2,289,550 1,794,193 
Deferred investment tax credits 184,148 198,108 
Regulatory liabilities 483,942 494,566 
Derivative instruments valuation - at market 57,575 
Benefit obligations and other 703,836 588,288 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 3,719,051 3,075,155 

Minority interest in subsidiaries 654,670 277,335 

Capitalization (see Statements of Capitalization): 
Long-term debt 12,117,516 7,583,441 
Mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trusts (see Note 6) 494,000 494,000 
Preferred stockholders' equity 105,320 105,320 
Common stockholders' equity 6,194,477 5,561,784 

Commitments and contingencies (see Note 15) 
Total liabilities and equity $28,735,062 $21,768,843 

See Notes to Consolidared Financial Statements
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(Thousands of dollars)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY AND OTHER 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Accumulated 
Other Total 

Retained Shares Held Comprehensive Stockholders' 
Par Value Premium Earnings by ESOP Income Equity

Balance at Dec. 31, 1998 
Net income 
Recognition of unrealized loss from 

marketable securities, net of tax of $4,417 
Currency translation adjustments 
Comprehensive income for 1999 
Dividends declared: 

Cumulative preferred stock of Xcel Energy 
Common stock 

Issuances of common stock - net 
Pooling-of-interests business combinations 
Tax benefit from stock options exercised 
Other 
Repayment of ESOP loan (a) 
Balance at Dec. 31, 1999 

Net income 
Currency translation adjustments 
Comprehensive income for 2000 
Dividends declared: 

Cumulative preferred stock of Xcel Energy 
Common stock 

Issuances of common stock - net 
Tax benefit from stock options exercised 
Other 
Gain recognized from NRG stock offering 
Loan to ESOP to purchase shares 
Repayment of ESOP loan (a) 
Balance at Dec. 31, 2000 

Net income 
Currency translation adjustments 
Cumulative effect of accounting change - net 

unrealized transition loss upon adoption of 
SFAS No. 133 (see Note 14) 

After - tax net unrealized gains related to derivatives 
accounted for as hedges (see Note 14) 

After - tax net unrealized losses on derivative 
transactions reclassified into earnings (see Note 14) 

Unrealized loss - marketable securities 
Comprehensive income for 2001 
Dividends declared: 

Cumulative preferred stock of Xcel Energy 
Common stock 

Issuances of common stock - net 
Other 
Gain recognized from NRG stock offering 
Repayment of ESOP loan (a) 
Balance at Dec. 31, 2001 

(a) Did not affect cash flows 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$825,395 $2,197,058 $2,173,373 $(18,503) $ (81,250) $5,096,073 
570,933 570,933 

6,416 6,416 
(3,587) (3,587) 

573,762 

(5,292) (5,292) 
(489,813) (489,813) 

12,930 92,247 105,177 
4,599 4,599 

58 58 
(132) (1,109) (1,241) 

6,897 6,897 
$838,193 $2,288,254 $2,253,800 $(11,606) $ (78,421) $5,290,220 

526,828 526,828 
(78,508) (78,508) 

448,320 

(4,241) (4,241) 
(492,183) (492,183) 

13,892 102,785 116,677 
53 53 

16 16 
215,933 215,933 

(20,000) (20,000) 
6,989 6,989 

$852,085 $2,607,025 $2,284,220 $(24,617) $(156,929) $5,561,784 

794,966 794,966 
(56,693) (56,693) 

(28,780) (28,780) 

43,574 43,574 

19,449 19,449 
(75) (75) 

772,441 

(4,241) (4,241) 
(516,515) (516,515) 

12,418 120,673 133,091 
(27) (27) 

241,891 241,891 
6,053 6,053 

$864,503 $2,969,589 $2,558,403 $(18,564) $(179,454) $6,194,477
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

Dec. 31

(Thousands of dollars) 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

NSP-MINNESOTA DEBT 

First Mortgage Bonds, Series due: 
Dec. 1, 2001-2006, 3.65-4.1 % 
Oct. 1, 2001, 7.875% 
March 1, 2003, 5.875% 
April 1, 2003, 6.375% 
Dec. 1, 2005, 6.125% 
March 1, 2011, variable rate, 1.8% at Dec. 31, 2001, and 5.05% at Dec. 31, 2000 

March 1, 2019, variable rate, 2.04% at Dec. 31, 2001, and 4.25% at Dec. 31, 2000 

Sept. 1, 2019, variable rate 1.76% and 2.04% at Dec. 31, 2001, and 4.36% and 4.61% 

at Dec. 31, 2000 
July 1, 2025, 7.125% 
March 1, 2028, 6.5% 

Guaranty Agreements, Series due 2001-May 1, 2003, 5.375-7.4% 
Senior Notes due Aug. 1, 2009, 6.875% 
City of Becker Revenue Bonds - Series due April 1, 2030, 1.85% at Dec. 31, 2001, 

and 5.1% at Dec. 31, 2000 
Anoka County Bond- Series due Dec. 1, 2001-2008, 4.15-5% 

Employee Stock Ownership Plan Bank Loans, due 2001-2007, variable rate 
Other 
Unamortized discount - net 

Total 
Less redeemable bonds classified as current (see Note 4) 

less current maturities 
Total NSP-Minnesota long-term debt 

PSCO DEBT 

First Mortgage Bonds, Series due: 
Jan. 1, 2001, 6% 
April 15, 2003, 6% 
March 1, 2004, 8.125% 
Nom. 1, 2005, 6.375% 
June 1, 2006, 7.125% 
April 1, 2008, 5.625% 
June 1, 2012, 5.5% 
April 1, 2014, 5.875% 
Jan. 1, 2019, 5.1% 
March 1, 2022, 8.75% 
Jan. 1, 2024, 7.25% 

Unsecured Senior A Notes, due July 15, 2009, 6.875% 
Secured Medium-Term Notes, due Oct. 22, 2002-March 5, 2007, 6.45-7.65% 

Other secured long-term debt, 13.25% 
PSCCC Unsecured Medium-Term Notes, variable rate 7.4% 

at Dec. 31, 2000 
Unamortized discount 
Capital lease obligations, 11. 2 % due in installments through May 31, 2025 

Total 
Less current maturities 

Total PSCo long-term debt 

SPS DEBT 

Unsecured Senior A Notes, due March 1, 2009, 6.2% 
Unsecured Senior B Notes, due Nov. 1, 2006, 5.125% 

Pollution control obligations, securing pollution control revenue bonds due: 

July 1, 2011, 5.2% 
July 1, 2016, 1.7% at Dec. 31, 2001 and 5.1% at Dec. 31, 2000 
Sept. 1, 2016, 5.75% series 
Less funds held by Trustee 

Unamortized discount 
Total SPS long-term debt

2001 2000

S 11,225 (a) $ 13,230 (a) 
- 150,000 

100,000 100,000 
80,000 80,000 
70,000 70,000 
13,700 (b) 13,700 (b) 
27,900 (b) 27,900 (b)

100,000 (b) 
250,000 
150,000 
29,200 (b) 

250,000 

69,000 (b) 
16,090 (a) 
18,564 

390 
(5,015) 

1,181,054 
141,600 

11,134 
$ 1,028,320

$

250,000 
100,000 
134,500 
125,000 

18,000 (b) 
50,000 (b) 
61,500 (b) 
48,750 (bW 

147,840 
110,000 
200,000 
190,000 

(5,282) 
51,921 

1,482,229 
17,174 

$ 1,465,055 

100,000 
500,000 

44,500 
25,000 
57,300 

(1,425) 
725,375

100,000 (b) 
250,000 
150,000 

29,950 (b) 
250,000 

69,000 (b) 
17,990 (a) 
24,617 

194 
(5,513) 

1,341,068 
141,600 
161,773 

$ 1,037,695 

$ 102,667 
250,000 
100,000 
134,500 
125,000 

18,000 (W) 
50,000 (b) 
61,500 (b) 
48,750 (b) 

147,840 
110,000 
200,000 
226,500 

29,777 

100,000 
(5,952) 

54,202 
1,752,784 

142,043 
$ 1,610,741 

$ 100,000 

44,500 
25,000 
57,300 

(168) 
(126) 

$ 226,506

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

2001
Dec. 31

2000

LONG-TERM DEBT- CONTINUED 

NSP-WISCONSIN DEBT 

First Mortgage Bonds Series due: 
Oct. 1, 2003, 5.75% 
March 1, 2023, 7.25% 
Dec. 1, 2026, 7.375% 

City of La Crosse Resource Recovery Bond - Series due Nov. 1, 2021, 6% 
Fort McCoy System Acquisition - due Oct. 31, 2030, 7% 
Senior Notes - due Oct. 1, 2008, 7.64% 
Unamortized discount 

Total 
Less current maturities 

Total NSP-Wisconsin long-term debt 

NRG DEBT 

Remarketable or Redeemable Securities due March 15, 2005, 7.97% 
NRG Energy, Inc. Senior Notes, Series due 

Feb. 1, 2006, 7.625% 
June 15, 2007, 7.5% 
June 1, 2009, 7.5% 
Nov. 1, 2013, 8% 
Sept. 15, 2010, 8.25% 
July 15, 2006, 6.75% 
April 1,2011, 7.75% 
April 1, 2031, 8.625% 
May 16, 2006, 6.5% 

NRG Finance Co. I LLC, due May 9, 2006, various rates 
NRG debt secured solely by project assets: 

NRG Northeast Generating Senior Bonds, Series due: 
Dec. 15, 2004, 8.065% 
June 15, 2015, 8.842% 
Dec. 15, 2024, 9.292% 

South Central Generating Senior Bonds, Series due: 
May 15, 2016, 8.962% 
Sept. 15, 2024, 9.479% 

MidAtlantic - various, due Oct. 1, 2005, 3.56% 
Sterling Luxembourg #3 Loan, due June 30, 2019, variable rate 7.86% 

at Dec. 31, 2001 and 2000 
Flinders Power Finance Pry due, September 2012, 

various rates 8.56% at Dec. 31, 2001 and 7.58% at Dec. 31, 2000 
Brazos Valley, due June 30, 2008, 3.44% 
Camas Power Boiler, due June 30, 2007 and Aug. 1, 2007, 7.65% and 4.65% 
Crockett Corp. LLP debt, due Dec. 31, 2014, 8.13% 
Csepel Aramtermelo, due Oct. 2, 2017, 3.79% and 4.846% 
Hsin Yu Energy Development, due November 2006-April 2012, 4-6.475% 
LSP Batesville, due Jan. 15, 2014, 7.164% and July 15, 2025, 8.16% 
LSP Kendall Energy, due Sept. 1, 2005, 3.154% 
McClain, due Dec. 31, 2005, 3.43% 
NEO, due 2005-2008, 9.35% 
NRG Energy Center, Inc. Senior Secured Notes, Series due June 15, 2013, 7.3 1% 
PERC, due 2017-2018, 5.2% 
Audrain Capital Lease Obligation, due Dec. 31, 2023, 10% 
Saale Energie GmbH Schkopau Capital Lease, due May 2021, various rates 
Various debt, due 2001-2007, 0.0-20.8% 

Other 
Total 

Less current maturities 
Total NRG long-term debt

$ 40,000 $ 40,000 
110,000 110,000 
65,000 65,000 
18,600 (a) 18,600 (a) 

963 996 
80,000 80,000 
(1,475) (1,562) 

313,088 313,034 
34 34 

$ 313,054 $ 313,000 

$ 232,960 $ 239,386

125,000 
250,000 
300,000 
240,000 
350,000 
340,000 
350,000 
500,000 
284,440 
697,500 

180,000 
130,000 
300,000 

463,500 
300,000 
420,892 

329,842 

74,886 
159,750 
20,909 

234,497 
169,712 
89,964 

321,875 
499,500 
159,885

125,000 
250,000 
300,000 
240,000 
350,000 

270,000 
130,000 
300,000 

488,750 
300,000 

346,668 

83,820 

245,229

23,956 27,185 
62,408 65,762 
33,220 

239,930 
311,867 
148,121 33,738 

- 1,307 
8,344,614 3,796,845 

500,155 145,504 
$7,844,459 $3,651,341

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOL IDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

Dec. 31

(Thousands of dollars) 

LONG-TERM DEBT CONTINUED 

OTHER SUBSIDIARIES' LONG-TERM DEBT 

First Mortgage Bonds - Cheyenne: 
Series due April 1, 2003-Jan. 1, 2024, 7.5-7.875% 
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, due Sept. 1, 2021-March 1, 2027, 

variable rate, 1.8% and 4.95% at Dec. 31, 2001 and 2000 
Viking Gas Transmission Co. Senior Notes - Series due: 

Oct. 31, 2008-Sept. 30, 2014, 6.65-8.0 4 0o 
Various Iloigne Co. Affordable Housing Project Notes, due 2002-2027, 0.3-9.91% 
Other 

Total 
Less current maturities 

Total other subsidiaries long-term debt 

XCEL ENERGY INC. DEBT 

Unsecured Senior Notes, due Dec. 1, 2010, 7% 
Unamortized discount 

Total Xcel Energy Inc. debt 
Total long-term debt 

1ANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED SECURITIES OF SUBSIDIARY TRUSTS 

holding as their sole asset the junior subordinated deferrable debentures of: 
NSP-Minnesota, due 2037, 787)% 

PSCo, due 2038, 7.6% 
SPS, due 2036, 7.85% 

Total mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trusts 

CUMULATIVE PREFERRED STOCK authorized 7,000,000 shares of$Sl00 par value; 
outstanding shares: 2001, 1,049,800; 2000, 1,049,800 
$3.60 series, 275,000 shares 
$4.08 series, 150,000 shares 
$4.I0 series, 175,000 shares 
$4.11 series, 200,000 shares 
S4.16 series, 99,800 shares 
$4.56 series, 150,000 shares 
Total 

Premium on preferred stock 
Total preferred stockholders' equity 

COMMON STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Common stock - authorized 1,000,000,000 shares of $2.50 par value; 

outstanding shares: 2001, 345,801,028; 2000, 340,834,147 
Premium on connmmon stock 
Retained earnings 
Leveraged common stock held by ESOP -shares at cost: 2001, 783,162; 2000, 1,041,180 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

Total common stockholders' equity

2001 2000

S 12,000 $ 12,000

17,000 

45,181 
47,856 

34,981 
157,018 

12,110 
$ 144,908 

S 600,000 
(3,655) 

5 )96,345 
$12,117,516 

S 200,000 
194,000 
100,000 

$ 494,000 

S 27,500 
15,000 
17,500 
20,000 

9,980 
15,000 

104,980 
340 

S 105,320 

$ 864,503 
2,969,589 
2,558,403 

(18,564) 
(179,454) 

$ 6,194,477

17,000 

49,941 
51,309 
30,414 

160,664 
12,657 

$ 148,007 

$ 600,000 
(3,849) 

$ 596,151 
$7,583,441 

$ 200,000 
194,000 
100,000 

S 494,000 

S 27,500 
15,000 
17,500 
20,000 

9,980 
15,000 

104,980 
340 

S 105,320 

$ 852,085 
2,607,025 
2,284,220 

(24,617) 
(156,929) 

S 5,561,784

(a) Resource ecoret, rfinancing 

(b) Po//Utioon Conerol fmuancing 

See Votec to (Consolidalted F-inancial Statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Merger and Basis of Presentation On Aug. 18, 2000, NSP and NCE merged and formed Xcel Energy Inc. Each share of NCE common 
stock was exchanged for 1.55 shares of Xcel Energy common stock. NSP shares became Xcel Energy shares on a one-for-one basis.  
Cash was paid in lieu of any fractional shares of Xcel Energy common stock. The merger was structured as a tax-free, stock-for-stock 
exchange for shareholders of both companies (except for fractional shares) and accounted for as a pooling-of-interests. At the time of 
the merger, Xcel Energy registered as a holding company under the PUHCA.  

Pursuant to the merger agreement, NCE was merged with and into NSP NSP, as the surviving legal corporation, changed its name 
to Xcel Energy. Also, as part of the merger, NSP transferred its existing utility operations that were being conducted directly by 
NSP at the parent company level to a newly formed wholly owned subsidiary of Xcel Energy, which was renamed NSP-Minnesota.  

Consistent with pooling accounting requirements, results and disclosures for all periods prior to the merger have been restated for 
consistent reporting with post-merger organization and operations. All earnings per share amounts previously reported for NSP 
and NCE have been restated for presentation on an Xcel Energy share basis.  

Business and System ofAccounts Xcel Energy's domestic utility subsidiaries are engaged principally in the generation, purchase, 
transmission, distribution and sale of electricity and in the purchase, transportation, distribution and sale of natural gas. Xcel 
Energy and its subsidiaries are subject to the regulatory provisions of the PUHCA. The utility subsidiaries are subject to regulation 
by the FERC and state utility commissions. All of the utility companies' accounting records conform to the FERC uniform system 
of accounts or to systems required by various state regulatory commissions, which are the same in all material aspects.  

Principles of Consolidation Xcel Energy directly owns six utility subsidiaries that serve electric and natural gas customers in 12 
states. These six utility subsidiaries are NSP-Minnesota, NSP-Wisconsin, PSCo, SPS, BMG and Cheyenne. Their service territories 
include portions of Arizona, Colorado, Kansas, Michigan, Minnesota, New Mexico, North Dakota, Oklahoma, South Dakota, 
Texas, Wisconsin and Wyoming. Xcel Energy's regulated businesses also include Viking and WGI.  

Xcel Energy also owns or has an interest in a number of nonregulated businesses, the largest of which is NRG Energy, Inc., a publicly 
traded independent power producer. At Dec. 31, 2001, Xcel Energy indirectly owned approximately 74 percent of NRG. Xcel 
Energy owned 100 percent of NRG until the second quarter of 2000, when NRG completed its initial public offering, and 82 percent 
until a secondary offering was completed in March 2001. See Note 19 to the Financial Statements for further discussion of potential 
changes in NRG ownership.  

In addition to NRG, Xcel Energy's nonregulated subsidiaries include Utility Engineering (engineering, construction and design), 
Seren Innovations, Inc. (broadband telecommunications services), e prime inc. (natural gas marketing and trading), Planergy 
International, Inc. (enterprise energy management solutions), Eloigne Co. (investments in rental housing projects that qualify for 
low-income housing tax credits) and Xcel Energy International Inc. (an international independent power producer).  

Xcel Energy owns the following additional direct subsidiaries, some of which are intermediate holding companies with additional 
subsidiaries: Xcel Energy Wholesale Energy Group Inc., Xcel Energy Markets Holdings Inc., Xcel Energy Ventures Inc., Xcel 
Energy Retail Holdings Inc., Xcel Energy Communications Group Inc., Xcel Energy WYCO Inc. and Xcel Energy 0 & M 
Services Inc. Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries collectively are referred to as Xcel Energy.  

Xcel Energy uses the equity method of accounting for its investments in partnerships, joint ventures and certain projects. Under 
this method, we record our proportionate share of pre-tax income as equity earnings from investments in affiliates. We record our 
portion of earnings from international investments after subtracting foreign income taxes, if applicable. In the consolidation process, 
we eliminate all significant intercompany transactions and balances.  

Revenue Recognition Xcel Energy records utility revenues based on a calendar month, but reads meters and bills customers according 
to a cycle that doesn't necessarily correspond with the calendar month's end. To compensate, we record unbilled revenues for an 
estimate of the energy usage from the monthly meter-reading dates to the month's end.  

Xcel Energy's utility subsidiaries have various rate adjustment mechanisms in place that currently provide for the recovery of certain 
purchased natural gas and electric energy costs. These cost adjustment tariffs may increase or decrease the level of costs recovered 
through base rates and are revised periodically, as prescribed by the appropriate regulatory agencies, for any difference between the 

total amount collected under the clauses and the recoverable costs incurred.  

PSCo's electric rates in Colorado are adjusted under the ICA mechanism, which takes into account changes in energy costs and 
certain trading revenues and expenses that are shared with the customer. SPS' rates in Texas have fixed fuel factor and periodic fuel 
filing, reconciling and reporting requirements, which provide cost recovery. In New Mexico, SPS has recently reinstituted a monthly 
fuel and purchased power cost recovery factor. NSP-Wisconsin's rates include a cost-of-energy adjustment clause for purchased natural 
gas, but not for purchased electricity or electric fuel. In Wisconsin, we can request recovery of those electric costs prospectively 
through the rate review process, which normally occurs every two years, and an interim fuel-cost hearing process.  
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In Colorado, PSCo operates under an electric Performance- Based Regulatory Plan, which results in an annual earnings test.  

NSP-Minnesota and PSCo's rates include monthly adjustments for the recovery of conservation and energy management program 

costs, which are reviewed annually.  

TIading Operatoeus Beginning with year-end 2000 reporting, Xcel Energy changed its policy for the presentation of energy trading 

operating results. Previously, trading margins were recorded net of costs in electric and natural gas revenues. Xcel Energy currently 

reports trading revenues separately from trading costs. 1999 results have been reclassified for consistency with the 2000 and 2001 

presentation.  

Xcel Energy's trading operations are conducted mainly by PSCo (electric) and e prime (gas). The results of the electric trading activity 

are initially recorded at PSCo. Pursuant to a Joint Operating Agreement, approved by the FERC as a part of the merger, the activity 

is then apportioned to the other operating utilities of Xcel Energy. Trading revenue and costs do not include the revenue and production 

costs associated with energy produced from generation assets or results from NRG. PSCo's trading results include the impacts of 

the ICA rate-sharing mechanism. For more information, see Notes 13 and 14 to the Financial Statements.  

Properrl Plant, Equipn•eoe aad Depreciaton Property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost. The cost of plant includes 

direct labor and materials, contracted work, overhead costs and applicable interest expense. The cost of plant retired, plus net 

removal cost, is charged to accumulated depreciation and amortization. Significant additions or improvements extending asset lives 

are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Maintenance and replacement of items determined 

to be less than units of property are charged to operating expenses.  

Xcel Energy determines the depreciation of its plant by using the straight-line method, which spreads the original cost equally over 

the plant's useful life. Depreciation expense, expressed as a percentage of average depreciable property, was approximately 3.1 percent 

for the year ended Dec. 31, 2001, and 3.3 percent for the years ended Dec. 31, 2000 and 1999.  

Property, plant and equipment includes approximately $18 million and $25 million, respectively, for costs associated with the engi

neering design of the future Pawnee 2 generating station and certain water rights obtained for another future generating station in 

Colorado. PSCo is earning a return on these investments based on its weighted average cost of debt in accordance with a Colorado 

Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) rate order.  

Allowance abr Funds Used Duriog Consrunction (Ah) C and Capitalized Interest AFDC, a noncash item, represents the cost of capital 

used to finance utility construction activity. AFDC is computed by applying a composite pretax rate to qualified construction 

work in progress. The amount of AFDC capitalized as a utility construction cost is credited to other nonoperating income (for 

equity capital) and interest charges (for debt capital). AFDC amounts capitalized are included in Xcel Energy's rate base for establishing 

utility service rates. In addition to construction- related amounts, AFDC also is recorded to reflect returns on capital used to finance 

conservation programs in Minnesota. Interest capitalized for all Xcel Energy entities (including AFDC for utility companies) was 

approximately $56 million in 2001, $23 million in 2000 and $19 million in 1999.  

Decornmission ing Xcel Energy accounts for the future cost of decommissioning - or permanently retiring - its nuclear generating 

plants through annual depreciation accruals using an annuity approach designed to provide for full rate recovery, of the future 

decommissioning costs. Our decommissioning calculation covers all expenses, including decontamination and removal of radioactive 

material, and extends over the estimated lives of the plants. The calculation assumes that NSP-Minnesota and NSP-Wisconsin will 

recover those costs through rates. For more information on nuclear decommissioning, see Note 16 to the Financial Statements.  

s•Vuclear Fuel Expense Nuclear fuel expense, which is recorded as our nuclear generating plants use fuel, includes the cost of fuel 

used in the current period, as well as future disposal costs of spent nuclear fuel. In addition, nuclear fuel expense includes fees 

assessed by the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) for NSP-Minnesota's portion of the cost of decommissioning the DOE's fuel 

enrichment facility.  

En'sronnenrtal Costs We record environmental costs when it is probable Xcel Energy is liable for the costs and we can reasonably 

estimate the liability. We may defer costs as a regulatory asset based on our expectation that we will recover these costs from customers 

in future rates. Otherwise, we expense the costs. If an environmental expense is related to facilities we currently use, such as pollution

control equipment, we capitalize and depreciate the costs over the life of the plant, assuming the costs are recoverable in future 

rates or future cash flow.  

We record estimated remediation costs, excluding inflationary increases and possible reductions for insurance coverage and rate 

recovery. The estimates are based on our experience, our assessment of the current situation and the technology currently available 

for use in the remediation. We regularly adjust the recorded costs as we revise estimates and as remediation proceeds. If we are one 

of several designated responsible parties, we estimate and record only our share of the cost. We treat any future costs of restoring 

sites where operation may extend indefinitely as a capitalized cost of plant retirement. The depreciation expense levels we can 

recover in rates include a provision for these estimated removal costs.
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Income Taxes Xcel Energy and its domestic subsidiaries, except NRG, file consolidated federal and combined and separate state income 

tax returns. Due to NRG's 2001 public equity offering, NRG and its subsidiaries will file a federal income tax return separate from Xcel 

Energy for the period March 13, 2001 through Dec. 31, 2001. Income taxes for consolidated or combined subsidiaries are allocated 

to the subsidiaries based on separate company computations of taxable income or loss. In accordance with the PUHCA requirements, 

the holding company also allocates its own net income tax benefits to its direct subsidiaries based on the positive taxable income of 

each company in the consolidated federal or combined state returns. Xcel Energy defers income taxes for all temporary differences 

between pretax financial and taxable income, and between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities. We use the tax rates that are 

scheduled to be in effect when the temporary differences are expected to turn around or reverse.  

Due to the effects of past regulatory practices, when deferred taxes were not required to be recorded, we account for the reversal of 

some temporary differences as current income tax expense. We defer investment tax credits and spread their benefits over the estimated 

lives of the related property. Utility rate regulation also has created certain regulatory assets and liabilities related to income taxes, 

which we summarize in Note 17 to the Financial Statements. We discuss our income tax policy for international operations in 

Note 8 to the Financial Statements.  

Foreign Currency Translation Xcel Energy's foreign operations generally use the local currency as their functional currency in trans

lating international operating results and balances to U.S. currency. Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated 

at the exchange rates in effect at the end of a reporting period. Income, expense and cash flows are translated at weighted-average 

exchange rates for the period in common stockholders' equity. We accumulate the resulting currency translation adjustments and 

report them as a component of Other Comprehensive Income. When we convert cash distributions made in one currency to 

another currency, we include those gains and losses in the results of operations as a component of Other Nonoperating Income.  

Derivative Financial Instruments Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries utilize a variety of derivatives, including interest rate swaps and 

locks, foreign currency hedges and energy contracts to reduce exposure to commodity price risk. The energy contracts are both 

financial- and commodity-based in the energy trading and energy nontrading operations. These contracts consist mainly of commodity 

futures and options, index or fixed price swaps and basis swaps.  

On Jan. 1, 2001, Xcel Energy adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 133 - "Accounting for Derivative 

Instruments and Hedging Activity," as amended by SFAS No. 137 and SFAS No. 138 (collectively referred to as SFAS No. 133).  

For more information on the impact of SFAS No. 133, see Note 14 to the Financial Statements.  

For further discussion of Xcel Energy's risk management and derivative activities, see Note 13 and Note 14 to the Financial Statements.  

Use of Estimates In recording transactions and balances resulting from business operations, Xcel Energy uses estimates based on the 

best information available. We use estimates for such items as plant depreciable lives, tax provisions, uncollectible amounts, envi

ronmental costs, unbilled revenues and actuarially determined benefit costs. We revise the recorded estimates when we get better 

information or when we can determine actual amounts. Those revisions can affect operating results. Each year we also review the 

depreciable lives of certain plant assets and revise them if appropriate.  

Cash Items Xcel Energy considers investments in certain debt instruments with a remaining maturity of three months or less at the 

time of purchase to be cash equivalents. Those debt instruments are primarily commercial paper and money market funds.  

Restricted cash consists primarily of cash collateral for letters of credit issued in relation to project development activities and funds 

held in trust accounts to satisfy the requirements of certain debt agreements. Restricted cash is classified as a current asset as all 

restricted cash is designated for interest and principal payments due within one year.  

Inventory All inventory is recorded at average cost, with the exception of natural gas in underground storage at PSCo, which is 

recorded using last-in-first-out pricing.  

Regulatory Accounting Our regulated utility subsidiaries account for certain income and expense items using SEAS No. 71 

"Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation." Under SFAS No. 71: 

- we defer certain costs, which would otherwise be charged to expense, as regulatory assets based on our expected ability to 

recover them in future rates; and 

- we defer certain credits, which would otherwise be reflected as income, as regulatory liabilities based on our expectation they 

will be returned to customers in future rates.  

We base our estimates of recovering deferred costs and returning deferred credits on specific ratemaking decisions or precedent for 

each item. We amortize regulatory assets and liabilities consistent with the period of expected regulatory treatment.  

Stock-Based Employee Compensation We have several stock-based compensation plans. We account for those plans using the intrinsic 

value method. We do not record compensation expense for stock options because there is no difference between the market price 

and the purchase price at grant date. We do, however, record compensation expense for restricted stock awarded to certain employees, 

which is held until the restriction lapses or the stock is forfeited. For more information, see Note 9 to the Financial Statements.  
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CVR(;/ IL Ni ',,, C ots As NRG develops projects, it expenses the developnment costs it incurs (for professional services, permits, etc.) 
until a sales agreement or letter of intent is signed and the project has received NRG board approval. NRG capitalizes additional costs 
incurred at that point. When a project begins to operate, NRG amortizes the capitalized costs over either the life of the project's related 
assets or the revenue contract period, whichever is less. If a project is terminated without becoming operational, NRG expenses the capi
talized costs in the period of the termination.  

Il iv 'Ii i n:P /1/c. 'i�i 0,ii•iC, .s Goodwill results when Xcel Energy purchases an entity at a price higher than the 
underlying fair value of the net assets. At Dec. 31, 2001, Xcel Energy had unamortized intangible assets of 5166 million, including 
$69 million of goodwill, mainly at its nonregulated subsidiaries. The majority of these intangible assets are associated with energy 
contracts and will be amortized over the contract terms. Effective Jan. 1, 2002, Xcel Energy implemented SFAS No. 142. These 
amounts and all intangible assets and goodwill acquired in the future will be accounted for uinder the new accounting standard.  
The new accounting can be expected to initially increase earnings due to the elimination of amortization expense, but periodically causes 
reductions in earnings when impairment wsrite-downs of goodwill and/or intangible assets are required.  

Other assets also included deferred financing costs, net of amortization, of approximatels $154 million at Dec. 31, 2001. We are 

amortizing these Financing costs over the remaining maturity periods of the related debt.  

Rýc /a, i/inc.s We reclassified certain items in the 1999 and 2000 income statements and the 2000 balance sheet to conform to 
the 2001 presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on net income or earnings per share. Reported amounts for periods 
prior to the merger have been restated to reflect the merger as if it had occurred as of Jan. 1, 1999. The reclassifications were primarily 
to conform the presentation of all consolidated Xcel Energy subsidiaries to a standard corporate presentation.  

2. SPECIAL CHARGES 

2)01 / R,4, /fnig During the fourth quarter of 2001, Reel Energy expensed pretax special charges of $39 million, or 7 cents per share, 
for expected staff consolidation costs. The charges related to severance costs for utility operations resulting from the restaffing plans of 
several operating and corporate support areas of Xcel Energy relate primarily to nonbargaining positions. We accrued costs for 500 
staff terminations, which are expected to occur, mainly in the First quarter of 2002, across all regions ofXcel Energys service territory, 

but primarily in Minneapolis and Denver. As of Jan. 31, 2002, 239 of these terminations had occurred.  

200f1 Vi > i/Wi ',u B ie;> K't PSCo adopted accrual accounting for postemployment benefits under SFAS No. 112 - "Employers 
Accounting for Postemployiment Benefits" in 1994. The costs of these benefits had been recorded on a pay-as-you-go basis and, 
accordingly, PSCo recorded a regulatory asset in anticipation of obtaining future rate recovery of these transition costs. PSCo 
recovered its FERC jurisdictional portion of these costs. PSCo requested approval to recover its Colorado retail natural gas jurisdictional 

portion in a 1996 retail rate case and its retail electric jurisdictional portion in the electric earnings test filing for 1997.  

In the 1996 rate case, the CPUC allowed recovery of postemployment benefit costs on an accrual basis, but denied PSCo's 
request to amortize the transition costs regulatory asset. PSCo appealed this decision to the Denver District Court. In 1998, 

the CPUC deferred the final determination of the regulatory treatment of the electric jurisdictional costs pending the outcome of 
PSCo's appeal on the natural gas rate case. On Dec. 16, 1999, the Denver District Cotirt affirmed the decision by the CPUC.  

On July 2, 2001. the Colorado Supreme Court affirmed the District Court decision. Accordingl>, PSCo has written off $23 million 
pretax, representing 4 cents per share, of regulatory assets related to deferred postemployment benefit costs as of June 30, 2001, 

since all means of regulatory recovery have been denied.  

2000 - , (Ciis Upon consummation of the merger in 2000, Xcel Energi' expensed pretax special charges totaling $241 million.  
These special charges reduced Xcel Energys 2000 earnings by 52 cents per share. Of these pretax special charges, $201 million, or 
43 cents per share, was recorded during the third quarter of 2000, and $40 million, or 9 cents per share, was recorded during the 

fourth quarter of 2000.  

The pretax charges included $199 million, or 44 cents per share, associated with the costs of merging regulated operations. Of 
these pretax charges, $52 million related to one-time transaction-related costs incurred in connection with the merger of NSP and 
NCE and $147 million pertained to incremental costs of transition and integration activities associated with merging NSP and 

NCE to begin operations as Xcel Energy. The pretax charges also included $42 million, or 8 cents per share, of asset impairments 
and other costs resulting from the post-merger strategic alignment of Xcel Energys nonregulated businesses. An allocation of the 
regulated portion of merger costs was made to utility operating companies using a basis consistent with prior regulatory filings, in 
proportion to expected merger savings by company and consistent with service company cost allocation methodologies utilized 
under the PUHCA requirements.
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The transition costs include approximately $77 million for severance and related expenses associated with staff reductions of 721 employees, 

706 of whom were released through Jan. 31, 2002. The staff reductions were nonbargaining positions mainly in corporate and operations 

support areas. Other transition and integration costs include amounts incurred for facility consolidation, systems integration, regulatory 

transition, merger communications and operations integration assistance.  

Accrued Special Charges The following table summarizes activity related to accrued special charges in 2001 and 2000.

(Millions of dollars) 

Employee severance and related costs 
Regulatory transition costs 
Other transition and integration costs 

Total accrued special charges

Expens 
20 

$ 

$1

Payments 
Through 

sed Dec. 31, 
00 2000 

77 $ (29) 
12 (7) 
58 (56) 
47 $ (92)

Dec. 31, 
2000 

Liability* 

$48 
5 
2 

$55

Dec. 31, 
Expensed Payments 2001 

2001 2001 Liability*

$39 

$39

$(50) 
(5) 
(2) 

$ (57)

$37

$37

SReported on the balance sheet in other current liabilities.  

1999 - EMI Goodwill In 1999, Xcel Energy expensed pretax special charges of approximately $17 million, or 4 cents per share, to 

write off all goodwill that was recorded by its subsidiary EMI for its acquisitions of Energy Masters Corp. in 1995 and Energy 

Solutions International in 1997. This charge reflected a revised business outlook based on the levels of contract signings by EMI.  

1999 - Loss on Marketable Securities During 1999, Xcel Energy expensed pretax special charges of approximately $14 million, or 

3 cents per share, for valuation write-downs on its investment in the publicly traded common stock of CellNet Data Systems, Inc.  

In October 1999, CellNet announced it was experiencing financial difficulties and in February 2000, filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy 

protection. CellNet's assets were subsequently acquired by another company.  

3. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 

Notes Payable and Commercial Paper Information regarding notes payable and commercial paper for the years ended Dec. 31, 2001 

and 2000 is:

(Millions of dollars, excelst interest rates)

Notes payable to banks 
Commercial paper 
Total short-term debt 
Weighted average interest rate at year end

2001 2000 

$ 835 $ 20 
1,390 1,455 

$2,225 $1,475 
3.41% 6.48%

Bank Lines of Credit and Compensating Bank Balances At Dec. 31, 2001, we and our subsidiaries had approximately $6.9 billion and 

DEM 203.6 million in credit facilities with several banks. We pay for these lines of credit with a combination of fee payments and 

compensating balances.

Xcel Energy 
Xcel Energy 
NSP-Minnesota 
PSCo 
SPS 
NRG total 

Other subsidiaries

Period Bl 

Novemb 
Novemb 

Augu 

Ju 

Februa

eginning Term Credit Line 

er 2001 364 days $ 400 million 

er 2000 5 years $ 400 million 
ust 2001 364 days $ 300 million 
ne 2001 364 days $ 600 million 
ry 2001 364 days $ 300 million 

$ 4.8 billion and 
DEM 203.6 million 

various various $ 118 million

The lines of credit for companies other than NRG provide short-term financing in the form of bank loans and letters of credit, but 

their primary purpose is support for commercial paper borrowings. At Dec. 31, 2001, there were no loans outstanding under these 

lines of credit. The borrowing rate under these lines of credit is based on the 90-day London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), a 

euro dollar rate margin, and the amount of money borrowed. The rate that would have applied at Dec. 31, 2001, if we had loans 

outstanding, would have been between 2.18 percent and 2.505 percent.
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At Dec. 31, 2001, NRG had three credit facilities for short-term financing: 

- a S500-million recourse revolving credit facility under a commitment fee arrangement that matures in March 2002. This facility 
provided short-term financing in the form of bank loans. At Dec. 31, 2001, NRG had $170 million outstanding under this facility.  
In March 2002, the revolving credit facility, will terminate. During the period ended Dec. 31, 2001, the facility' bore interest at 
a floating rate based on LIBOR and prime rates throughout the period and had a weighted average interest rate of 5.89 percent, 

- a $40-million revolving credit facility that matures in March 2002. This is a facility of NRG's South Central project and is non
recourse to NRG. At Dec. 31, 2001, NRG South Central had $40 million outstanding under this facility at 4.46 percent and 

- a $600-million unsecured term loan facility, which terminates on June 21, 2002. At Dec. 31, 2001, the aggregate amount out
standing under this facility was $600 million at a weighted average interest rate of 3.94 percent.  

NRG's other credit facilities are used for long-term financing. See discussion in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.  

4. LONG-TERM DEBT 

Except for SPS and other minor exclusions, all property of our utility subsidiaries is subject to the liens of their first mortgage indentures, 
which are contracts between the companies and their bondholders. In addition, certain SPS payments under its pollution-control 
obligations are pledged to secure obligations of the Red River Authority of Texas.  

There are annual sinking-fund requirements in our utility subsidiaries' first mortgage indentures, in the amounts necessary to redeem 
1 to 6.7 percent of the highest principal amount of each series of first mortgage bonds at any time outstanding, excluding series issued 
for pollution control and resource recovery financings and certain other series totaling $1.7 billion. NSP-Minnesota, NSP-Wisconsin, 
PSCo and Cheyenne expect to satisfy substantially all of their sinking fund obligations in accordance with the terms of their respective 
indentures through the application of property additions. SPS has no significant sinking fund requirements.  

NSP-Miniiesota's 2011 series bonds are redeemable upon seven-days notice at the option of the bondholder. NSP-Minnesora also is 
potentially liable for repayment of the 2019 series when the bonds are tendered, which occurs each time the variable interest rates 
change. Because of the terms that allow the holders to redeem these bonds on short notice, we include them in the current portion 
of long-term debt reported under current liabilities on the balance sheets.  

NRG has several credit facilities used for long-term financing: 
(Currency in thousands) Available Recourse Knd Outstanding Rate at 
Facility Line of Credit to ,\N'RG Date Dec. 31, 2001 Dec. 31, 2001 

REVOLVING LINES OF CREDIT 
NRG Finance Co. I LLC $2,000,000 Yes May 2009 S 697,500 4.83% 

TERM LOAN FACILITIES: 
MidAtlantic $580,000 No November 2005 $ 420,892 3.56% 
LSP Kendall Energy S5554,200 No September 2005 S 499,500 3.15% 
Csepel 578,500 and DEM 203,600 No October 2017 $ 169,712 3.79- 4.85% 
Brazos Valley $180,000 No June 2008 $ 159,750 3.44% 
McClain $296,000 No December 2005 S 159,885 3.43% 

The NRG Finance Co. I LLC facility is used to finance the acquisition, development and construction of power generating plants 
located in the United States and to finance the acquisition of turbines for such facilities. The facility is nonrecourse to NRG other 
than its obligation to contribute equity at certain times in respect of projects and turbines financed uinder the facility.  

On March 13, 2001, NRG completed the sale of 11.5 million "equity units" for an initial price of S25 per unit. Each equity unit 
initially consists ofa $25 NRG senior debenture (6.5 percent notes due May 16, 2006) and an obligation to acquire shares of NRG 
common stock no later than May 18, 2004, at a price ranging from S27.00 to S32.94 per share.  

The $240-million NRG senior notes due Nov. 1, 2013, are Remarketable or Redeemable Securities (ROARS). At certain dates the 
notes must either be tendered to and purchased by Credit Suisse Financial Products or redeemed by NRG at prices discussed in the 
indenture. The notes are unsecured debt that rank senior to all of NRG's existing and future subordinated indebtedness.  

NRG's $250-million issue of 8.7 percent ROARS due March 15, 2005, may be remarketed by Bank of America, N.A. at a fixed rate of 
interest through the maturity date or at a floating rate of interest for up to one year and then at a fixed rate of interest through 2020.  

Maturities and sinking fund requirements of long-term debt are: 
2002 $ 682 million 
2003 S 719 million 
2004 $ 335 million 
2005 $ 1,140 million 
2006 $ 1,832 million 
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5. PREFERRED STOCK 

At Dec. 31, 2001, we had six series of preferred stock outstanding, which were callable at our option at prices ranging from $102.00 

to $103.75 per share plus accrued dividends.  

The holders of our $3.60 series preferred stock are entitled to three votes for each share held. The holders of our other preferred 

stocks are entitled to one vote per share. While dividends payable on the preferred stock of any series outstanding is in arrears in an 

amount equal to four quarterly dividends, the holders of preferred stocks, voting as a class, are entitled to elect the smallest number 

of directors necessary to constitute a majority of the board of directors and the holders of common stock, voting as a class, are entitled 

to elect the remaining directors.  

The charters of some of our subsidiaries also authorize the issuance of preferred shares; however, at this time there are no such shares 

outstanding. This chart shows data for first- and second-tier subsidiaries: 

Preferred Shares Par Preferred Shares 
Authorized Value Outstanding 

Cheyenne Light, Fuel & Power Co. 1,000,000 $100.00 None 

Southwestern Public Service Co. 10,000,000 $ 1.00 None 

Public Service Co. of Colorado 10,000,000 $ 0.01 None 

NRG Energy, Inc. 200,000,000 $ 0.01 None 

PS Colorado Credit Corp. 25,000,000 $ 1.00 None 

6. MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE PREFERRED SECURITIES OF SUBSIDIARY TRUSTS 

In 1996, SPS Capital I, a wholly owned, special-purpose subsidiary trust of SPS, issued $100 million of 7.85 percent trust preferred 

securities that mature in 2036. Distributions paid by the subsidiary trust on the preferred securities are financed through interest 

payments on debentures issued by SPS and held by the subsidiary trust, which are eliminated in consolidation. The securities are 

redeemable at the option of SPS after October 2001, at 100 percent of the principal amount plus accrued interest. Distributions and 

redemption payments are guaranteed by SPS.  

In 1997, NSP Financing I, a wholly owned, special-purpose subsidiary trust of NSP-Minnesota, issued $200 million of 7.875 percent 

trust preferred securities that mature in 2037. Distributions paid by the subsidiary trust on the preferred securities are financed 

through interest payments on debentures issued by NSP-Minnesota and held by the subsidiary trust, which are eliminated in consolidation.  

The preferred securities are redeemable at NSP Financing Is option at $25 per share beginning in 2002. Distributions and redemption 

payments are guaranteed by NSP-Minnesota.  

In 1998, PSCo Capital Trust I, a wholly owned, special-purpose subsidiary trust of PSCo, issued $194 million of 7.60 percent trust 

preferred securities that mature in 2038. Distributions paid by the subsidiary trust on the preferred securities are financed through 

interest payments on debentures issued by PSCo and held by the subsidiary trust, which are eliminated in consolidation. The securities 

are redeemable at the option of PSCo after May 2003 at 100 percent of the principal amount outstanding plus accrued interest.  

Distributions and redemption payments are guaranteed by PSCo.  

The manditorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trusts are consolidated in Xcel Energy's Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

Distributions paid to preferred security holders are reflected as a financing cost in the Consolidated Statements of Income along with 

interest charges.  

7. JOINT PLANT OWNERSHIP 

The investments by Xcel Energy's subsidiaries in jointly owned plants and the related ownership percentages as of Dec. 31, 2001, are: 

Construction 
Plant in Accumulated Work in 

(Thousands of dollars) Service Depreciation Progress Ownership % 

NS P-M INN ESOTA: 
Sherco UTrnit ' $609.382 $271.874 $1,158 59.0

PSCO: 

Hayden Unit 1 
Hayden Unit 2 
Hayden Common Facilities 
Craig Units 1 & 2 
Craig Common Facilities Units 1, 2 & 3 
Transmission Facilities, including Substations 
Total PSCo

$ 84,032 $ 37,664 $ 223 
79,197 40,864 63 
28,044 2,715 156 
59,799 30,593 
26,052 8,816 
84,760 28,689 125 

$361,884 $149,341 $ 567
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Construction 

Plant in A7 cuiiulated W'or0k in 
(Thousanuds oJ'dollars) continued Serice Depri iarion Progress Ownership % 

NRG: 
McClain S 276,589 S 3,836 S 77.0 
Big Cajun 11 Unit 3 177,359 7,838 2,249 58.0 
Conemaugh 60,237 1,497 695 3.7 
Keystone 51,906 1,291 1,022 3-7 
iotal NRG $5 66,091 $ 14,462 S3,966 

NSP-Minnesota is part owner of Sherco 3, an 860-megawatt, coal-fired electric generating unit. NSP-Minnesota is the operating 
agent under the joint ownership agreement. NSP-Minnesota's share of operating expenses for Sherco 3 is included in the applicable 
utility components of operating expenses. PSCo's assets include approximately 320 megawatts ofjointly owned generating capacity.  
PSCo's share of operating expenses and construction expenditures are included in the applicable utility components of operating 
expenses. NRGs share of operating expenses and construction expenditures are included in the applicable nonregulated components 
of opeiating expenses. Each of the respective owners is responsible for the issuance of irs own securities to finance its portion of the 

construction costs.  

8. INCOME TAXES 

Total income tax expense from operations differs from the amount computed by applying the statutors federal income tax rate to 

income before income tax expense. The reasons for the difference are: 

2001 2000 1999 

Federal statutoiry rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 
Increases (decreases) in tax' from: 

State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 2.5% 5.8% 2.1% 
Life insurance policies (1.9)% (2.4)% (

2
.3)% 

"Fax credits recognized (
6

.
6

)% (10.2)% (6.0)% 
Equits income from unconsolidated affiliates (1.7)% (2.3)% (5.5)% 
Income from foreign consolidated affiliates (0.8)% (0.

4
)% 0.0% 

Regulatorv differences - utility plant items 1.8% 2
.3% 1.9% 

Deferred tax expense on Yorkshire investment 0.0% 2.3% 0.0% 
Nondeductible merger costs 0.0% 2.9% 0.0% 
Other - net 0.1% 1.8%0 (1.3)% 

Effective income tax rate including extraordinars items 2 8
.
4

% 34
.
8

% 2
3.9%o 

Effective income tax rate excluding extraordinary items 2
8.0% 35.8% 23.9% 

Income taxes comprise the following expense (benefit) items: 

(Thousands oJ'do//ari) 

Current federal tax expense S 373,891 $205,718 S175,461 
Current state tax expense 26,927 63,428 26,949 
Current foreign tax expense 6,510 (625) 4,040 
Current federal tax credits (66,179) (7O,270) (30,137) 
Deferred federal tax expense (24,114) 103,258 27,380 
Deferred state tax expense 18,702 12,547 (2,352) 
Deferred foreign tax expense 13,969 7,104 (6,868) 
Deferred investment tax credits (12,983) (15,295) (14,800) 
Income tax expense excluding extraordinary items 336,723 304,865 179,673 

Tax expense (benefit) on extraordinary items 4,807 (8,549) 
"lotal income tax expense S 341,530 S296,316 S179,673 

Xcel Energy management intends to reinvest the earnings from NRG's foreign operations to the extent the earnings are subject to 

current U.S. income taxes. Accordingly, U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes have not been provided on a cumulative 

amotnt of unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries ofapproximately 5345 million and S238 million at Dec. 31, 2001 and 2000. The 
additional U.S. income tax and foreign withholding tax on the unremitted foreign earnings, if repatriated, would be offset in part by foreign 
tax credits. Thus, it is not practicable to estimate the amount of tax that might be payable.
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Xcel Energy management also intends to reinvest the earnings of the Argentina operations of Xcel Energy International and, therefore, 

has not provided deferred taxes for the effects of the currency devaluation discussed in Note 15 to the Financial Statements. However, 
as a result of management's revised strategic plan for Yorkshire Power to begin repatriation of earnings to the United States, Xcel Energy 

provided deferred taxes of $20 million on unremitted earnings of $55 million at Dec. 31, 2000. Due to the sale of the majority of its 
interest in Yorkshire Power during 2001, Xcel Energy now accounts for its remaining investment under the cost method.  

The components of Xcel Energy's net deferred tax liability (current and noncurrent portions) at Dec. 31 were:

2001(Thousands of dollars) 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Differences between book and tax basis of property 
Regulatory assets 
Partnership income/loss 
Unrealized gains and losses on mark-to-market transactions 
Tax benefit transfer leases 
Other 
Total deferred tax liabilities 

Deferred tax assets: 
Differences between book and tax basis of contracts 
Deferred investment tax credits 
Regulatory liabilities 
Foreign tax loss carryforwards 
Employee benefits and other accrued liabilities 
Other 
Total deferred tax assets 
Net deferred tax liability

$2,195,323 
155,587 

53,955 
45,701 
14,765 
73,437

2000

$1,754,928 
168,380 
70,266 

411 
18,839 
97,852

$2,538,768 $2,110,676 

$ 82,972 $ 
72,345 76,133 
66,507 88,817 
23,630 25,063 

(16,559) 14,675 
87,387 62,053 

$ 316,282 $ 266,741 
$2,222,486 $1,843,935

9. COMMON STOCK AND INCENTIVE STOCK PLANS 

Incentive Stock Plans Xcel Energy and some of its subsidiaries have incentive compensation plans under which stock options and 

other performance incentives are awarded to key employees. The weighted average number of common and potentially dilutive shares 

outstanding used to calculate our earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of stock options and other stock awards based on the 

treasury stock method. The options normally have a term of 10 years and generally become exercisable from three to five years after 

grant date or upon specified circumstances. The tables below include awards made by us and some of our predecessor companies, 

adjusted for the merger stock exchange ratio, and are presented on an Xcel Energy share basis.  

Stock Options and Performance Awards at Dec. 31: 

2001 2000 1999 
(Thousands) Awards Average Price Awards Average Price Awards Average Price 

Outstanding at beginning of year 14,259 $25.35 8,490 $25.12 6,156 $26.15 

Granted 2,581 25.98 6,980 25.31 2,545 22.64 
Exercised (1,472) 23.00 (453) 20.33 (90) 18.72 

Forfeited (142) 27.08 (704) 25.70 (111) 30.10 
Expired (12) 24.07 (54) 22.62 (10) 25.64 

Outstanding at end of year 15,214 25.65 14,259 25.35 8,490 25.12 
Exercisable at end of year 7,154 24.78 8,221 24.46 5,301 25.84 

Range of Exercise Prices 
At Dec. 31, 2001 $16.60 to $21.75 $21.76 to $27.99 $28.00 to $31.01

Options outstanding: 
Number outstanding 
Weighted average remaining contractual life (years) 
Weighted average exercise price

2,544,374 
6.8 

$19.87 

2,334,841 
$19.86

Options exercisable: 
Number exercisable 
Weighted average exercise price

11,261,229 
8.0 

$26.33 

3,459,896 
$25.79

1,408,857 
6.5 

$30.66 

1,359,376 
$30.67
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Certain employees also may be awarded restricted stock under our incentive plans. We hold restricted stock until restrictions lapse, 
generally from two to three years from the date of grant. We reinvest dividends on the shares we hold while restrictions are in place.  
Restrictions also apply to the additional shares acquired through dividend reinvestment. We granted 21,774 restricted shares in 2001, 
58,690 restricted shares in 2000 and 52,688 restricted shares in 1999. Compensation expense related to these awards was immaterial.  

The NCE/NSP merger was a "change in control" under the NSP incentive plan, so all stock option and restricted stock awards 
under that plan became fully vested and exercisable as of the merger date. The NCE/NSP merger did nor constitute a change in 
control under the NCE incentive plans, so there was no accelerated vesting of stock options issued under them. When NCE and 
NSP merged, each outstanding NCE stock option was converred to 1.55 Xcel Energy options.  

We apply Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 in accounting for our stock-based compensation and, accordingly, no com
pensarion cost is recognized for the issuance of stock options as the exercise price of the options equals the fair-marker value of our 
common stock at the date of grant. If we had used the SEAS No. 123 method of accounting, earnings would have been reduced by 
approximately I cent per share for 2001, 2 cents per share for 2000 and I cent per share for 1999.  

The Fair valuc of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model with the 

following assumnptions: 

2001 2000 1999 

Expected option life 3-5 Years 3-5 years 5-10 years 
Stock volatility 18% 15% 15-21% 
Risk-free interest rate 3.8-4.8% 5.3-6.5% 4.7-6.4% 
Dividend yield 4.9-5.8% 5.4 7.5% 5.4% 

)it toi ., /,Rcq' tiwz, The Articles of Incorporation of Xcel Energy place restrictions on the amount of common stock dividends it 
can pay when preferred stock is outstanding. Xcel Energy has outstanding preferred stock. It could have paid nearly $2 billion in 
additional common stock dividends before restrictions would apply.  

In addition, NSP-Minnesota's first mortgage indenture places certain restrictions on the amount of cash dividends it can pay to Xcel 
Energyt the holder of its common stock. Even xxith these restrictions, NSP-Minnesota could have paid more than $825 million in 

additional cash dividends on common stock at Dec. 31, 2001.  

St ock/o/,'yi• //U/,, .t!/ Icotc' On June 28, 2001, Xcel Energy adopted a Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement. Each 
share of Xcel Energy's common stock includes one shareholder protection right. Under the agreements principal provision, if any person 
or group acquires 15 percent or more of Xcel Energy's outstanding common stock, all other shareholders of Xcel Energy would be entitled 
to buy, for the exercise price of S95 per right, common stock of Xcel Energy having a market value equal to twice the exercise price, thereby 
substantially diluting the acquiring person's or group's investment. The rights may cause substantial dilution to a person or group that 
acquires 15 percent or more of Xcel Energy's common stock. The rights should not interfere with a transaction that is in the best interests 
of Xcel Energy and its shareholders because the rights can be redeemed prior to a triggering event for S0.01 per right.  

10. BENEFIT PLANS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Xcel Energy offers various benefit plans to its benefit employees. Approximately 44 percent of benefit employees are represented by 
several local labor unions under several collective-bargaining agreements. At Dec. 31, 2001, NSP-Minnesota and NSP-Wisconsin 
had 2,563 union employees covered under a collective-bargaining agreement, which expires at the end of 2004. PSCo had 1,979 
union employees covered under a collective-bargaining agreement, which expires in May 2003. SPS had 742 union employees 
covered under a collective-bargaining agreement, which expires in October 2002.  

too: P,,, UtXcel Energy has several noncontributory, defined benefit pension plans that cover almost all utility employees.  
Benefits are based on a combination of years of service, the employees average pay and Social Security benefits.  

Xcel Energy's policy is to fully fund into an external trust the actuarially determined pension costs recognized for ratemaking and 
financial reporting purposes, subject to the limitations of applicable employee benefit and tax laws. Plan assets principally consist 
of the common stock of public companies, corporate bonds and U.S. government securities.
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A comparison of the actuarially computed pension benefit obligation and plan assets at Dec. 31, 2001 and 2000, for Xcel Energy 
plans on a combined basis is presented in the following table.

2001(Thousands of dollars) 

CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION 
Obligation at Jan. 1 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Acquisitions 
Plan amendments 
Actuarial (gain) loss 
Benefit payments 
Obligation at Dec. 31

CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS 

Fair value of plan assets at Jan. 1 
Actual return on plan assets 
Acquisitions 
Benefit payments 
Fair value of plan assets at Dec. 31 

FUNDED STATUS AT DEC. 31 

Net asset 
Unrecognized transition (asset) obligation 
Unrecognized prior-service cost 
Unrecognized (gain) loss 
Prepaid pension asset recorded

SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Discount rate for year-end valuation 
Expected average long-term increase in compensation level 
Expected average long-term rate of return on assets

The components of net periodic pension cost (credit) for Xcel Energy plans are: 

(Thousands of dollars)

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Curtailment 
Amortization of transition asset 
Amortization of prior-service cost 
Amortization of net gain 

Net periodic pension cost (credit) under SFAS No. 87 
Credits not recognized due to effects of regulation 

Net benefit cost (credit) recognized for financial reporting

2000

$2,254,138 $2,170,627 
57,521 59,066 

172,159 172,063 
- 52,800 

2,284 2,649 
108,754 1,327 

(185,670) (204,394) 
$2,409,186 $2,254,138 

$3,689,157 $3,763,293 
(235,901) 91,846 

38,412 
(185,670) (204,394) 

$3,267,586 $3,689,157 

$ 858,400 $1,435,019 
(9,317) (16,631) 

242,313 228,436 
(712,571) (1,421,690) 

$ 378,825 $ 225,134

7.25% 
4.5% 
9.5%

2001 

$ 57,521 
172,159 

(325,635) 
1,121 

(7,314) 
20,835 

(72,413) 
$ (153,726) 

76,509 
$ (77,217)

7.75% 
4.5% 

8.5-10.0%

2000 

$ 59,066 
172,063 

(292,580) 

(7,314) 
19,197 

(60,676) 
$ (110,244) 

49,697 
$ (60,547)

1999 

$ 63,674 
154,619 

(259,074)

$ 

$

(7,314) 
17,855 

(40,217) 
(70,457) 
36,469 
(33,988)

NRG also offers other noncontributory, defined benefit pension plans that are sponsored by NRG and its affiliates. For the year 

ended Dec. 31, 2001, the total assets of such plans were $16 million and benefit obligations were $37 million. The net recorded 

pension liabilities for these plans were $19 million and annual pension costs were $4 million.  

Additionally, Xcel Energy maintains noncontributory defined benefit supplemental retirement income plans for certain qualifying 

executive personnel. Benefits for these unfunded plans are paid out of Xcel Energy's operating cash flows.  

Defined Contribution Plans Xcel Energy maintains 401(k) and other defined contribution plans that cover substantially all employees.  

Total contributions to these plans were approximately $29 million in 2001, $23 million in 2000 and $21 million in 1999.  

Xcel Energy has a leveraged employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) that covers substantially all employees of NSP-Minnesota and 

NSP-Wisconsin. Xcel Energy makes contributions to this noncontributory, defined contribution plan to the extent it realizes tax savings 

from dividends paid on certain ESOP shares. ESOP contributions have no material effect on Xcel Energy earnings because the contri

butions are essentially offset by the tax savings provided by the dividends paid on ESOP shares. Xcel Energy allocates leveraged ESOP 

shares to participants when it repays ESOP loans with dividends on stock held by the ESOP.
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Xcel Energy's leveraged ESOP held 10.5 million shares ofXcel Energy common stock at the end of 2001, 12.0 million shares ofXcel 
Energy common stock at the end of 2000 and 11.3 million shares of Xcel Energy common stock at the end of 1999. Xcel Energy 

excluded the following uncommitted leveraged ESOP shares from earnings per share calculations: 0.9 million in 2001, 0.7 million 

in 2000 and 0.5 million in 1999.  

I // srct •, H,/Ah ClI>ive . Xcel Energy has contributory health and welfare benefit plans that provide health care and death 

benefits to most Xcel Energy retirees. The NSP plan was terminated for nonbargaining employees retiring after 1998 and for bar

gaining employees retiring after 1999.  

In conjunction with the 1993 adoption of SFAS No. 106 - "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pension," 

Xcel Energy elected to amortize the unrecognized accumulated postretirement benefit obligation on a straight-line basis over 20 years.  

Regulatory agencies for nearly all of Xcel Energy's retail and wholesale utility customers have allowed rate recovery of accrued benefit 

costs tinder SFAS No. 106. PSCo transitioned to full accrual accounting for SFAS No. 106 costs between 1993 and 1997, consistent 
with the accounting requirements for rate-regulated enterprises. The Colorado jurisdictional SFAS No. 106 costs deferred during the 

transition period are being amortized to expense on a straight-line basis over the 15-year period from 1998 to 2012. NSP-Minnesota also 

transitioned to full accrual accounting for SFAS No. 106 costs, with regulatory differences fully amortized prior to 1997.  

Additionally, certain state agencies, which regulate Xcel Energy's utility subsidiaries, have issued guidelines related to the funding of 
SPAS No. 106 costs. SPS is required to fund SFAS No. 106 costs for Texas and New Mexico jurisdictional amounts collected in 

rates, and PSCo and Cheyenne are required to fund SPAS No. 106 costs in irrevocable external trusts that are dedicated to the payment 

of these postretirement benefits. Minnesota and Wisconsin retail regulators require external funding of accrued SFAS No. 106 costs 
to the extent such funding is tax advantaged. Plan assets held in external funding trusts principally consist of investments in equity 
mutual funds, fixed-income securities and cash equivalents.  

A comparison of the actuarially computed benefit obligation and plan assets at Dec. 31, 2001 and 2000, for all Xcel Energy 

postretirement health care plans is presented in the following table.  

(Thousands of dollars) 2001 2000 

CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION 

Obligation at Jan. 1 $576,727 S 533,458 
Service cost 6,160 5,679 
Interest cost 46,579 43,477 
Acquisitions 3,212 16,445 
Plan participants' contributions 3,517 4,358 
Plan amendments (278) 
Actuarial (gain) loss 100,386 10,501 
Benefit payments (48,848) (37,191) 

Obligation at Dec. 31 $687455 S576,727 

CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS 

Fair value of plan assets at Jan. 1 $223,266 S201,767 
Actual return on plan assets (3,701) 10,069 
Plan participants' contributions 3,517 4,358 
Employer contributions 68,569 44,263 
Benefit payments (48,848) (37,191) 

Fair value of plan assets at Dec. 31 $242,803 $223,266 

FUNDED STATUS AT DEC. 31 

Net obligation $444,652 5353,461 
Unrecognized transition asset (obligation) (186,099) (202,871) 
Unrecognized prior-service cost 12,812 13,789 
Unrecognized gain (loss) (134,225) (11,126) 

Accrued benefit liability recorded $137,140 S153,253 

SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 

Discount rate for year-end valuation 7.25% 7.75% 
Expected average long-term rate of return on assets 9.0% 8.0-9.5% 

The assumed health care cost trend rate for 2001 is approximately 8.0 percent, decreasing gradually to 5.5 percent in 2007 and 
remaining level thereafter. A 1-percent increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate would increase the estimated total accumulated 

benefit obligation for Xcel Energy by approximately $72.3 million, and the service and interest cost components of net periodic 

postretirement benefit costs by approximately 55.8 million. A 1-percent decrease in the assumed health care cost trend rate Would
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decrease the estimated total accumulated benefit obligation for Xcel Energy by approximately $60.2 million, and the service and 
interest cost components of net periodic postretirement benefit costs by approximately $4.7 million.  

The components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost of all Xcel Energy's plans are:

(Thousands of dollars) 2001

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization of transition obligation 
Amortization of prior-service cost (credit) 
Amortization of net loss (gain) 
Net periodic postretirement benefit costs under SFAS No. 106 
Additional cost recognized due to effects of regulation 

Net cost recognized for financial reporting

$ 6,160 
46,579 
(18,920) 
16,771 
(1,235) 
1,457 

50,812 
3,738 

$ 54,550

2000 

$ 5,679 
43,477 
(17,902) 
16,773 
(1,211) 

915 
47,731 

6,641 
$ 54,372

1999 

$ 4,680 
35,583 

(15,003) 
17,461 
(1,803) 

(5) 
40,913 
4,029 

$ 44,942

11. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AND ASSET ACQUISITIONS 

Xcel Energy's nonregulated subsidiaries have investments in various international and domestic energy projects, and domestic affordable 
housing and real estate projects. We use the equity method of accounting for such investments in affiliates, which include joint ventures 

and partnerships because the ownership structure prevents Xcel Energy from exercising a controlling influence over the operating and 

financial policies of the projects. Under this method, Xcel Energy records its portion of the earnings or losses of unconsolidated affiliates 
as equity earnings. A summary of Xcel Energy's significant equity method investments is listed in the following table.

Name 

Loy Yang Power A 
Enfield Energy Centre 
Gladstone Power Station 
COBEE (Bolivian Power Co. Ltd.) 
MIBRAG GmbH 
Cogeneration Corp. of America 
Schkopau Power Station 
West Coast Power 
Energy Developments Limited 
Scudder Latin American Power 
Lanco Kondapalli Power 
ECK Generating 
Rocky Road Power 
Mustang 

Sabine River Works Cogeneration 
Quixx Linden L.P.  
Borger Energy L.P.  
Denver City Energy Associates, L.P.  
Various independent power production facilities 
Various affordable housing limited partnerships

Geographic Area 

Australia 
Europe 

Australia 
South America 

Europe 
USA 

Europe 
USA 

Australia 
Latin America 

India 
Czech Republic 

USA 
USA 
USA 
USA 
USA 
USA 
USA 
USA

Dec. 31, 2001 
Economic Interest 

25.37% 
25.00% 
37.50% 
49.45% 
50.00% 
20.00% 
41.90% 
50.00% 
25.10% 
25.00% 
30.00% 
44.50% 
50.00% 
25.00% 
50.00% 
50.00% 
45.00% 
50.00% 
9-70% 

20-99.9%

The following table summarizes financial information for these projects, including interests owned by Xcel Energy and other parties 

for the years ended Dec. 31: 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

(Millions of dollars) 2001

Operating revenues 
Operating income 
Net income

$3,583 
$ 442 
$ 422

2000

$4,664 
$ 464 
$ 447

1999

$4,087 

$ 516 
$ 290

Xcel Energy's equity earnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 217 $ 183 $ 112

FINANCIAL POSITION

(Millions of dollars) 

Current assets 
Olther assets 

Total assets

2001 2000 

$1,478 $ 1,590 
7,396 10,939 

$8,874 $12,529
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FINANCJAL POSITION CONTINUED 

Villions of dollars) 

Current liabilities 
Other liabilities 
Equity 

Total liabilities and equity 

XceI Energys share of undistributed retained earnings

2001 

$1,229 
4,841 
2,804 

$8,874

2000 

$ 1,833 
6,806 
3,890 

$12,529

$ 93 $ 96

lo3n•elC i" During February 2001, Xcel Energy reached an agreement to sell the majority of its investment in Yorkshire Power to 
Innogy Holdings plc. As a result of this sales agreement, Xcel Energy' did not record any equity earnings from Yorkshire Power after 
January 2001. In April 2001, Xcel Energy closed the sale of Yorkshire Power. Xcel Energy' has retained an interest of approximately 5.25 
percent in Yorkshire Power to comply with pooling-of-interests accounting requirements associated with the merger of NSP and NCE in 
2000. Xcel Energy received approximately $366 million for the sale, which approximated the book value of Xcel Energy's investment.  

A/, s ,it i~i0 . s in, During the year ended Dec. 31, 2001, NRG completed numerous acquisitions of project assets and related 
liabilities. These acquisitions have been recorded using the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, the purchase prices of each 

acquisition have been preliminarily allocated to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the various 
dates of acquisition. These estimates will be adjusted based upon completion of certain procedures, including third party valuations.  
Operations of the acquired projects have been included in Xcel Ener,,'s results of operations since the respective dates of each acquisition.  

The following is a summary of the projects acquired in 2001:

Total Plant ,lega iatt 

5,633 (1,697 in ope 

or under constrU 

2,255 (402 in oper

Termo Rio (Brazil) 
Schkopau (Germany) 

Audrain (USA) 
Fort Bend (USA) 
Csepcl (Hungary) 
McClain (USA) 
Cogentrix (USA) 
MIBRAC, (Germany)

372 in ope

(m IV) 

ration 
ction)

.\RG Owinership 

100%

ation) 100% 
4,340 100% of 918 MW, 

4% of remainder 
1,040 50% 

960 Increased from 
2 1 % to 42% 

640 100% 
633 100% 

505 100% 

500 77% 

837 100% 
233 Increased from 

33 % to 50% 

ration various

Operations

Operations beginning in 2004 

Operations beginning in 2003

The respective purchase prices of these 2001 acquisitions have been allocated to the net assets of the acquired NRG projects as follows: 

(Thousands na'fdollaus) 

Current assets $ 307,654 
Properts, plant and equipment 4,173,509 
Noncurrent portion of notes receivable 736,041 
Current portion of long-term debt assumed (61,268) 
Other current liabilities (99,666) 
Long-term debt assumed (1,586,501) 
Deferred income taxes (149,988) 
Other long-term liabilities (202,411) 
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities (181,473) 

Total purchase price 2,935,897 
Less cash balances acquired (122,780) 

Net purchase price $ 2,813,117
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12. ELECTRIC UTILITY RESTRUCTURING - SPS 

In the second quarter of 2000, SPS discontinued regulatory accounting under SFAS No. 71 for the generation portion of its business 
due to the issuance of a written order by the Public Utility Commission of Texas (PUCT) in May 2000, addressing the implementation 
of electric utility restructuring. SPS' transmission and distribution business continued to meet the requirements of SFAS No. 71, as 
that business was expected to remain regulated. During the second quarter of 2000, SPS wrote off its generation-related regulatory 
assets and other deferred costs totaling approximately $19.3 million. This resulted in an after-tax extraordinary charge of approximately 
$13.7 million. During the third quarter of 2000, SPS recorded an extraordinary charge of $8.2 million before tax, or $5.3 million 
after tax, related to the tender offer and defeasance of first mortgage bonds. The first mortgage bonds were defeased to facilitate the legal 
separation of generation, transmission and distribution assets, which was expected to eventually occur in 2001 under restructuring 
requirements in effect in 2000.  

In March 2001, the state of New Mexico enacted legislation that amended its Electric Utility Restructuring Act of 1999 and delayed 
customer choice until 2007. SPS has requested recovery of its costs incurred to prepare for customer choice in New Mexico. A decision 
on this and other matters is pending before the New Mexico Public Regulation Commission. SPS expects to receive future regulatory 
recovery of these costs.  

In June 2001, the governor of Texas signed legislation postponing the deregulation and restructuring of SPS until 2007. This legislation 
amended the 1999 legislation, Senate Bill No. 7 (SB-7), which provided for retail electric competition to begin in Texas in January 2002.  
Under the amended legislation, prior PUCT orders issued in connection with the restructuring of SPS are considered null and void. SPS' 
restructuring and rate unbundling proceedings in Texas have been terminated. In addition, under the legislation, SPS is entitled to recover 
all reasonable and necessary expenditures made or incurred before Sept. 1, 2001, to comply with SB-7. As required, SPS filed an application 
during the fourth quarter of 2001, requesting a rate rider to recover these costs incurred preparing for customer choice. These 
proceedings are pending.  

As a result of these recent legislative developments, SPS reapplied the provisions of SFAS No. 71 for its generation business during 
the second quarter of 2001. More than 95 percent of SPS' retail electric revenues are from operations in Texas and New Mexico.  
Because of the delays to electric restructuring passed by Texas and New Mexico, SPS' previous plans to implement restructuring, 
including the divestiture of generation assets, have been abandoned. Accordingly, SPS will now continue to be subject to rate regulation 
under traditional cost-of-service regulation, consistent with its past accounting and ratemaking practices for the foreseeable future 
(at least until 2007). In the second quarter of 2001, SPS did not restore any regulatory assets or other costs previously written off due 
to the uncertainty of various regulatory issues, including transition plans to address future rate recovery of SPS' restructuring costs.  

During the fourth quarter of 2001, SPS completed a $500-million medium-term debt financing, with the proceeds used to reduce 
short-term borrowings that had resulted from the 2000 defeasance. In its regulatory filings and communications, SPS has proposed 
to amortize its defeasance costs over the five-year life of the refinancing, consistent with historical ratemaking, and has requested 
incremental rate recovery of $25 million of other restructuring costs in Texas and New Mexico, as previously discussed. These 
nonfinancing restructuring costs have been deferred and will be amortized in the future consistent with rate recovery. Management 
believes it will be allowed full recovery of its prudently incurred costs. Based on these fourth-quarter events and the corresponding 
reduced uncertainty surrounding the financial impacts of the delay in restructuring, SPS restored certain regulatory assets totaling 
$17.6 million as of Dec. 31, 2001, and reported related after-tax extraordinary income of $11.8 million, or 3 cents per share.  
Regulatory assets previously written off in 2000 were restored only for items currently being recovered in rates and items where 
future rate recovery is considered probable.  

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

FAIR VALUES 

The estimated Dec. 31 fair values of Xcel Energy's recorded financial instruments are as follows: 

2001 2000 
Carrying Carrying (Thousands of dollars) Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value 

Mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trusts $ 494,000 $ 486,270 $ 494,000 $ 481,270 
Long-term investments $ 619,976 $ 620,703 $ 625,616 $ 624,989 
Notes receivable, including current portion $ 782,079 $ 782,079 $ 99,557 $ 99,557 
Long-term debt, including current portion $12,799,723 $12,788,749 $8,187,052 $8,131,139
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For cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments, the carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short maturity of 

those instruments. The fair values ofXcel Energ's long-term investments, mainly debt securities in an external nuclear decommissioning 

fund, are estimated based on quoted market prices for those or similar investments. The fair value of notes receivable is based on 

expected future cash flows discounted at market interest rates. The balance in notes receivable consists primarily of fixed and variable 

rate notes (interest rates ranging from 4.75 percent to 19.5 percent and maturiries ranging from 2001 to 2024). Notes receivable include 

a 5319-million direct financing lease related to a long-term sales agreement for NRG's Schkopau project, and other notes related to 

projects at NRG that are generally secured by equity interests in partnerships and joint ventures. The fair value of Xcel Energxys 

long-term debt and the mandatorily redeemable preferred securities are estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or 

similar issues, or the current rates for debt of the same remaining maturities and credit quality.  

The fair value estimates presented are based on information available to management as of Dec. 31, 2001 aid 2000. These fair value 

estimates have not been comprehensively revalued for purposes of these financial statements since that date and current estimates of 

fair values may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein.  

GUARA\ E8S 

Xcel Energ© had the following guarantees outstanding as of Dec. 31, 2001 (in millions of dollars):

Gua6ihtior (;iuarantsee A 

NRG $ 

Xcel Energy 
Vsarious Subsidiaries 

Xcel Energy 
Xcel Fnergy 

Xcel Fnergy 

Xcel Energy 

SPS 

Xcel Energy 

Xcel Energy 

NS10-Minnesota 

Xcel Energy 

Xccl Energy 

Xcel Energy 

Xcel Energy

itioit \'ature oa Giaraiitee

7'21.7 Obligations pursuant to its guarantees of the performance, equity and indebtedness obligations of its 

subsidiaries. Xcel 1Energy is not obligated under these agreements.  

343.1 Guarantee performancc and payment of surety bonds for itself and its subsidiaries.  

336.9 Guarantee performance and payment of sulety bonds for those subsidiaries. Xcel F ncrx, is not obligated 

tinder these agreements.  

270.7 Guarantees made to facilitate e prime's natural gas acquisition, marketing and trading operations.  

60.0 Guarantee on the payxments on notes issued by Guardian pipeline LLC, of which Viking Gas 

"Transmission Co. is one of three partners. The guarantee will terminate on the in-service date of the 

pipeline, which is expected to be March 2003.  

28.5 Three guarantees benefiting Cheyenne to guarantee the payment obligations tinder gas and power 

purchase agreements.  

25.0 Construction contract guarantee that assures Quixxs performance Under its engineering, procurement 

and construction contiact with Borger Energx Associates, [P (BEA). Quixx, which owns 45 percent of 

BEA, has constructed a 230-mcgawatt, cogeneration facility at a Phillips Petroleum site near Borger, 

Texas. The guarantee will remain in effect until no later than July 2003.  

22.9 Guarantee for certain obligations of a customer in connection with an agree ment for the sale of electric 

power. These obligations relate to the consu uction of certain utility property that, in the event of default 

by the customert would revert to SPS.  

F.9 Guarantees related to energy conservation projects in which Planergy has guaranteed certain energs savings 

to the customer. As energy savings are realized each year due to these projects, the value of the guarantee 

decreases until it reaches zero in 2024.  

17.0 Guarantees payments for XERS Inc., a nonregulated subsidiary ofXcel F-nergv under a Master Power 

Purchase and Sale Agreement and a Qualified Scheduling Etity Services Agreement. This guarantee 

was terminated arid replaced with a $10-inilion guarantee in January 2002.  

11.6 NSP-Minnesota sold a portion of its receivables to a third parts. The portion of the receivables sold 

consisted of customer loans to local and state government entities for energy efficiency improvements 

tinder various conservation programs oftered bhy NSP-Minnesota. Under the sales agreements, NSP

Minnesota is required to guarantee repayment to the third party of the remaining loan balances. Based 

on prior collection expericice of these loans, losses under the loan guarantees, if anY, are not believed 

to have a material impact on the reseilts nf operations.  

5.0 Guarantee on behalfof BNP Paribas in connection xxith a letter of credit provided by BNP Paribas at the 

request ofSPS. The letter of credit is required to indeoxniFr former SPS moard of directors.  

4.5 Guarantee for c prime Energy Markeitng, Inc.'s perforixancc of obligations under a supply agreement 

and for payments of cxerg, and capacity transactions.  

3.0 Guarantee resulting fromn noncomipletion of certain milesione achievements within required dates in 

connection xvith [he Qumixx , iinden cogeneration plant. The milestones have been achieved as of 

December 2001. The guarantee is required to remain six months upon completion ef these milestones.  

Therefore, the guarantee will be released June 2002, assuming contract requireixents are met.  

4.1 Combination of uaranitees benefiting various XCee Energ subsildiaries.

FAI R VAL E OF ERIVATVE I N ST RU ENTS 

The following discussion briefiy describes the derivatives of Xcel Energy atid its subsidiaries and discloses the respective fair values 

at Dec. 31, 2001. For more detailed information regarding derivative financial instruments and the related risks, see Note 14 to the 

Financial Statements.
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Interest Rate Swaps As of Dec. 31, 2001, Xcel Energy had several interest rate swaps converting project financing from variable-rate 
debt to fixed-rate debt with a notional amount of approximately $2.5 billion. The fair value of the swaps as of Dec. 31, 2001 was a 
liability of approximately $92 million.  

As of Dec. 31, 2000, Xcel Energy had several interest rate swaps converting project financing from variable-rate debt to fixed-rate debt 
with a notional amount of approximately $598 million. The fair value of the swaps as of Dec. 31, 2000 was a liability of approximately 

$36 million.  

Electric Trading Operations Xcel Energy participates in the trading of electricity as a commodity. This trading includes forward contracts, 
futures and options. Xcel Energy makes purchases and sales at existing market points or combines purchases with available transmission 
to make sales at other market points. Options and hedges are used to either minimize the risks associated with market prices, or to 
profit from price volatility related to our purchase and sale commitments.  

Xcel Energy has recorded its physical trading transactions on total contract purchases and total contract sales known as the gross 
accounting method. All financial derivative contracts and contracts that do not include physical delivery are recorded at the amount 
of the gain or loss received from the contract. The mark-to-market adjustments for these transactions are appropriately reported in the 
Consolidated Statement of Income in Electric and Gas Trading Revenues.  

The fair value of Xcel Energy's trading contracts as of Dec. 31, 2001 is as follows: 

(millions of dollars) Total Fair Value 

Fair value of trading contracts outstanding at Jan. 1, 2001 $ 8.6 
Contracts realized or settled during 2001 (87.0) 
Fair value of trading contract additions and changes during the year 96.2 
Fair value of contracts outstanding at Dec. 31, 2001 ' $ 17.8 

- Amounts do not include the impact of ratepayer sharing in Colorado.  

The future maturities of Xcel Energy's trading contracts are as follows: 
('Millions of dollars) Maturity Maturity Total 
Source of Fair Value Less than 1 Year 1 to 3 Years Fair Value 
Prices actively quoted $15.3 $1.0 $16.3 
Prices based on models and other valuation methods 

(including prices quoted from external sources) 1.2 0.3 1.5 

Regulated Operations Xcel Energy's regulated energy marketing operation uses a combination of energy and gas purchase for resale 
futures and forward contracts, along with physical supply, to hedge market risks in the energy market. At Dec. 31, 2001, the notional 
value of these contracts was approximately $83.8 million. The fair value of these contracts as of Dec. 31, 2001, was a liability of 
approximately $24 million.  

Nonregulated Operations Xcel Energy's nonregulated operations uses a combination of energy futures and forward contracts, along 
with physical supply, to hedge market risks in the energy market. At Dec. 31, 2001, the notional value of these contracts was 
approximately $1.0 billion. The fair value of these contracts as of Dec. 31, 2001, was an asset of approximately $242.2 million.  

Foreign Currency Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries have two foreign currency swaps to hedge or protect foreign currency denominated 
cash flows. At Dec. 31, 2001 and 2000, the net notional amount of these contracts was approximately $46.3 million and $8.8 million, 
respectively. The fair value of these contracts as of Dec. 31, 2001 and 2000 was a liability of approximately $2.4 million and $0.7 
million, respectively.  

LETTERS OF CREDIT 

Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries use letters of credit, generally with terms of one or two years, to provide financial guarantees for certain 
operating obligations. In addition, NRG uses letters of credit for nonregulated equity commitments, collateral for credit agreements, 
fuel purchase and operating commitments, and bids on development projects. At Dec. 31, 2001, there were $221.7 million in letters 
of credit outstanding, including $169.7 million related to NRG commitments. The contract amounts of these letters of credit 
approximate their fair value and are subject to fees determined in the marketplace.  

14. DERIVATIVE VALUATION AND FINANCIAL IMPACTS 

Business and Operational Risk Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries are exposed to commodity price risk in their generation, retail distribution 
and energy trading operations. In certain jurisdictions, purchased power expenses and natural gas costs are recovered on a dollar-for
dollar basis. However, in other jurisdictions, we are exposed to market price risk for the purchase and sale of electric energy and natural 
gas. In such jurisdictions, we recover purchased power expenses and natural gas costs based on fixed price limits or under negotiated 
sharing mechanisms.  
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Commodity price risk is managed by entering into purchase and sales commitments for electric power and natural gas, long-term 

contracts for coal supplies and fuel oil and derivative Financial instruments. Ncel Energvs risk management policy allows us to manage 

the market price risk within its rate-regulated operations to the extent such exposure exists. MIanagement is limited under the policy 

to enter into 0iily transactions that reduce market price risk where the rate regulation jurisdiction does not already provide for dollar 

for dollar recovery. One exception to this policy exists in which We use various physical contracts and derivative instruments to reduce 

the cost of natural gas we provide to our retail customers even though the rcgulatory jurisdiction provides dollar-for-dollar recovery 

of actual costs. This jurisdiction allowss us to iecosCe the gains and losses oni derivative instruntitis used to reduce our exposure to 

market price risk.  

Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries are exposed to market price risk for the sale of electric energv and the purchase of fuel resources, including 

coal, natural gas and fuel oil used to generate the electric energy within its nonregulated operations. Xcel Energy manages this market 

price risk by entering into firm power sales agreements for approximately 60 to 75 percent of its electric capacity and energy from each 

generation facilityx using contracts with terms ranging from one to 25 years. In addition, we manage the market price risk covering the 

fuel resource requirements to provide the electric energy by entering into purchase commitments and derivative instruments for coal, 

natural gas and fuel oil as needed to meet fixed priced electric energy requirements. Xcel Energy s risk mnanagement policy allows us to 

manage the market price risks and prox ides guidelines for the level of pi ice risk exposure that is acceptable within our operations.  

Xcel Energy is exposed to market price risk for the sale of elecric energy and the purchase of fuel resources used to generate the electric 

energy from our equity method investments that own electric operations. Xcel Energy manages this market price risk through our 

involvoment with the managemenr committee or board of directors of each of these ventures. Our risk m anagernent policy does not 

cover the activities conducted by the ventures. Hoswever, other policies are adopted by the ventures as necessary and mandated by the 

equity owners.  

/ 'Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries arc exposed to fluctuations in interest rates where we enter into variable rate debt 

obligations to fund certain power projects being developed or pcuchased. Exposure to interest rate fluctuations is mitigated by entering 

into derivative instruments known as interest rate swaps, caps, collars and put or call options. These contracts reduce exposure to 

interest rate volatility and result in primarily fixed rate debt obligations wxxhen taking into account the combination of the variable 

rate debt and the interest rate derivative instrument. Xcel Energys risk management policy' allows Ls to reduce our interest rate exposure 

from variable rate debt obligations.  

,.,,Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries have certain investments in foreign countries exposing ts to foreign currencx 

exchange risk. The foreign currency exchange risk includes the risk relatixe to the recovery of our net insestment in a project as well as the 

risk relative to the earnings and cash flows generated from such operations. Xcel Energy manages its exposure to changes in foreign 

Currency by entering into derivative instruments as determined by management. Our risk management policy provides for this risk 

management activirs.  

A'./,/, Xccl Energy and its Subsidiaries conduct various trading operations and power marketing activities, including the pur

chase and sale of electric capacity and energy and natural gas. Phe trading operations are conducted both in the United States.  

and Europe with primary focus on specific market regions whero trading knowledge and experience have been obtained. Xcel Energy's 

risk management polity allows management to conduct the trading activitsy within approved guidelines and limitations as approved 

by our risk management committee made up of management personnel nor involved in the trading operations.  

On Jan. 1, 2001, Keel Energy adopted SFAS No. 133. This statement requires that all derivative instruments as 

defined by' SEAS No. 133 be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value unless exempted. Changes in a derivative instrument's fair 

value must be recognized currently in earnings unless the derivative has been designated in a qualifying hedging relationship.  

The application of hedge accounting allows a derivative instrutmnrts gains and losses to offset related results of the hedged item in 

the income statement, to the extent effective. SFAS No. 133 requires that the hedging relationship be highly effective and that a company 

formally designate a hedging relationship to apply hedge accounting 

A fair value hedge requires that the effective portion of the change in the lair value of a derivative instrument be offset against the 

change in the fair value of the underlying asset, liability or firm commitment being hedged. That is, fair value hedge accounting allows 

the offsetting gain or loss on the hedged iteim to be reported in an earlier period to offset the gain or loss on the derivative instrument.  

A cash flow hedge requires that the effective portion of the change in the fair value of a iderivative instrument be recognized in Other 

Comprehensive Income, and reclassified into earnings it the same period o-r periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.  

The ineffective portion of a derivative instruiment s change in ftili xalUe is recognized currently in earnings.  

Xcel Energy formally documents its hedge relationships, including, among other things, the identification of'the hedging instrument 

and the hedged transaction, as well as the risk mantagement objectives and strategies ford undertaking the hedged transaction. Derivatives 

are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Xcel Energy also formally assesses, both at inception and at least quarterly thereafter, whether 

the derivative instruments being used are highly effective in offsetting changes in either the fair value or cash flows of the hedged items.
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The adoption of SFAS No. 133 on Jan. 1,2001, resulted in an earnings impact of less than $1 million, which is not being reported 
separately as a cumulative effect of accounting change due to immateriality. In addition, upon adoption of SFAS No. 133, Xcel Energy 
recorded a net transition loss of approximately $28.8 million in Other Comprehensive Income.  

The components of SPAS No. 133 impacts on Xcel Energy's Other Comprehensive Income, included in stockholders' equity, are 
detailed in the following table: 

(Millions of dollars) 

Net unrealized transition loss at adoption, Jan. 1, 2001 $(28.8) 
After-tax net unrealized gains related to derivatives accounted for as hedges 43.6 
After-tax net realized losses on derivative transactions reclassified into earnings 19.4 
Accumulated other comprehensive income related to SIAS No. 133 $ 34.2 

The components of the gain for SPAS No. 133 impacts on Xcel Energy's income statement for the year ended Dec. 31, 2001, are 

detailed in the following table. The amounts below exclude our gains and losses from trading activities.  

(Millions of dollars, except per share data) 

Increase (decrease) in income: 
Nonregulated and other revenues $ (8.1) 
Equity earnings from investment in affiliates 4.6 
Electric fuel and purchased power - utility 0.1 
Cost of goods sold - nonregulated and other 17.5 
Other income (deductions) 0.2 
Total increase before minority interest and income tax $14.3 

Net-of-tax increase in net income $ 9.8 

Increase in EPS (diluted) $0.03 

Xcel Energy records the fair value of its derivative instruments in its Consolidated Balance Sheet as separate line items noted as 
Derivative Instruments Valuation for assets and liabilities as well as current and noncurrent.  

NORMAL PURCHASES OR NORMAL SALES 

Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries enter into fixed price contracts for the purchase and sale of various commodities for use in our business 
operations. SPAS No. 133 requires a company to evaluate these contracts to determine whether the contracts are derivatives. Certain 
contracts that literally meet the definition of a derivative may be exempted from SPAS No. 133 as normal purchases or normal sales.  
Normal purchases and normal sales are contracts that provide for the purchase or sale of something other than a financial instrument 
or derivative instrument that will be delivered in quantities expected to be used or sold over a reasonable period in the normal course 
of business. Contracts that meet the requirements of normal are documented as normal and exempted from the accounting and 
reporting requirements of SPAS No. 133.  

Xcel Energy evaluates all of its contracts within the regulated and nonregulated operations when such contracts are entered into to 
determine if they are derivatives and if so, if they qualify and meet the normal designation requirements under SPAS No. 133. None 
of the contracts entered into within the trading operations are considered normal.  

Normal purchases and normal sales contracts are accounted for as executory contracts as required under other generally accepted 

accounting principles.  

CASH FLOW HEDGES 

Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries enter into derivative instruments to manage our exposure to changes in commodity prices. These 
derivative instruments take the form of fixed price, floating price or index sales or purchases and options, such as puts, calls and swaps.  
These derivative instruments are designated as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes and the changes in the fair value of these 
instruments are recorded as a component of Other Comprehensive Income. At Dec. 31, 2001, Xcel Energy had various commodity 
related contracts extending through 2018. Earnings on these cash flow hedges are recorded as the hedged purchase or sales transac
tion is completed. This could include the physical sale of electric energy or the usage of natural gas to generate electric energy. Xcel 
Energy expects to reclassify into earnings during 2002 net gains from Other Comprehensive Income of approximately $18.0 million.  

Xcel Energy and its subsidiaries enter into interest rate swap instruments that effectively fix the interest payments on certain floating 
rate debt obligations. These derivative instruments are designated as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes and the change in the 
fair value of these instruments is recorded as a component of Other Comprehensive Income. Xcel Energy expects to reclassify into 
earnings during 2002 net losses from Other Comprehensive Income of approximately $5.6 million.
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\cc[ 1 adrgp" records hedge effcictixcxnss based oni the naturec of the item being hcdgcd. Hedging transactions fior the sales of electric 

cixer" art recorded as a component of revenoic. hedging transactions foi fuel usced in ciergy generation are ieccorcied as a component 

of focl costs and hiedgingi tlansactions ftot intercst race swaps arc recorded as a component of interest expcitse.  

The nct gain (loss) recognized it ctarnings Fot dci ix aoix csIruxxxcttx s thai have bicn designated and qualicii as cash ftoxi tlthxex iginxg instrucments 

arc detailed in the ollowinx table.  

[) i veri ,ii i /I il (-otmm i te it! 
Lv: /lh'd /' / om> A'o 1.ongee 

"ý%Iillions deoflal)h>- Ie(, .,es,menr 0,f Qual{i4;iiý as ('s 
ýýw,r eq,w,d / 51c..• , 2001 l,, i nb , l,..,s'S ! '. / ?11_1I l[it 'ellc> N-ow, Meeios 

E~nergy and cncrgý-rclarcdl commodities S 27.9 
Interest ia tcs-

FAIR VALUE HEDGES AND HEDGES OF FOREIGN CURRENýCY EXPOSURE OF A NET INVESTMAENT IN FOREIGN OPERATIONS 

"tb preserve the U'.S. dollar NatlIe of"proieCed foreCign currency10 cash f]exes, XccI FAC-Veg> throuLgh NlR(, may hedge, oi- protect those 
cash flows if appropriate foreign hedging instruments are available. Xcel V-nergy expects to reclassit\V into earnings during 2002 net 

losses from Other (Comprehiensivc Income of"approxhmatcl) S2.2 million.  

DERIVATIVES NOT DUALIFYING FOR HEDGE ACCOUNITING 

XCeC["neg alld its sulbsidiaries have variouIs trading" operIations that cater into derivative instruments. T[hese derivative instruments are 

accoun~ted f•>i onl a mark-to-market basis inl the CLonsolidated Statements of Income. 2-Vt financial derivative hlIst111rumns are recorded at 
the a'ouent of`the gain or loss fieom the transaction within Operating' ,evcntis on the Consolidated Statements of Income.  

Ici order to preseeci the U.S. dollac Val e ofprojCted fi.1rclgn currecy cash iloNes From [•uropcan tradiigoperations, we ener into various 

foreign currcnth exchang. contracts that arx not e ci signated as accoxix nglox xe licdgces bUt are coosidered economic hcdgcs. Accordinglx 

the changes ii n x ir value of" these dig riatives arc reported i i ictix Nonoiiccating Incomxc in the Cc onsolidatd Staicients ofi Income.  

15. COMMITMENTS ANO CONTINGENCIES 

C 0 M V I NTOMT S 

/ci./'•g; ."./,'.•;~i • (o>,.,,','>,c;'t< In 1994, NSiP-Mlirm sota receCVCive MlnnCsota legislaiea po a 1, d ito a nst e p rr 
spent fuiel stoiagc facilities at its Pxahie Island nuicuar powci plant, provided NSP-itxc iIxcsota satisfics certain r xqUix acFents.  

Scvcticen drtcxi cask containers weir appixi ed. As otx DCc. 3c, 2001, NSP-Sxinnesota had loaded 14 ofxxh e coctainers. The 

Milinnesota I.Cegisatffc established several cncrg> resource and other commitments forl N-SP-M~innesota to obtain the Prairie Island 
temporary nuLclear Icld stora~ge f~acility approval. Tlhese commitiniens can be met lby buildin~g, purchasing, or ill the case ofibiomass, 

COn1VCering "cniclationl ieSOtlliceS.  

Other comio itments established by the lr.Cislatilc inciLidCd a discouxnt Cio low-income electric customers, required conservation 

ilmprovmcent expcx nditures and various stuidy and eporting rcquirimenis to a legislative electric energi task 1x)rcx. NSP-ce innesota 
has iixplcrited programs to mcct the legislative commintnas. NSP-ct ixnesota's capitax coxax iticncts irldc the known effects 

of the lprairie island legislation. The impact of' the legislation on future power purchase commitments and other operating expenises 

is not Yet determinable.  

(.•~i:,i b;,•,.::,'•,t: As discussed il [Liquidity and (.[apital Resources underi Managcenici's Discussion and Analysis, the estimated 

cost, as of [co. 3 ,2001. of the capital expenlditure1 prIograIms Of'\oll.CrCI anld its suibsidiaries and other capital requireentcis is approxi

ntatclN S2.8 billion inl 2002, S%2.6 billion in 2003 and $2.- billion in 20!04.  

The capital cxpendliture programs ofiXcel clxc ar cIlbjcc U ar0 sci to cxtixuing rcvipcu and modification. Actual tlit cxtcit ionxccxxe 

xxpenditurcs may vary f'rom the 1stimates (ei to chaigexxcs ix i electric and niatuial gas projected load grolith, the desired reserve 

margin axld the availability Ofx purchased power, as %xcll as altienaxixe plans f Ni i meeting Xcxl xincrgy's long-term nciery needs.  

Sex addition, Xcc x Energy's ongoin evaluation of mccgiA acqui[S itioe I and divest ituIe oppoNrutu itius to siicpi ot couporate strategies, 

address restructuring11 requiCtiremets and comply \with futluir requireentcls to install en'lission-conttol equipment may impact actual 

capital requLiremenClts.  

\eel nixxcitas capital expenditures inxclx de appioximately xc .6 billion in 2002 fcor N SI( i\esxnxcxits acd asset acquisitions. NRias 

FL11tu'c capital rcquit-lnents may vary, significantly. For 20021, NR(_s capital requhicnents reflect expected acquisitions of'existing generation 
cix itixS, inC ing the a assets ofFilstt~nergý ('orp. and Ele ('onccti% fossil assets. See fithcr discussion in Note 19 to ttle 

Financial Statements.
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Leases Our subsidiaries lease a variety of equipment and facilities used in the normal course of business. Some of these leases qualify as 

capital leases and are accounted for accordingly. The capital leases expire between 2002 and 2025. The net book value of property 

under capital leases was approximately $605 million and $55 million at Dec. 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Assets acquired 

under capital leases are recorded as property at the lower of fair-market value or the present value of future lease payments and are 

amortized over their actual contract term in accordance with practices allowed by regulators. The related obligation is classified as long

term debt. Executory costs are excluded from the minimum lease payments.  

The remainder of the leases, primarily leases of coal-hauling railcars, trucks, cars and power-operated equipment are accounted for as 

operating leases. Rental expense under operating lease obligations was approximately $58 million, $56 million and $57 million for 
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.  

Future commitments under operating and capital leases are: 

(Millions of dollars) Operating Leo..s.Gapiral Leases 

2002 $ 54 $ 77 
2003 50 75 

2004 50 73 
2005 48 71 
2006 45 69 

Thereafter 1,073 
Total minimum obligation S 1,438 

Interest (834) 
Present value of minimum obligation $ 604 

Technology Agreement We have a contract that extends through 2011 with International Business Machines Corp. (IBM) for information 

technology services. The contract is cancelable at our option, although there are financial penalties for early termination. In 2001, we paid 
IBM $130 million under the contract. The contract also commits us to pay a minimum amount each year from 2002 through 2011.  

Fuel Contracts Xcel Energy has contracts providing for the purchase and delivery of a significant portion of its current coal, 

nuclear fuel and natural gas requirements. These contracts expire in various years between 2002 and 2025. In total, Xcel Energy is 

committed to the minimum purchase of approximately $2.8 billion of coal, $122.3 million of nuclear fuel and $1.3 billion of natural 

gas and related transportation, or to make payments in lieu thereof, under these contracts. In addition, Xcel Energy is required to 

pay additional amounts depending on actual quantities shipped under these agreements. Xcel Energy's risk of loss, in the form of 
increased costs, from market price changes in fuel is mitigated through the cost-of-energy adjustment provision of the ratemaking 

process, which provides for recovery of most fuel costs.  

Purchased Power Agreements The utility and nonregulated subsidiaries of Xcel Energy have entered into agreements with utilities and 

other energy suppliers for purchased power to meet system load and energy requirements, replace generation from company-owned 
units under maintenance and during outages, and meet operating reserve obligations. NSP-Minnesota, PSCo, SPS and certain nonregulated 

subsidiaries have various pay-for-performance contracts with expiration dates through the year 2050. In general, these contracts 

provide for capacity payments, subject to meeting certain contract obligations, and energy payments based on actual power taken 

under the contracts. Most of the capacity and energy costs are recovered through base rates and other cost recovery mechanisms.  

NSP-Minnesota has a 500-megawatt participation power purchase commitment with Manitoba Hydro, which expires in 2005.  

The cost of this agreement is based on 80 percent of the costs of owning and operating NSP-Minnesota's Sherco 3 generating 

plant, adjusted to 1993 dollars. In addition, NSP-Minnesota and Manitoba Hydro have seasonal diversity exchange agreements, and 

there are no capacity payments for the diversity exchanges. These commitments represent about 17 percent of Manitoba Hydro's 

system capacity and account for approximately 10 percent of NSP-Minnesota's 2001 electric system capability. The risk of loss from 

nonperformance by Manitoba Hydro is not considered significant, and the risk of loss from market price changes is mitigated through 

cost-of-energy rate adjustments.  

At Dec. 31, 2001, the estimated future payments for capacity that the utility and nonregulated subsidiaries of Xcel Energy are 

obligated to purchase, subject to availability, are as follows: 

(Thousands of dollars) Total 

2002 $ 507,095 
2003 513,979 
2004 590,109 
2005 658,976 
2006 and thereafter 4,135,048 

Total $ 6,405,207
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ENVIR .J'IEXNTAL CONTINGENCIES 

We are subject to regulations covering air and water quality, land use, the storage of natural gas and the storage and disposal of 
hazardous or toxic wastes. \Xe continuously assess our compliance. Regulations, interpretations and enforcement policies can change, 
which may impact the cost of building and operating our faciliities. This includes NRG. which is subject to regional, federal and 
international environmental regulation.  

K .,.c; , ,. We must pay all or a portion of the cost to rensediate sites where past activities Of our subsidiaries and some other 
parties have caused environmental contamination. At Dec. 31, 2001, there were three categories of sires: 

- third party sites, such as landfills, to which we are alleged to be a potentially responsible party (PRP) that sent hazardous materials 

and wastes; 

- the site of a former federal tiranium enrichment facility; and 
- sites of former manufactured gas plants (MGPs) operated by our subsidiaries or predecessors.  

We record a liability when we have enough information to develop an estimate of the cost of enxvironrsental remediation and revise 
the estimate as information is received. The estimated reisediation cost ((axx vary maxr rially.  

To estimate the cost to remediate these sites, we may have to manke assuimptions when facts aic not fullx known. For instance, we 
might make assumptions about the nature and extent of site contamination, the extent Of required cleaisuip efforts, costs of alternative 
cleanup methods and pollution-control technologies, the period over xxhich rensediation will be performed and paid for, changes in 
environmental remediation and polluction-control requiremennts, the potential effect of techinological improvements, the number and 
financial strength of other PRPs and the identification of nex eni ironmental cleanup sites.  

We revise our estimates as facts become known, but at Dec. 31. 2001, our liabiliry fcor the cost of rimediating sites for which an 
estimate was possible was $51 million, including $13 million in current liabilities. Some of the cost of iemecdiation may be 

recovered from: 

- insurance coverage; 

- other parties that have contributed to the contamination; and 

- Customers.  

Neither the total remediation cost nor the final method of cost allocation amrong all PRls of the unricnediated sites has been determined.  
We have recorded estimates of our share of fcuture costs for these sites. \Ve are not aware of ainy other par ties' inability to pay, nor do 

we know if responsibility for any of the sites is in dispute.  

Approximately 519 million of the long-term liability and $4 million of the current liability relate to a DO assessment to NSP
Minnesota and PSCo for decommissioning a federal tiraisium enrichment facilitv. These environmenisal liabilities do not include 
accruals recorded and collected from customers in rates for future nuclear ftucl disposal costs or decommissioning costs related to 
NSP-Minnesora's nuclear generating plants. See Note 16 to the Financial Statements for further discussion of nuclear obligations.  

/ .J,,., .( .. w ~ NSP-Wisconsin was named as one of three PRPs for creosote and coal tcar contamination at a site in Ashland, 
Wis. The Ashland site includes property owned by NSP-Wisconsin arid two other properties: an adjacent city lakeshore park area 
and a small area of Lake Superior's Chequemegon Bay adjoining the park.  

The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) arid NSP-\Wisconsin have each developed several estimates of the ultimate 
cost to remediate the Ashland site. The estimates vary significantly, between S4 million and S93 million, because different isethods 
of remediation and different results are assumed in each. The Envirotsm scntal Piotection Agencx (EPA) and WDNR have not yet 
selected the method of remediation to ttse at the site. Until the IPA arid the WDNR select a reiecdiation strategy for all operable 
units at the site and determine the level of responsibility ofeach PRPE we are not able to accurately detrerminie otii share of the ultimate 
cost of remediating the Ashland site.  

In the interim, NSP-Wisconsin has recorded a liabilirs for aim estimate of its share of the cost of reisediating the portion of the 
Ashland site that it owxns, using information available to date and reasonably effective remedial methods. NSP-Wisconsin has 
deferred, as a regulatory asset, the remediation costs accrued for the Ashland site because We expect that the Public Service 
Commission of Wisconsin (PSC\W) will continue to allow NSP-WXisconsin to recover payments for environmental retamediation from its 
customers. The PSCW has consistently authorized recovery in NSP-Wisconsin rarcs of all reniediation costs itcurred at the Ashland 
site, and has authorized recovers' of similar remediation costs for other \Xisconssin utilities.  

We proposed, and the EPA and WDNR have approved. aix interim action (a groundwater treatment systemn) for one operable unit at 
the site for which NSP-Wisconsin has accepted responsibiliry. Tlhe giouscsndwater trcatient systemn began operating in the fall of 2000. In 
2002, NSP-VWisconsin will install monitor wells is the deep aquifer to better characterize the extent and degree of contaminants in that 

aquifer while the free-product recovery system is operational.
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On Dec. 1, 2000, in response to a citizen petition, the EPA proposed the Ashland site for inclusion on the National Priorities List 

(NPL) of hazardous sites requiring cleanup. NSP-Wisconsin submitted comments in the Administrative Record concerning the 

proposed listing on Jan. 30, 2001. It is anticipated that the site will be listed on the NPL sometime in 2002.  

NSP-Wisconsin continues to work with the WDNR to access state and federal funds to apply to the ultimate remediation cost of 

the entire site.  

Other MGP Sites NSP-Minnesota has investigated and remediated MGP sites in Minnesota and North Dakota. The MPUC 

allowed NSP-Minnesota to defer, rather than immediately expense, certain remediation costs of four active remediation sites in 

1994. This deferral accounting treatment may be used to accumulate costs that regulators might allow us to recover from our customers.  

The costs are deferred as a regulatory asset until recovery is approved, and then the regulatory asset is expensed over the same period 

as the regulators have allowed us to collect the related revenue from our customers. In September 1998, the MPUC allowed the 

recovery of a portion of these MGP site remediation costs in natural gas rates. Accordingly, NSP-Minnesota has been amortizing 

the related deferred remediation costs to expense. In 2001, the North Dakota Public Service Commission allowed the recovery of 

part of the cost of remediating another former MGP site in Grand Forks, N.D. The recovered cost of remediating that site, $2.9 

million, was accumulated in a regulatory asset that is now being expensed evenly over eight years. NSP-Minnesota may request 

recovery of costs to remediate other sites following the completion of preliminary investigations.  

Asbestos Removal Some of our facilities contain asbestos. Most asbestos will remain undisturbed until the facilities that contain it 

are demolished or renovated. Since we intend to operate most of these facilities indefinitely, we cannot estimate the amount or 

timing of payments for its final removal. It may be necessary to remove some asbestos to perform maintenance or make improve

ments to other equipment. The cost of removing asbestos as part of other work is immaterial and is recorded as incurred as operating 

expenses for maintenance projects, capital expenditures for construction projects or removal costs for demolition projects.  

Leyden Gas Storage Facility In the fall of 2001, PSCo took its Leyden natural gas storage facility out of commercial storage operation 

and began final withdrawal of gas as part of the process to permanently close the facility. PSCo is closing the Leyden facility because 

it is no longer compatible with surrounding land use, which has experienced considerable residential and commercial development 

in recent years. Through Dec. 31, 2001, $4 million of costs have been incurred. PSCo has deferred expensing these closing costs 

because it believes that it will be able to recover them from its ratepayers. We will request recovery of the closing costs as part of the rate 

case to be filed in 2002. Any costs that are not recoverable from customers will be expensed.  

Plant Emissions On Dec. 10, 2001, the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency issued a notice of violation to NSP-Minnesota 

alleging air-quality violations related to the replacement of a coal conveyor and violations of an opacity limitation at the A.S. King 

generating plant. NSP-Minnesota has responded to the notice of violation and is working to resolve its allegations.  

NRG estimates capital expenditures over the next five years related to resolving environmental concerns at the Indian River Generating 

Station, which are centered around possible closure of the existing landfill and construction of a new cell to replace it, possible 

addition of a cooling tower, and the addition of controls to reduce nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions. Currently, cost estimates 

for addressing the first two items vary widely pending the results of negotiations with the Delaware Natural Resources and Environment 

Commission (DNREC). If ash sales are poor, it is estimated that NRG could spend up to $11 million over the five-year timeframe to 

close/construct sections of the landfill; if sales are robust, expenditures related to closure/construction are expected to be minimal.  

In the unlikely event NRG is unable to reach agreement with DNREC on extension of a variance, NRG estimates a $40-million 

cooling tower could be required; if negotiations are successful, a cooling tower can be avoided.  

NRG also estimates $39 million of capital expenditures at its Encina Generating Station to install emission-control equipment 

required by California regulation passed in late 2001. Installation is expected to be completed in the spring of 2003.  

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is seeking additional emissions reductions beyond current requirements. The Massachusetts 

Department of Environmental Protection (MDEP) has issued proposed regulations that would require significant emissions reductions 

from certain coal-fired power plants in the state, including NRG's Somerset facility. The MDEP has proposed that such facilities comply 

with stringent limits on emissions of NOx and on sulfur dioxide (SO 2) commencing in December 2003, with further reductions 

required by December 2005, and on carbon dioxide (CO2 ) by December 2005. In addition to output-based limits (a standard that 

limits emissions to a certain rate per net megawatt-hour), the proposed regulations also would limit, by December 2003, the total 

emissions of NOx and SO2 at the Somerset facility to no more than 75 percent of the average annual emissions of the Somerset facility 

for the years 1997 through 1999. Finally, the proposed regulations require the MDEP to evaluate, by December 2002, the technological 

and economic feasibility of controlling or eliminating mercury emissions by the year 2010, and to propose mercury emission standards 

within 18 months of completion of the feasibility evaluation. Compliance with these proposed regulations, if such regulations become 

effective, could have a material impact on the operation of NRGs Somerset facility. The annual average CO2 emission rate identified 

in the proposed regulations cannot be met by the Somerset facility. NRG has submitted an emission control plan, with respect to the 

NOx and SO 2 requirements, and is conducting ongoing discussions with the MDEP regarding finalization of the plan.
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Mohawk Power Corporation requests a declaration by the Court that, pursuant to the terms of the Asset Sales Agreement (the ASA) 

under which NRG purchased the Huntley and Dunkirk generating facilities from Niagara Mohawk, defendants have assumed liability 

for any costs for the installation of emissions controls or other modifications to or related to the Huntley or Dunkirk plants imposed 

as a result of violations or alleged violations of environmental law. Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation also requests a declaration 

by the Court that, pursuant to the ASA, defendants have assumed all liabilities, including liabilities for natural resource damages, 

arising from emissions or releases of pollutants from the Huntley and Dunkirk plants, without regard to whether such emissions or 

releases occurred before, on or after the closing date for the purchase of the Huntley and Dunkirk plants. NRG has counterclaimed 

against Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation, and the parties have exchanged discovery requests.  

OTHER CONTINGENCIES 

California Power Market NRG's California generation assets include a 57.67-percent interest in Crockett Cogeneration (Crockett), 

a 39.5-percent interest in the Mt. Poso facility and a 50-percent interest in the West Coast Power partnership with Dynegy.  

In March 2001, the California Power Exchange (PX) filed for bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, and in April 

2001, Pacific Gas & Electric Co. (PG&E) also filed for bankruptcy under Chapter 11. PG&E's filing delayed collection of receivables 

owed to the Crockett facility. In September 2001, PG&E filed a proposed plan of reorganization. Under the terms of the proposed 

plan, which is subject to challenge by interested parties, unsecured creditors such as NRG's California affiliates would receive 60 

percent of the amounts owed upon approval of the plan. The remaining 40 percent would be paid in negotiable debt with terms 

from 10 to 30 years. The California PX's ability to repay its debt is dependent on the extent to which it receives payments from 

PG&E and Southern California Edison Co. On Dec. 21, 2001, the California bankruptcy court affirmed the Mt. Poso and 

Crockett power purchase agreements with PG &E and, in respect of the Crockett power purchase agreement, approved a 12-month 

repayment schedule of all past due amounts totaling, $49.6 million, plus interest. The first payment of $6.2 million, including 

accrued interest, was received on Dec. 31, 2001.  

NRG's share of the net amounts owed to West Coast Power by the California Independent System Operator (ISO) and PX totaled 

approximately $85.1 million as of Dec. 31,2001, compared with $101.8 million at Dec. 31, 2000. These amounts reflect NRG's 

share of total amounts owed to West Coast Power less amounts that are currently treated as disputed revenues and are not recorded 

as accounts receivable in the financial statements of West Coast Power, and reserves taken against accounts receivable that have been 

recorded in the financial statements. The decrease is primarily attributed to cash collections from the California ISO during the 

fourth quarter of 2001.  

The FERC has set for investigation the justness and reasonableness of the rates of wholesale sellers into the California ISO and PX 

markets and is making such rates subject to refund effective November 2001. The effect of the FERC's action is to make certain 

transactions of PSCo and NRG in California subject to refund. Xcel Energy believes that PSCo's refund exposure is immaterial.  

NRG has estimated potential refunds in the calculation of the reserves taken against its related accounts receivable.  

Enron Xcel Energy, through its subsidiaries (excluding NRG as discussed later), has entered into agreements with Enron and its 

subsidiaries. However, pursuant to netting/set-off rights provisions of the industry standard agreements that Xcel Energy and Enron 

have utilized, Xcel Energy generally has a net liability to Enron. Therefore, we will owe Enron termination payments under these 

agreements for such services. The most significant of these agreements is between Enron and e prime. e prime will owe Enron a 

termination payment of approximately $12 million, representing the net of a $69-million receivable and an $81-million payable.  

As a result of the netting/set-off provisions, no provision for loss has been recorded in connection with these transactions agreements.  

Xcel Energy does not expect a material impact to the results of its operations as a direct result of the bankruptcy filing of Enron.  

During 2001, NRG's power marketing operation recorded a net after-tax expense of $6.7 million related to Enron's bankruptcy.  

This amount includes a $14.2-million, after-tax charge to establish bad debt reserves, which was partially offset by a $7.5-million, 

after-tax gain on a credit swap agreement entered into as part of NRG's credit risk management program. NRG has fully provided 

for its exposure to Enron; however, as with any receivable, NRG will pursue collection of all amounts outstanding through the 

ordinary course of business.  

In addition, an Enron subsidiary, NEPCO, is serving as the construction contractor for two of NRG's greenfield development 

projects, the Kendall and Nelson projects currently under construction in Illinois. Enron guaranteed NEPCO's obligations under 

the construction contracts. To date, the actual construction and engineering work on both projects has continued without disruption, 

and NRG expects the projects to achieve commercial operations on schedule. NRG believes overall construction costs will increase 

by no more than $50 million, which represents less than five percent of the expected construction costs.  

Tax MJatters The IRS had issued a Notice of Proposed Adjustment proposing to disallow interest expense deductions taken in tax 

years 1993 through 1997 related to corporate-owned life insurance (COLI) policy loans of PSR Investments, Inc. (PSRI), a wholly 

owned subsidiary of PSCo. A request for technical advice from the IRS National Office with respect to the proposed adjustment
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had been pending. Late in 2001, Xcel Energy received a technical advice memorandum from the IRS National Office, which com
municated a position adverse to PSRI. Consequentl'y, we expect the IRS examination division to begin the process of disallowing 
the interest expense deductions for the tax years 1993 through 1997.  

After consultation with tax counsel, it is Xcel Energ's position that the IRS determination is not supported by the tax law. Based 
upon this assessment, management continues to believe that the tax deduction of interest expense on the COLI policy loans is in 
full compliance with the tax law. Therefore, Xcel Energy intends to challenge the IRS determination, which could require several 
years to reach final resolution. Although the ultimate resolution of this matter is uncertain, management continues to believe the 
resolution of this matter will not have a material adverse impact on Xcel Energy's financial position, results of operations or cash 
flovs. For this reason, PSRI has not recorded any provision for income tax or interest expense related to this matter and has continued 
to take deductions for interest expense related to policy loans on its income tax returns for subsequent years.  

The total disallowance of interest expense deductions for the period of 1993 through 1997, as proposed by the IRS, is approximately 
S175 million. Additional interest expense deductions for the period 1998 through 2001 are estimated to total approximately $240 
million. Should the IRS ultimately prevail on this issue, tax and interest payable through Dec. 31, 2001, would reduce earnings by 
an estimated S197 million (after tax), or 57 cents per Xcel Energy share.  

At Dec. 31, 2001, Xcel Energ,'s investment in Seren was approximately $232 million. Seren had capitalized $190 million for 
plant in service and had incurred another $60 million for construction work in progress for these systems. The construction of its 
broadband communications network in Minnesota and California has resulted in consistent losses. Management currently intends to 
hold and operate Seren, and believes that no asset impairment exists. Xcel Energy is evaluating the strategic fit in its business portfolio.  

1/0i, ),ý,z NRG owns a 25.37 percent interest in Loy Yang Power, which owns and operates the 2,000-megawatt Loy Yang A brown 
coal-fired thermal power station and the adjacent Loy Yang coal mine located in Victoria, Australia. Energy' prices in the Victoria region 
of the National Electricity Market of Australia, into xvhich the Loy Yang facility sells its power have been significantly lower than NRG 
expected when it acquired its interest in the facility. Prices improved during 2001, resulting in a 14-percent revenue increase. Despite 
this improvement, a significant unplanned outage, beginning in late December 2001 and expected to last until April 2002, will result 
in a reduction in 2002 revenues and cash flows. Such reduction may cause the Loy Yang project company to Fail its required coverage 
ratios under its loan agreements during the next 12 months, which would constitute an event of default. In the case of-default, the 
project company s lenders Would be allowed to accelerate the project company's indebtedness. The ultimate financial impact of the 
outage is subject to continuing investigation and is also subject to several events, including the receipt and timing of insurance proceeds, 
the cost and timing of repairs to the damaged unit and electricity market conditions. Project management is actively pursuing each 
of these options to mitigate the impact of the outage. However, in the event all factors are unfavorable, NR( may be required 
to either infuse more cash or write off all or a portion of its $250-million investment in this project as a restilt of such acceleration. In 
its current circumstances, Loy Yang Power is prohibited by its loan agreements from making equity distributions to the project owners.  

X\,-i 'v ./ At Dec. 31, 2001, Xcel Energys investment in Argentina through Xcel Energy International was $102 
million. Given the political and economic climate in Argentina, Xcel Energy continues to closely monitor the investment for asset 
impairment. Due to the declining value of the Argentine peso, a currency translation adjustment was recorded in the amount of 
$38 million as an adjustment to Other Comprehensive Income. Currently, management intends to hold and operate the invest
ment and believes that no asset impairment exists.  

16. NUCLEAR OBLIGATIONS 

,)',/', NSP-Minnesota is responsible for temporarily storing uscd or spent nuclear fuel from its nuclear plants. The DOE 
is responsible for permanently storing spent fuel from NSP-\Minnesora's nuclear plants as well as fiom other U.S. nuclear plants.  
NSP-Minnesota has funded its portion of the DOE's permanent disposal program since 1981. The fuel disposal fees are based on a 
charge of 0.1 cent per kilowatt-hour sold to customers from nuclear generation. Fuel expense includes DOE fuel disposal assessments 
of approximately $11 million in 2001, $12 million in 2000 and $12 million in 1999. In total, NSP-Nlinnesota had paid approximately 
$296 million to the DOE through Dec. 31, 2001. However, we cannot determine whether the amount and method of the DOE's 
assessments to all utilities will be sufficient to fully fund the DOE's permanent storage or disposal facility.  

The Nuclear Waste Policy Act required the DOE to begin accepting spent nuclear fuel no later than Jan. 31, 1998. In 1996, the 
DOE notified commercial spent fuel owners of an anticipated delay in accepting spent nuclear fuel by the required date and conceded 
that a permanent storage or disposal facility will not be available until at least 2010. NSP-Minnesota and other utilities have commenced 
lawsuits against the DOE to recover damages caused by the DOE's failure to meet its statutory and contractual obligations.  

NSP-Minnesota has its own temporary on-site storage facilities for spent fuel at its Monticello and Prairie Island nuclear plants.  
With the dry cask storage facilities approved in 1994, management believes it has adequate storage capacity to continue operation of 
its Prairie Island nuclear plant until at least 2007. The Monticello nuclear plant has storage capacity to continue operations until 
2010. Storage availability to permit operation beyond these dates is not assured at this time. We are investigating all of the alternatives 
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for spent fuel storage until a DOE facility is available, including pursuing the establishment of a private facility for interim storage of 

spent nuclear fuel as part of a consortium of electric utilities. If on-site temporary storage at Prairie Island reaches approved capacity, we 

could seek interim storage at this or another contracted private facility, if available.  

Nuclear fuel expense includes payments to the DOE for the decommissioning and decontamination of the DOE's uranium enrichment 

facilities. In 1993, NSP-Minnesota recorded the DOE's initial assessment of $46 million, which is payable in annual installments 

from 1993 to 2008. NSP-Minnesota is amortizing each installment to expense on a monthly basis. The most recent installment paid 

in 2001 was $4 million; future installments are subject to inflation adjustments under DOE rules. NSP-Minnesota is obtaining 

rate recovery of these DOE assessments through the cost-of-energy adjustment clause as the assessments are amortized. Accordingly, 

we deferred the unamortized assessment of $25 million at Dec. 31, 2001, as a regulatory asset.  

Plant Decommissioning Decommissioning of NSP-Minnesota's nuclear facilities is planned for the years 2010-2022, using the prompt 

dismantlement method. We are currently following industry practice by ratably accruing the costs for decommissioning over the approved 

cost recovery period and including the accruals in Accumulated Depreciation. Consequently, the total decommissioning cost obligation and 

corresponding assets currently are not recorded in Xcel Energy's financial statements.  

In June 2001, the FASB approved the issuance of SFAS No. 143 - "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations." This statement 

will require us to record our future nuclear plant decommissioning obligations as a liability at fair value with a corresponding 

increase to the carrying value of the related long-lived asset. The liability will be increased to its present value each period, and the 

capitalized cost will be depreciated over the useful life of the related long-lived asset. If at the end of the asset's useful life, the recorded 

liability differs from the actual obligations paid, a gain or loss will be recognized at that time.  

SFAS No. 143 will also affect our accrued plant removal costs for other generation, transmission and distribution facilities for our utility 

subsidiaries. We expect that these costs, which have yet to be estimated, will be reclassified from Accumulated Depreciation to Regulatory 

Liabilities based on the recoverability of these costs in rates. We plan to adopt SFAS No. 143, as required, on Jan. 1, 2003.  

Consistent with cost recovery in utility customer rates, we record annual decommissioning accruals based on periodic site-specific 

cost studies and a presumed level of dedicated funding. Cost studies quantify decommissioning costs in current dollars. Funding 

presumes that current costs will escalate in the future at a rate of 4.35 percent per year. The total estimated decommissioning costs 

that will ultimately be paid, net of income earned by external trust funds, is currently being accrued using an annuity approach over 

the approved plant recovery period. This annuity approach uses an assumed rate of return on funding, which is currently 5.5 percent, 

net of tax, for external funding and approximately 8 percent, net of tax, for internal funding. Unrealized gains on nuclear decommis

sioning investments are deferred as Regulatory Liabilities based on the assumed offsetting against decommissioning costs in current 

ratemaking treatment.  

The MPUC last approved NSP-Minnesota's nuclear decommissioning study and related nuclear plant depreciation capital recovery 

request in April 2000, using 1999 cost data. Although we expect to operate Prairie Island through the end of each unit's licensed life, 

the approved capital recovery would allow for the plant to be fully depreciated, including the accrual and recovery of decommissioning 

costs, in 2007. This is about seven years earlier than each unit's licensed life. The approved recovery period for Prairie Island has 

been reduced because of the uncertainty regarding spent-fuel storage. We believe future decommissioning cost accruals will continue 

to be recovered in customer rates.  

The total obligation for decommissioning currently is expected to be funded 100 percent by external funds, as approved by the 

MPUC. Contributions to the external fund started in 1990 and are expected to continue until plant decommissioning begins.  

The assets held in trusts as of Dec. 31, 2001, primarily consisted of investments in fixed income securities, such as tax-exempt 

municipal bonds and U.S. government securities that mature in one to 20 years, and common stock of public companies. We plan 

to reinvest matured securities until decommissioning begins.  

At Dec. 31, 2001, NSP-Minnesota had recorded and recovered in rates cumulative decommissioning accruals of $623 million.  

The following table summarizes the funded status of NSP-Minnesota's decommissioning obligation at Dec. 31, 2001: 

(Thousands of dollars) 2001 

Estimated decommissioning cost obligation from most recently approved study (1999 dollars) $ 958,266 

Effect of escalating costs to 2001 dollars (at 4.35 percent per year) 85,183 

Estimated decommissioning cost obligation in current dollars 1,043,449 
Effect of escalating costs to payment date (at 4.35 percent per year) 850,825 

Estimated future decommissioning costs (undiscounted) 1,894,274 

Effect of discounting obligation (using risk-free interest rate) (1,016,206) 
Discounted decommissioning cost obligation 878,068 
Assets held in external decommissioning trust 596,113 

Discounted decommissioning obligation in excess of assets currently held in external trust $ 281,955
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Decoarstimissioning expenses recognized inclide the following components: 

Thousands of dorlf/,s) 

Annual decommissioning cost accrual reported as depreciation expense: 
FIxtcrnallv funded 
Inter nally lu funded (including interest costs) 

Interest cost oii externally fndIcd decommissioning oblig tion 
Earninigs fiom external trust funds 
Net dccommissioninsi accruals recorded

2001 

S 51,433 
(17,396) 

4,53) 
(40535) 

S 34,037

2000 

S 51.433 
(16,111) 

5,1 I51 

(5,151) 

S 35,322

1999 

S 33,178 

1,595 

4,191 

(4.191) 

S 34,-73

Decommissioning and interest accrcrals ate included ss ith Accutnulatecd Depreciation oai the balance sheet. Interest costs and rruist 
earnings associated with externalsy fcunded obligations are reported in ither Nonoperating Income on the incore statement.  

Negative acciruals for internally fcinded portions in 2000 and 2001 reflect the impacts of the 2000 decommissioning study, which 
has approved an assumption of 100-pcrcent external fuiding Of ftturc costs. PIreC iois stutdies assumecd a portion s%'as funded internallh' 
beginning in 2000. accruals are reversing the previously accrued internal portton and increasing the external portion prospectively.  

17. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Our regulated businesses prepare their financiMi statements in accordance with the provisions ofa SAS Na. 71, Las discssed in Note I 
to the Financial Statements. Under SFAS No. 71, regdtlaiti assets and liabilities can be created for amouInts that tegulators may allow 
LIs to collect, or may require LIs to pay back to customers in fruter electi ic and natural gas rates. Ani' portion Ot otir business that is 
otsa regutlaited cannot cise SFAS No. 71 accountist. The components oft Unamortized regulatory assets and liabilities shown ois the 

balance sheet at Dec. 31 were:

ST'1,o1sawlds o/'dollams 

AFDC recorded in plant t 
Conservation piograms (a i (d) 
I osses aOi riacttuired debt 
Entvirontmental ctsts 
Unrecovaes d gas costs (b) 
IDeferred income tax adjustments 
Nutclear decommissioning costs (e) 
Employees' post eti retent benefits other than pension 
Employees' posteinplo 'syment benefits 
Renewable resource costs 
State comm5ittissioti- accotnistitng adlustIseItts 'a, 

"Intal regulatory assets

A'ose Ref.
Rcet~nainig .Amortization :i'd

Plant I~ivcs 

Up to 5 Years 

I 1 ams o el atcd Debt 

15 and 16 To be determined 

1 1-2 Yeirs 

I Nlarlv Plant I.ives 

lip to 8 Years 

10 11 Ycars 

2 2-3 Years 
"Io be determined 

Plant i ives 

VariouIs

Investment tax credit deferrals 

Uinrealized gains ftiom decommissioning investments 16 
Pension cotsI-tcgIlatory differences 10 
Conservation programs 'r 

Deferred income rax adjustIsents is 
Fuel costs, refutds and other 

"futal r egtl atorsi liabilities

2001 

S 149,591 

65,825 
9)-394 

210.169 

11,316 

I7,'99 

68.484 

42,942 

1L9 
17,500 

-,5-8 

5,725 

S5(02,442 

S 117257 

S49,04 1 

215,687

2000 

S 159,406 
52,444 
85,688 
19,372 

24,719

82,490 
46,680 
23,223 
10,500 
7,614 

12,125 
)524,261 

S 119,060 
171,736 
139,178 
40,679

- 12,416 

1,957 11,49

S /83,942 S494,566

1 a) 1,-tonca HS d tu n''~P on invle~tmen in t/H" ýatil~hna'ig pi Oe c3S. 7 "/se€ an}lOuwýl U'7ý" I)H1Ot I~te'(co ýO tmt u rht IUg/ 'e>"'01,t? ;-J ! rd 'b) lircies crrrient portioi wcir , expected cate rýtoliei v ur' it 12 monr,, if't22 milrion and $ 1/ 3 m2llio i! 2001 and 20W esp,.,r r r.  

e /) Rep Ceieit estimaied rei'ticd/ r 1998 irrcenrti'es; uiri iite/i cicrrcd in 200 1 
'dc 200/ amount hin hdes accrued conserr ario mceri irc " ,n.vicced to be, approved / o'ir r00]1 and 2000. li) cc ricrioii, 101c"r"ne stcc 

ii e rn'ts U'er ie iot ,ccrued ii 2000.  

(e) T c aSr do icot ro r'Ice to ANS/-Mino / ot's i/c crcc/ea p/,1 r t. . 7r/r relatc to /OW a ines c ie .im r/ ci,,' lIcc nui c/ r; .i rr.ii c/u rostsr i i 
PSCoa it- St . 1rrain nuclear pla/ decommisiori irrg.

18. SEGMENT AND RELATED INFORMATION 

Xcel Energy has the followirg reportable segments: Electric Utility, Gas Utility and two ofa its nonregulated energy bucsitnesses, NRG 
and e prime. Dtring February 2001, Xcel Energy reached art agreement to sell the majority of its investrent in Yorkshire Power. As 
a result ofa this sales agreemcent, Xcel International (Yorkshire Power was Xcel International's most significant holding) is no longer 
a reportable segment. Prior periods have beets restated for comnparabilitt.  

- Xccl Itergn-s Electric Utility generates. transmits and distributes electricits in Mlinnesota, Wisconsin, Ntichisganr North Dakota,

"-2 \ -c I I iE'Rcs) IN( .\iN dt BSIDI\RIt
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South Dakota, Colorado, Texas, New Mexico, Wyoming, Kansas and Oklahoma. It also makes sales for resale and provides 
wholesale transmission service to various entities in the United States. Electric Utility also includes electric trading.  

- Xcel Energy's Gas Utility transmits, transports, stores and distributes natural gas and propane primarily in portions of 

Minnesota, Wisconsin, North Dakota, Michigan, Arizona, Colorado and Wyoming.  
- NRG develops, acquires, owns and operates several nonregulated energy-related businesses, including independent power pro

duction, commercial and industrial heating and cooling, and energy-related refuse-derived fuel production, both domestically 

and outside the United States.  

- e prime trades and markets natural gas throughout the United States.  

Revenues from operating segments not included previously are below the necessary quantitative thresholds and are therefore included 
in the All Other category. Those primarily include a company involved in nonregulated power and natural gas marketing activities 

throughout the United States; a company that invests in and develops cogeneration and energy-related projects; a company that is 

engaged in engineering, design, construction management and other miscellaneous services; a company engaged in energy consulting, 

energy efficiency management, conservation programs and mass market services; an affordable housing investment company; a 

broadband telecommunications company; and several other small companies and businesses.  

To report net income for electric and natural gas utility segments, Xcel Energy must assign or allocate all costs and certain other 

income. In general, costs are: 

- directly assigned wherever applicable; 

- allocated based on cost causation allocators wherever applicable; and 

- allocated based on a general allocator for all other costs not assigned by the above two methods.  

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 1 to the Financial Statements. Xcel Energy evaluates 

performance by each legal entity based on profit or loss generated from the product or service provided.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS 

(Thousands of dollars)
Electric 
Utility Gas Utility

Reconciling Consolidated 
NRG e prime All Other Eliminations Total

Operating revenues from external 
customers (a) 

Intersegment revenues 
Equity in earnings (losses) 

of unconsolidated affiliates 
Total revenues 
Depreciation and amortization 
Financing costs, mainly interest expense 
Income tax expense (credit) 
Segment income (loss) 

before extraordinary items 
Extraordinary items, net of tax 
Segment net income (loss)

$7,731,640 $2,051,199 $2,803,073 $1,848,969 
978 4,501 1,859 88,475

$7,732,618 
$ 617,320 

265,285 
351,181 

$ 535,182 
11,821 

$ 547,003

$2,055,700 
$ 92,989 

49,108 
41,077

$ 

$

208,613 
$3,013,545 
$ 212,493 

450,729 

33,477

81,562 $ 265,204 

81,562 $ 265,204

1,376 
$1,938,820 
$ 247 

277 
5,150

$ 

$

8,547 

8,547

2001 
$373,823 $ - $14,808,704 

89,636 (183,019) 2,430

7,081 
$470,540 
$ 26,151 

107,855 
(94,162) 

$ (65,426) 
(1,534) 

$ (66,960)

- 217,070 
$ (183,019) $15,028,204 
$ - $ 949,200 

(52,055) 821,199 
- 336,723 

$ (40,390)$ 784,679 
- 10,287 

$ (40,390) $ 794,966

Operating revenues 
from external customers (a) 

Intersegment revenues 
Equity in earnings (losses) 

of unconsolidated affiliates 
Total revenues 
Depreciation and amortization 
Financing costs, mainly interest exp.  
Income tax expense (credit) 
Segment income (loss) 

before extraordinary items 
Extraordinary items, net of tax 
Segment net income (loss)

$6,492,194 $1,466,478 $2,014,757 $1,269,506 
1,179 5,761 2,256 53,928

$6,493,373 
$ 574,018 

333,512 
261,942 

$ 340,634 
(18,960) 

$ 321,674

$1,472,239 
$ 85,353 

60,755 
36,962

142,086 
$2,159,099 
$ 123,404 

295,917 
92,474

$ 57,911 $ 182,935 

$ 57,911 $ 182,935

1,203 
$1,324,637 
$ 569 

200 
(3,995) 

$ (6,158) 

$ (6,158)

2000 

$162,566 $ - $11,405,501 
78,419 (137,962) 3,581

39,425 
$280,410 
$ 9,051 

65,501 
(82,518) 

$ (13,925) 

$ (13,925)

- 182,714 
$ (137,962) $11,591,796 
$ - $ 792,395 

(59,780) 696,105 
- 304,865 

$ (15,609)$ 545,788 
- (18,960) 

$ (15,609) $ 526,828
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BJS 1 SS S>SvE ',T,\ C NTIJJ EE 
//ectrit Reconci/ing Consolidated 

(Thousands cf'da/ars) 1o/irit C, t'as Utility VRG t p rinm A/l Other /T' iminations ttbtat 

Operating revenues 1999 

from external customers c) S5,454,958 S1,141,294 S 427,567 S 564,045 -1 36.570 7,724,434 

Intersegment revenues 1,303 11,785 963 2,102 119,546 (134,731) 968 
Equity in earnings (losses) 

of unconsolidated affiliates - 68,947 1,467 41, 710 112,124 
Total revenues $5,456,261 S1,153,079 497,477 S 567,614 S2 97,826 S(134,731)$ 7,837,526 
Depreciation and amortization S 546,794 S 82,206 S 3,026 3762 14,18 S - S 683,975 

Financing costs, mainly interest exp. 300,108 53,217 92,570 226 2597 (19,020) 453,077 

Income tax expense (credit) 272,129 24,081 (26,416) (2,984) (7 3,002) (14,135) 1-9,673 
Segment net income (loss) S 431,510 S 49,175 S 572195 S (4, 765) S 50,939 S (13J121)S 570,933 

(a) All apetrtiag ritenuesiar tfaont etrtera/ custoiei/ocated in tc/i 1,nited Statet, except -64 mail6ion and c 290 million o/'aiR(; opNC titg iesiueti in 2001 and 2000, 

ropect ei/ uit/,/Jic/t caiet fm external ctistotis ourtide of t/e I niti/c .rates. Hoiteer, / / inoty Interntiionaiaii/ anR N/Cao have sInt ficant equity inveitrc tsfir 

nonrtigulate pr/ajects outside t/e L'nited States. AN'/C e/itn in eaiiings of umonsolidted i/c iliates s,,riti, it/lude S54. I million in 

2001, 519.2 million in 2000 and $38.6 min/ion ih 1999 fitio nonruiilated piojects /csated outside o/t ale / ited' .SatN/ .S \'RaN/' equiir ii inestintits in piojects outsde 

of t/ie / 'nited States usere $519 nillion in 2001, $566 million in 2000 and 5606 million in 1999. All OtCe/ equiio in ,.atiings tii'unconso/idated affi/iates includes 

S mittion in 2001, S35.3 million in 2000 and 544. 9 mic/ion in 1999 fivn aoitite oaftc/i LCited States, ptniartii, re/ated to ris}ir/ Pouneat All Other equitiO 

ini,'tinents and piajects outside ofrthe afc ited States uere $M36.9 tt//lioa in 2001, $38i3 million in 2000and iS6M7 million in 1999. hi addition, A.N /C' iuhol/a 
ou,neel fareign assets ($2.8 billion in 2001 and S'96 iillio/ it 2000) WOatribute/ tn iting a/ S49. 2 tillion in 2001. S30. I mi/ion in 2000 and S0 in 1999.  

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENT - NRG TENDER OFFER (UNAUDITED) 

Numerous factors have recently led to significant erosion in the market valuations within the independent power production sector, and 

resulted in a fundamental shift in market perception that has increased the cost of capital for these companies in 2002. As discussed 

in Management's Discussion and Analysis, since December 2001, NRG has experienced tightening credit standards and has been notified by 

certain credit rating agencies that NRG's corporate securities have been placed under review for possible downgrade. In response to these develop

ments, Xcel Enerig's board of directors and management have been reviewing their options with respect to NRG's funding and structure.  

On Feb. 14, 2002, Xcel Energy's board of directors approved plans to commence an exchange offer by which Xcel Energy would 

acquire all of the outstanding publicly held shares of NRG, representing an approximately 26-percent minority ownership. In the 

offer, NRG shareholders Would receive 0.4846 shares of Xcel Energy common stock in a tax-free exchange for each outstanding share 

of NRG common stock. Based on the Feb. 14, 2002 closing prices ofXcel Energy and NRG common stock, the exchange ratio represents a 

15-percent premium. In addition, following completion of the transaction, shareholders Would be entitled to Xcel Energxs current annual 

dividend of S1.50 per share.  

NRG's board of directors must review the proposed transaction, consider whethcr independent financial and legal advisors are necessary 
and communicate with NRG's minority shareholders. In order to tiect the conditions of the offer, enough shares will need to be 

tendered so that Xcel Energy's ovnership level of NRG reaches 90 percent. Based on the number of shares of NRG common stock 

outstanding otn Feb. 14, 2002, this would require the tender of at least 60 percent of the shares of NRG common stock. As this 

report went to press, it was not known what NRG's board of directors Would recommend, or how mans minority shares of NRG 

Would be tendered. Xcel Energy anticipates that the exchange offer will proceed and be completed promptly.  

In addition to the exchange offer, on Feb. 15, 2002, Xcel Energy also announced other plans for NRG in 2002: 

- Infusing 3600 million of equity into NRG, including an estimated $400 million from Xcel Energy common stock issuances 

uLnder existing shelf registrations; 

- Placing approximately $1.9 billion of existing, NRG generating assets onto the market for possible sale' 

Canceling approximately $700 million of planned NRG projects, and deferring about S900 million of other NRG projects; 

Selling unassigned turbines currentls under order by NRG; 

Reducing NRG's business development and administiative and g neral expenses by about S45 million per year in comparison 

to current levels; and 

- Consolidating NRG's trading and marketing organizations, and integrating NRG's power plant management into the Xcel 

Energy system.  

On Feb. 15, 2002, eight separate civil actions were filed in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware by owners of NRG common 

stock against Xcel Energy', NRG and NRGCs directors. The complaints contain a number of allegations, but the basic claim is that 
Xcel Energy' proposes to acquire the remaining ownership ofNRG For inadequate consideration and without full and complete disclosure 

of all material information, in breach of defendants' fiduciary duties. lhe complaints tequest the court to enjoin the proposed transaction 

and, in the event the exchange offer is consummated, to award damages to defendants.
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20. SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Revenue 
Operating income (c) 
Income before extraordinary items 
Extraordinary items 
Net income 
Earnings available for common shareholders 

Earnings per share before extraordinary items: 
Basic 
Diluted 

Earnings per share extraordinary items - basic & diluted 

Earnings per share after extraordinary items: 

Basic 
Diluted

(Thousands of dollars except per share amounts)

Revenue 
Operating income (c) 

Income before extraordinary items 
Extraordinary items 
Net income 
Earnings available for common shareholders

March 31, 2001 

$4,230,568 
492,306 
209,310 

209,310 
208,250 

$0.61 
$ 0.61 
$ 0.00 

$0.61 
$0.61

March 31, 2000 

$2,335,709 
361,749 
153,331 

153,331 
152,271

Quarter Ended 
June 30, 2001 (a) Sept. 30, 2001 

$3,698,557 $3,763,474 
433,765 658,379 
167,857 272,903

167,857 
166,797 

$ 0.49 
$0.49 
$ 0.00 

$ 0.49 
$ 0.49

272,903 
271,843 

$ 0.79 
$ 0.79 
$ 0.00 

$ 0.79 
$ 0.79

Quarter Ended 
June 30, 2000 Sept. 30, 2000 (b) 

$2,461,752 $3,100,398 
429,728 402,595 

156,741 97,916 
(13,658) (5,302) 

143,083 92,614 
142,022 91,554

Earnings per share before extraordinary items: 

Basic $ 0.45 $ 0.46 $ 0.29 $0.40 

Diluted $ 0.45 $ 0.46 $ 0.29 $0.40 

Earnings per share extraordinary items - basic & diluted $ 0.00 $(0.04) $(0.02) $0.00 

Earnings per share after extraordinary items: 

Basic $ 0.45 $ 0.42 $ 0.20 $0.40 

Diluted $ 0.45 $ 0.42 $ 0.27 $0.40 

(a) 2001 results include special charges and unusual items in the second and fourth quarters, as discussed in Notes 2 and 17 to the Financial 

Statements. Second quarter results were increased by $41 million, or 7 cents per share, for conservation incentive adjustments, and decreased by 

$23 million, or 4 cents per share, for a special charge related to postemployment benefits. Fourth quarter results were decreased by $39 million, or 

7 cents per share, for a special charge related to employee restaffing costs.  

(b) 2000 results include special charges related to merger costs and strategic alignment, as discussed in Note 2 to the Financial Statements. Third 

quarter results were reduced by approximately $201 million, or 43 cents per share. Fourth quarter results were reduced by approximately $40 

million, or 9 cents per share.  

(c) Certain items in the 2000 and 2001 quarterly income statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2001 annual presentation. These reclassifica

tions, primarily related to items formerly presented as nonoperating revenues and expenses, had no effect on net income or earnings per share.
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Dec. 31, 2001 (a) 

$ 3,335,605 

358,498 

134,609 

10,287 

144,896 

143,835 

$0.39 

$0.38 
$0.03 

$0.42 

$0.41

Dec. 31, 2000 (b) 

$3,693,937 
374,536 
137,800 

137,800 
136,740
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

HEADQLARTEýS 

800 Nicollet NIaI, Nlinneapolis, Ninn. 55402 

INTERN ET ADDRESS 

v, \, xc\Clen et•lr .co nI 

INVESTSRS HOTLINE 

1-877-914-9235 

SHAREHOLDERS NFORDiATI ON 

C onract NWells Fargo Shareowners Services, the XcN L II'crgy Intc. stock trinst•i'c awent, roll Ftree at 1 -8 '8-6786.

XCE-L ENERGY CIRECT PJR HS E PLAN 

Nel I-nertzx s Direct Purchase Plan, offered by prospecLtus, is a cottmcnicxti xax to purchase shates of" \ccj tI-I ir s 
common stock withouo payxnent of any brokerage commission or sEtVicE chargE. C ontact r \ lis I arttt Sharcowncts SE ices, 
the plan administrator, at 1 -87--778676 tot 1or a pr0oeLctLIs tl attd utott/ttionl f-orm.  

RE ORTS AVAILAB LE ONL \E 

Financial reports, itaclutding filings with the SerttitiEs and I'xc\latagc C ommissiotl, and Xccl I-Argyt' R1 aport to Slarcholdtrs are 
available online at www.xcelenxetgy.com.  

STOCK EXCHA"GE LISTINGS A D CKER SY MBC 
(itotitmon stock is traded oil the New Yoik, Clticago ttd Pacific cxc\langes. ITicktr syitbol: XNI. N' SIt lists some of' 
Xcel Energy's ptreferred stock.

;IVESTCR RELATIONS 

Internet address: wxw.xcelcneregx.Lco III; or contact Rlichard Kolktiann, 0\lanagingt I)irlcctil, 
612-2154559 or Paul Jorihnson, I)irccor, ItaxExstoi Relations, 61 21-2 1 -435.  

SCHEDULE F A.!'JiCIPATEL ,vIl EX,,K RE CORD D ,.TES A\ PA,"L' FATS F C F 2CD2

M' Jfiz, etd ,:ok 1Jcc/aratioiz/) ' Rc'cord /)atcs

tDcc. 12, 200 1 

Ielb. 2-, 2002 
April 1 8, 2t002 
ALg. 28, 2002 

[)ec. I 1,2002

[)c. 31, 2001 
Nfaich 29, 2002 
JuNeata 28, 2002 

Sept. 30, 2002 

IDec. 31, 2o02

Jan. I1, 2002 
April 1 a , 21( 2 

tuly1, 15, 2002 

)Lt. 15, 20012 
lai. 1 , 20)01i

I)cc- 12, 2001 

March 2a.2002 
Imne 26, 2002 

'\tg 8, '00'

[ittcstori lations,

("'w1 ' :,5,:

Jan. 2, 2002 
April 8, 21002) 

July, 8, 2002 

(LI. 2, 20 0 a

FISCAL AGENTS 

XCEL ENIERGY \C 

Wells Fargo Bank Nlinnesota, N.A., 161 North C(ioncoritL I alachagC, South St. Iatti, Nlttt. 55a-5 

A'clls IFargo Bank \lritncsota, N.A., Sixth St. and NIaticulttc Ave., .Mtinna p olis, Nllinn. aS479-0q9( 

\ells Fargo Bank Mlinnesota, N.A., MIinneapolis
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Jan. 20, 2002 

April 20 2002 

[nui 20, 2002 

Ect. 20, 2
002
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